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- 2022 Highlights
Financial

GROUP REVENUE

hmm.NB

(2021 £74.5m)

{LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE TAX

w@.mB

(2027 L4.3m)

i DIVIDEND PER SHARE

10.60

(202110 60)

|
i
!
|
' Non-financial

" UNIQUE CLIENT NUMBER

502

(2027 387,

ADJUSTED EBITDA

m@OB

(2021 £61m;

BASICEPS

23.2

(7027:71.5p;

CASH & DEPOSITS

m\_ m ..NB

(2027.£22.9m)

NQ. OF INSURANCE PAYERS

94,87

(2021 93147)

=@

Strategic

Querview

Operational

Significant new
contracts secured

with 101 now clients,
incltading Cadent Gas,

Ad Bell, Secure Trust Bank,
Amnesty Internatcnal,
Severn Group, resultingin
d record number of new
c.ents signed across the
Group In one year.

High client
retention rate

the Group has maintained
a strong retention rate
across aliof its software as
aservice (SaaS) ofterings,

Report

|
? Face-to-face
“ insurance product
. sales grew
i throughout the year
i fotlowing 18 months

of sales restrictions

due to COVID 18

Record Insurance
sales in November and
December, burding strony

Offering to the
SME sector

withthe Sage partnership
continued o grow
achieving the Group s
target of 50,000 payingy

cmployecs through this
charnel at year end

Page 19

mormentur for the future.

Financial
Statements O N

[.C Goodwill

following theindustrial
actior at o key client

and lack of certainty
surrounding future sates
to them an impairment
has been made to the
goodwillan acquisition
of LCof £10.6m.

Acquisition

of Quintige
Consulting Group
(QCG)

adds to our Pay and
Reward division,
presenting cpportuntties
for tross setling and
Adding new c.ents.
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Financial O mw
Overview Report Governance Statements

Why Invest in Personal Group?

A progressive, profitable business addressing

‘arapidly growing market.

The right offering for Large growth , @ Strong financial

Digitally-led model,
with proprietary

today's world opportunity

software at the centre
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HAPI PLATFORM RETENTION UNIQUE CLIENT NUMBERS CASH & DEPOSITS OF ACTIVATED USERS ON HAPIAND

SAGE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

95% ~30% £18.7/m 582,733

2027 93% - Lo b02, 2025, 387 | 20271 £22.9m 20271 538,05
YEARON YEAR INSURANCE RETENTION 7 SME CUSTOMERS VIA SEB , DIVIDEND PER SHARE ARRFOR SAAS LICENCES
1% 10.6 £5.0
m\_ OO\O i OO | . U Oom
_ 2021 80.7% _ to over 2,800, 20271 1,469 _ 2021:10.6p | 2021 £3.6m
,.rd Lt areo s | Page 05 _ r, IR AR RLRT vy v | Page 06 _ _L Sot0ar L FL L | Page 25 , ru Sovwbal we 0o | Page 04
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Our Purpose

‘We connect the unconnected and
‘protect the unprotected.

“What We Do

W Helping employees thrive in work and in life Qur Vision
!

Personal Group provides consultancy, benefits and technology services focused A winning team building a brighter future for the UK workforce,
3l on improving employee health, wellbeing and engagement. Our mission is to supporting over 1.5m employees by 2025,
build great working environments where people flourish and shine.

A

ail S
B PAY & BENEFITS AFFORDABLE
REWARD B PLATFORM l INSURANCE

Consultancy and Delivered to employers directly B On weekly or mo
software solutions and through channel partners rolling contracts

OTHER OWNED

BENEFITS

Access to consumer
technology

1 innecto & QLG ofter strategic Hapl 15 ourtecnnology plattorm that Insurance hospitalplan, convalescence | Let’s Connect - delivers a benehit scherme

_ corsultancy on pay and reward through powers growth through enhanced plan, and death benefit policies, " that allows employers to give thewr

_ therr experts and a suite of cloud based connectivity, engagement, health drderwritien by Group subsidianes, , cmployees affordable access tothe latest

! SaaS solutions and surveys and weilbeing. _ consumer technology and a vanely of high
Our easy to understand, affordable plans end products from leading manufacturers.

W Clients can zailor then solution with out Sage Employee Benefits our tailored are secured for the Lifetime of the palicy, Employees can spread the cost either by

; satary sacrifice or net pay arrangements

i far corsistertreward programmesthatalign . SME market workforces from across society,

Lo then busiress strategy ard work‘orce

I

experts Lo help them define and implement  engagement product designed for the providing peace of mind for diverse 7
I

i

Se o w2 DTG0 Page 24 ~. rJ e antdl o besne sy e, Page 16

SN i gun !

v e | Page 09

Paboalcivimy, v oo Page 19
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"What We Do continued

Our Strategy

Our growth strategy s based on thre2 key areds focused on widening our footpnnt across a broader range of industry sectors.

Lroving insurance sales through noew 7 7
i and existing channets 7 |

Accelerating ocur SME of fer

Our markets
we offer aurmguely holistic market praposition, sp

ning msurance, employee benefits, and reward consu.tancy.
& lowIng us To Cater to every sector of UK businegss and offer relevant, timety and price appropriate services 1hat heip O\O
companies address these key themres

nts are currently
servad by two or
more segrnents i

Product offering by vertical

Public Sector

SMEs
eq: Skyscanner, eg: Any enterprise with
Refinitiv <250 employees

eq: Sandwell & West

Cranswick Birmingham NHS Trust

eg: Royal Mail Group,
|
|

W Fan deal dthand tte nsuig Uther owned tenefits Pay and reveard consultancy Digital benetits plattorm
. ty let's Carnect; nnectcl (Haprwhite labelled HIge
i ) ‘ ) Erployee Benerity' (SEB
. Gur digita, benetits plattorm - Udn digital benefits platterm  tlap Our dignal benefits platform  Hap wioy (=EB!
W W lewr flex option Hapiflex s likely to jour flex option 'Hapitlex s likely to
, be the most relevant) be the most retevant 7
, S F I K .. Page 07 ~ coe.no b | Page 18 _TJ el Do Tl Lo | Page 08 et “uiocoe o od. | Page 09 7
|
|
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Market OQverview

Economic and societal trends

DECLINE
OF STATE
FINANCIAL
SUPPORT
HIGHER
LABOUR
STANDARDS

MACRO TRENDS
PACE OF GROWTH IN
TECHNOLOGY
ECONOMIC INSTABILITY
CLIMATE CHANGE

CHANGES TO WORKERS'
RIGHTS

CHANGING WORKING
PRACTICES

HYBRID
WORKING

CONSTANT

CONTACT WITH

WORK
THREAT TO
WORK-LIFE

BALANCE

TALENT-LED
MARKETP{ ACE AND
LOW UNEMPLOYMENT

TRUSTIN
GOVERNMENT
SUPPORTIN
DECLINE

COSTOCF
LIVING CRISIS
AND PRICING

PRESSURE

DEMAND FOR
BUSINESS
RESILIENCE

=& >

Strategic

Qverview Report

Challenges for clients

> Emergence of the talent-led marketplace -
competitive pay is no longer enough
> Increasing regulatory and legal scrutiny on firms

that rely on gig economy workers, self-employed
and zera haur contracts

> Fair and competitive pay struggling to keep up
with inftation

> Increased competition drives constant need to
evaluate and define a competitive empioyee
value proposition to attract and retain talent

> Role of the employer has widened, employee
expectationrising

> Employees expect help and support to combat
the cost of living crisis

> Demand for pay increases, 1in 8 businesses
affected by industrial action

> Need to build resilient workforces through holistic
wellbeing suppert - physical, financial and mental

> Desire to attract diverse talent as a source
of competitive advantage

> kmportange of creating aninclusive and
callaborative working environment

> lncreased pace of work, competition, cost
pressure places more impertance and need
for sacial recegnition

> Increased connectivity and constant contact with
work threatens employee work-life balance and
increases exposure to stress-related illness

> Hybrid working chaltenges employer's ahility
te build 2 connected engaged workforce

> Demand for greater transparency,
clearly communicated and manitored goals
and objectives

Governance

Financial
Statements

Qur growth drivers

ENHANCE
EMPLOYEE VALUE

Our consultants design competitive and
fair erployer value proposition, aligning
all aspects of reward and benefits

to deliver ESG goals and attract and
win talent

CONNECTIVITY

Qurhenefit platforms deliver seamless
digitally enabled experiences that
connect diverse workforces with the
benefits, discounts and wellbeing
support they need

ELEVATE ENGAGEMENT AND
HEALTH FORALL

We power growth ang productivity by
educating and supporting employees
holistically; recognition, wellbeing,
salary sacrifice and protection products
that help people thrive in life and work

INTEGRATED PROPOSITION

Work as astrategic partner leveraging
cur combined capabilities to build

resilient healthy workforces. Aligning
all aspects of the people strategy to the
organisation's purpose and objectives
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| Our Purpose in Action

BARCHESTER

Sector: Nursing and care homes

Employees: 17,000

Challenge: workforce connectivity, retertion and engagement

The healthodre sector reles heavily on atiracting talert to provide
quality care for ther residents and pat ents With g large workforce
i spread out across the UK, 3archester faces challenges connecting
carers with the busiress As ar employer whois committed to
ansuring altheirteam members are giver a voce, the business
wanted 10 engage with Its workers better, 1o hear and harness their
vIEWs, Support them in their work and daily lives and enabe them
to feel better cannected with the business. In domng so, 1t heped to
I expand their benefits offenng, impr ove job satisfaction, thewr overall

welbeing and reduce staff attntion and turrover

i
,
7Eméo;maézjmEnnoﬁano:jmsnmSm:, mauuo;iﬂm_ﬁioﬁ
7 Em:éo}ma_msozo:mfwoma:_jmjua_msaUjﬁam_ém:cmim_
7 and reake them accessible 1o everyone 24/7 By enabling easier

W access 1o counselling, lega. adwvice, wellbeing advice and health

W protection products, ali employees fe t added peace of mind.
CWarking with the busingss Lo create the now 'Speak Up' programme,
alsc gives frontline carars a voice o management on all aspects
of therr warking ife: operational policy, ways of working, learning
and development. A, enabied through the Hap App, they now have
ancther consistent channel to raise conzerns, provide feedback and
pose important questions,

By enabling access to greater support and improving genuine two
way communication across the entire workforce, we have helped
faster a positive working cu.ture where emp.oyees teel they have a
vaIce, and therr opimaons are valued. Statf aiso use the hiapi App to

1 engage with a new rewadards programmr e and the business bas driven

engagement with the platform throuchk guizzes, cashincenzives and
_ targeted content such as updates from the Chief Executive Officer

Ovarview

Strategic

Report

Financial
Statements O N

Personal Group worked
in partnership with us to
identify key opportunities
for the business. Their
guidance and technical
solutions have helped

us create a happier and
healthier workforce that
feels more protected and
better connected. 39

Genevieve Glover
Group HR Directer, 8Barchester Healthcare

https:/www.hapi.co.uk/content-hub/case-studies

Posed by model
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Qur Purpose in Action continued

THE CARAVAN
CLUB

Sector: Leisure, not for profit
Employees: ", 200

Challenge: Pay and reward, employee engagement
and connectivity in an evolving market

Strategic

Overview Report

As aresalt of the pandemic many more peopie have opted for
UK based houdays. As the Caravan and Motorhome Club's
membership and demand for new services mereased, It was
important to maintain and improve employee engagement
Asignificant praportion of its loyal and established workforge
traditionally mirrored the mature caravan enthusiast, however,
thus has slowly started to evolve Lo a younger demographic and
they needed to infuse their engagement approach to reflect the
new glamping generation

With each site based in a unique and remote location, employees
have always been crucialin overcorung challenges and creating
a positive experience for the customer Those workers need 10
be engayed and motivated and yet often ther detachment from
HQ was leaving them isciated from the business and feeling
unappreciated - a concern forretention and for attracting new
talentir a competitive market,

Wedentified that by cvaluating roles and benchmarking its pay,
the Caravan and Motorhome Club could create greater flexibility
in1ts reward structures and take a more strategic view of 1ts
Tota. Employee Value Proposition, including the creation of a new
Recognition scheme to engage workers across the Cuub,

By applying our knowledge and interpretng the data, we helped
them build a transparent fair pay strategy that formed the basis of
aclearjob architecture, ard enabled them to build a competitive
and fair framework.

To help motivate and engage employees our expert Reward
consultants also gdvised onanew Cheers for your Peers’
recognition scheme enabling colleagues and managers to thank
fellow workers for a jJob well done, complemented with a quarterly
prize draw and an Annual Club Stars award scheme.with all af this
dewvered through the Hapi app, staff are encouraged to engage
with ther rewards and benefits through their smart phones,
meaning they are atso better connected with the business,

every day. Since the introduction of Hapt, employee engagement
levets have increased, which in turn s reflected imincreased
member satisfaction and retention,

Governance

Financial

Statements

Innecto consultants
understood our challenges
and saw them as
opportunities to help

us compete and grow.

By combining their expertise
and technolcqgy they have
helped us connect with our
workforce in a refreshingty
transparent way. The Hapi
app 1s like a magic toclbox
that brings all the pieces
together on a daily basis. &

The Caravan Club

ol
https:/www.hapi.co.uk/content-hub/case-studies

Pgsed by model
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Our Purpose in Action continued

NRG N

The On Demand GP service

—..N _ < m mm_ U m is hugely popular and it has
- felt great being abte to offer

Sector: Specialist Fleet Management . counseliing and support to
Employees: 226 those in need. We are now
locking forward to rolling
out our new Recognition
Scheme, This partnership has
transformed our business. 39
JENNY COOK,

People Services Director,
NRG Riverside

Challenge: Employee retention and rezruitmentn a speualbist market

NRG Riverside 1s ore of the UK's Largest specialist fleet management
companies, offering short and long tarm truck rental, cantract hire,
fleet repan and maintenance services aCross nine sites nationwide,
Operating in & specialist environment the company's success relies
heavily on attracting strong candidates and retaining staff who have
received a tugh degree of traming and regular re accreditation.

By previousty o'ferirg ariy a basic package of salary plus pension
the company was imiting 1ts appeain a tough recruitment market,
but that situanion has been reversed vath the launch of a |

comorehensive new Reward end Benefits Strategy

Since launching in February 2022, Sage -mgloyee Benefits has
heen used by animpressive B0% of workers and has supported
the reductior of sta*f attriticn rate by 12%. In particular,

the courselling and Cn Jemand GP services have proved
populdr, with sick empioyees now call rg On Demand
GIPthat day for a corsultation as part of the company's |
Absenice Poucy, The diverse package of enhanced berefits

Fas also became a key drnver for attracting new talent

NRG Riverside 1s set to launch the next phase of ther

benefits package anew company-wide Award and
Recogritior scheme With guarterly norirations and an
annual winrer across eight categones, this will enable

emplayees to come together ard recognise colieagues
across multiple simes end help drive engagement with
the scheme even higher.

a0 I Ge wnling |

1

Wworking irt partnership with ocur exper: consultants,
|

! https:/www.hapi.ca.uk/content-hub/case-studies

f Posed by model
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Chairman’s Statement

R am pleased
to report on a year of
strategic progress,

IN which the team have
again delivered on
our strategic and

financial objectives. 99

Martin Bennett
Non-Executive Chatrman
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Chairman’s Statement continued

larr pleased to report on a year of strazeqic progress, in which
the team have again delivered on our strategic and finangial
objectives. 'he strength of trading in the second half of the
year underpins our confidence that we are now firmty back on
a growth trajectory, set to benefit from the investments we
have made ingur offenng and team

It1s evident to me that the team takes gredat pride inourrole
N supporting peopie’s physical, mente L social and tinancial
wellbeing, working together to achieve our vision: to create
abrghter future for the UK workforce. This clear sense of
nurpose, with a passion for clients, partners ang the people
within the husingss, has stood Persora. Group in guod stead
through tie economic challenges of recent years, ang we

have emerged a stronger and more diversified business as a
result [wolld lke to thank the team fo-their continued hard
work and embodiment of the Compary 's values.

Achieving growth

We have successfully delivered growt across a number of
our RPIs, Increasing our total client numbers and reporting
double digit growth in key areas of our recurring revenue

Of particalar note (in the year was the "einvigeration of the
insurance sa.es modelwhich had been 5o affected by the
panaemic. Recruiting the nght people, training, and getling
them back in 1o see cilents was by no means a simple task
and has been achieved exceptionally veell, exemplitied by
the consecutive record new INsurance sales achieved in
Navember and December. Whilst thisinvestment in the
field sales team mpacts cur profits in the short term the
benefits of the resuttant growthin the insurance book will
be seenin future years

UNIQUE CLIENT NUMBER

(2027:387)

= <>

Overview

Across the benefits platform we wer new customers and
secured valuable new partners, including the signing of a
mulll year extension 1o odr engagement with 5age to power
the Sage Employee Benefits platform, whichas reflective
of the success of our partnership to date. Followingits
estahlishment severalyears ago, momentum accelerated
N 2022, resulting in an increased gross Annual Recurring
Revenue of £3.0m (20271 £1.6m) with ¢50,000 paying
employees on the platformal the end of the year and we
are confident that this willcontinue to be a growth engine
for the business,

The acquisition of Quinuge Consulung Group Limited ["QCG")
InJuly has erhanced the Group's overat pay and reward
cffering and consolidated the Group's position as a leading
provider of employee services inthe UK integration of the
QCGteam Inte our organisation 1s progressing well, and we
are already benefiting from shared knowledge and activities.

we are of course not immune to the disruption taking place
arross the LK, whether that be strikes or ongoing supply chain
1ssues. As described in our trading update issued in January
2023, our consumer technology business, Let's Connect,
had a challenging second half of the year, as a result of the
industnal action taking place at its major client, Royal Mail
Group. This continued action has had implications as we have
moved into the start of 2023 and as a result, the current
salary sacrifice technology scheme we run with them is no
longer appropnate for themin ts current format, Whilst not
reflective of our overall offering, taken alongside continued
uncertanties around supply chain and ongoimng margin
pressures, nundertaking our arndalimpairment review of the
goodwill held from the acquisition of Lets Connect in 2814,

ANNUALISED PREMIUM INCOME

28.0m

(20271 24.4m)

Strategic

Report

Firancial

1

Statements

we have made the prudent decision to fully impair the
£10.6m of goodwili created on acquisition in 2074, Whilst this
has impacted our statutory profit before tax for the year it
15 & non cash item and dees not affect the financial strength
of the business For more details please see note 14,

We are all cognisant of operating within an inflaticnary
environment and the management team have negotiated
this well, through the careful managerment of resources and
considered investment. With inflation set to remain high
throughout 2023, we will continue Lo carefully batance the
investment in the busmess with profitable growth

A strengthened team

Personal Group places the success and happiness of
people at its heart, demonstrated by the very nature of
our offering. Internally, this ethos has seen the business
maintain our high staff retention rates, whilst also
supporting the hinng of additional talented senigr managers
to strengthen the Leam as well as the intreduction of the
QCGteam inJuly. In May, we welcomed Ciaran Astinto the
Board as Non Executsve Director, Ciaran brings with him a
wealth of sales, digitat and marketing experience.

ESG

As a Beard, we are comritted to high standards of £5SC and
made good progress against our stated objectives during
the year, building on our existing foundation of responsible
business practuice. We have made progress inreducing
our carbon footprint, fosternng an inclusive, progressive
and diverse working environment and ensuring a rebust
carporate governance framework, all enhancing our wider
Fnvironmental, Social and Governance (ESG) strategy.

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

10.6,

(20271 11.5p)
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Chairman’s Statement continued

Itisin the area of societalgood that we beleve we canhave | While cognisant of the ongoing economic

the most positive iImpact, both through our own agtions cha

7 nges, we look 1o the futLre with a strong
ard providing the tcols far odr custorers to similarly e*fect ﬁ sense of eptimism and remair committed Lo
change. You canread more gn these efortswithinthe 56 1 the continued execution of our strategy

section of cur Annual Report,

Martin Bennett
Non-Executive Chairman

A growing market

The reed for crganisations 1o lock atter ther pecple has

rever been rrare important. Canng for health, wellbeing, and 57 March 2023
building a sense of community ts crucia to modern companies

and represents the ongoing opportamity for Perscnal Group

In this current macroecoromic environment, there are few,

if any, markets about which one can be so opumsstic and we | h N
.cok forward o capitalising on the opportunity.

The right team in place - experienced and engaged

Our Board and senior leadership have a deep
understanding of the business and industry, and a proven
track recordin scaling-up businesses and extensive

Dividend

I am pleased to announce that the Board has recommended
a final ordinary dividend of .3 pence per share which

will be paid to shareholders on *8 May 2023 This makeas a commercial experience. They are committed to ensuring
I tota ordinary dividerd for 2022 0 10.3 pence per share, : Personal Group couples inngvation with strong financial
The Board has considered the tevel of dividend in the stewardship and delivers onits purpase to the benefit
W context of the nan cashimpairment of goodwill, aiongside of all stakeholders, whether they be customers,
I the underlying growth seen during the veer and continued employees, our communities or sharehaolders.
I conf dence in the Group's business made. and prospects. We are proud of the diversity of our business,
| from Board level through to ocur teams, and we will
, Outlook continue to be driven by our social purpose.
I with the impact of the pandemic now .argely bebind us, e
W andwith the growth we have seen in our key areas of ! _ WOMEN ON INDEPENDENT
recurring revenus, our focus 1s now or taking Personal I THE BOARD DIRECTORS
Group onto the rext stage of growth a1d we have entered . . wo 0
I 2023 on the front foot, benefiting from the strong end to ;= 7 \ N \
FY22 The grawthin our insurance bock, iInvestmerts in .. FURTHER INFORMATION _
our Hapt platform and expansion of our Pay and Reward '
, cffenng allprovide confidence inanother successful year. OUR STRATEGY _
i Risadd rore | Page 17 ' ourSocial section of ESG | Page 35

CFO STATEMENT -0 dersora Srowp 4

GubLGTuySTy

L - A . Read more online |
https://www.personalgroup.com/about-us/aur-leadership-team
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Group Chief Executive's Statement

¥ | have a
great deal of
satistfaction on
looking back
on a pivotal
vear for Personal

Group.99

Deborah Frost
Group Chief Executive
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Group Chief Executive's Statement continued

Dear Investor,

I have a great dea. of satisfaction on ooking back on g
pivota: year for Personal Group. In 2022, we came out of
the pandemic and built on 2027's work Inthe restarting of
the engme of the business. We have delivered a strong
year of new business development, Insurance bock
growth and expansion in our key mar<et focus of Smail
and Medium Business.

In a year when many businesses have issued profil warnings,
pounical turbulence has spilled over into financial markets,
and inflation has deeply affected many peopie in the UK,
ram very proud of how my team have been rebuillding the
busmess with double digit growth in many key areas of our
toox of recurring revenue Annualised Premium Income
ends the year 15% ahead D* last year's close, new client
nurrhers are up 17% and we have hit ou- Sage channel target
of 50,000 paying employees from 2,8G0 companies,

Sales and operational review

Affordable insurance

2022 was always goirg Lo be a year of lower profit,
prirearily because our tistorical normal mvestment in
our field salesinsurance tearm has been set agdinst lower
premiumvalues, as a result of the pandemic, Shghtiy higher
claims ratios this year were expected oGamst previous
years of low NHS activity but have remained stable.
However, this has been a year of bests best annual
individual performance ever by a field sates colleague,

NEW CLIENT WINS ACROS55 THE GROUP

107

(2091 86!

best ever month in November 2022, and best ever
December 2022, Our new insurance sales of £8.5m wero
up 158% on 2021and at the highest level scen since 2018
These achieverments are set against a backdrop of industnal
action and staff shortages in our clients, which means our
site visits have 1o be professional and creditile i building
employee engagement for our clients, as well as offering
key mnsurances tor our policyhoiders, Over 50% of client
employees that we presant our insurance policies to
chese to buy our insurances on the day we meet them
which emphasises the value perceived in our products.
The majority of our policyhoiders elect to pay through their
payroil on aweekly or monthiy basis, these policies typically
have a lifetime value of around five years  so business
wrnitten ir 2022 builds momentum for the future

Benefits platform

Our new business and acCount management teams
for Enterprnise clients have also had success Lhis year.
Qur overallclient retention rate remains extremely high
for the benefits business wherg, we retained 164 clients
N year (95% retention), and added 22 new ones.

The tive year deal signed with Sage 1n February highlights
the value that both partners place on the relationship,
with us hitting our target of 50,000 paying employees by
the end of 2022, This shows growth of 187% from £1.6m
ARR end 2021 to L3.0M ARR end 2022.\We are now actively
seeking other external partners, towiden our reach,

and build furtber ARR streams

ANNUALISED NEW BUSINESS PREMIUM

w@.WB

(2027 £3./m
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Pay and reward

since the acquisition of QCG N July 2022, the Pay and
Reward division has continued to develop, with cross
selling of innecto Digitas and Hapi platfarms, and the
bringing on of new clients. The division now serves 174
active ciients, although as i1s the nature of consultancy,
these clients cycucaily move on, as projects are completed.
We have been pleased with the retention of Innecto Digital
products, covering Job Fvaluation, Pay 8enchmarking
ard Pay Review software. Our blended retention rate 1s
87% against a target of 75%, with 12 new clients added.

Other owned benefits: Let's Connect

cet's Connect has experienced a challenging year

the backdrop of Industnal unrest in their biggest client,
Royat Mail Group affected our marketing campaigns as well
as the ability of striking werkers to afford new technology
items. we have recognised that this willimpact this area of
the business going forwards and accordingly determined
to take a prudent approach and fully impaired the value of
goodwiit associated with 1t as a result. Notwithstanding
this, other Let s Connect clients have performed well,
emphasising the cost- of -living henefit for employees

N bemng able to spread the cost of technology purchases
without the direct interest charges and credit checks

that they face un the High Street. Some stock shortages
have affected sales in the year, but this has significantly
improved in companson to the last couple of years

SEB ANNUALLY RECURRING REVENUE

mw.o_ﬁ

(2027 £1.7m!
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Overview

. . .
Group Chief Executive’s Statement continued
Future outlook
Our business 1s now significantly strenger and more ‘ ‘ we jm<® mx_umjama
diversifted than 2019, our last year of trading pre .
pandemic. Previousty the business mainly eperatedin | our ﬁmmﬂj ﬁO Q:nﬁmﬂm jﬁ
our heartlands of lower wage, hourly peid employees; , sectors of the m00303<
food production, transport, care hones, warehousing .
and distribution, Whilst our Lore business plays a - mzmm, the UCU:O and
very impartant role in our future, as we seroutin our i mxl_uCUEﬂ mmﬁﬁo_,m_ WDQ
strategic roadmap in 2019, we have expanded our reach i . .
todifferent sectors of the economy  SME's, the public “ mm—mjma m..jU_.O<mmm in
and ex pubuc sectors, and salaned e ployees inthe ﬁjm U2<mﬁm mmnﬁoﬁ. ‘ '
private sector Thiswidens the Group s platform ard
mar<et opporturity for growthin the future, and our Deborah Frost

nvestrment in sales and marketing and technology 1s

now bearing frait in the number of new chients we are
engaging with and delivering for Lnder.ying organic

growth in 2027 will lead to increased zBITDAIn 2023

and seyond, as our business model s irainly based on
recurring contracts, whether with SMEs, insurance '
podcyholders or cur major Enterprise clients.,

we also continue to search for acquisitive growth that
willincrease sharehclder value. Awngside the smali
acquisition made In year, we have continued Lo review
selected acquisition opportunities against a clearly
defired critena of identifying businesses that would be
capabe of adding comp.ementary, €armings accretve
non organic growth.

Whilst we Pave planned for 2023 1o be another difficuls

year for the cconomy, tradirg ir 2023 ~as started

posit vely ard we are confident our offer resonates with I
our target markets, and we will continue to see growth
over the forthcoming years, |

Deborah Frost
Grow s Chief Dxecutive

24 Mercn 2023

Strategic
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Investing in the future

In 2022 we continued to make
investment that will help us deliver
future growth and evolve our offering
to our customers

£5Im  £0.8m

INVESTEDIN THE ACQUISITION INVESTED IN HAP| 2.0, DUE TO
CO5TS FOROUR FACE-TO-FACE LAUNCHIN 2023
INSURAMCE SALES TEAM

£1.0m

INVESTED IN THE ACQLNSITION
QF QCG

Q¥ Whilst some of this investment impacts
our in-year profits, we recognise its
importance to enable us to deliver on
our growth strategy. §§

Deborah Frost

eed mge wnbing |
https.//www. personalgroup.com/about-us/our-story
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| Our Business Model

Improving the lives of the UK workforce.
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We are building on our success with a clear
threeyear strategy.

We continue ta focus on buiding a basiness with room to grow in the medium and long term and have

Our medium-term

aspirations

Qver 80% employee
engagement

graot place o work

Qver 75% customer
approval rating

great to work with

Serving >1.5m
employees

makimg u difference

Drive in-year
premium income
over £35m
protecting the
unorotected

Unlocking
EBITDA growth

Personal Group Holdings Plc

Our Vision

A winning team building a brighter future for the UK workforce, supporting over 1.5m

employees by 2025

Where we play
TIER1

SMESs (10-250 employees)

We have a market-leading

partnership with Sage with amb
ptans far growth in the SME market.

We wilt add other partners
direct-to-market offer

How we win

Through Hapiflex we offer a bespoke

benefits solution to UK-based
companies with a sophisticated
full-service affer: consuttancy, salary
sacrifice and other third-party solutions

and a

TIER3

Enterprise/Public Sector

Our core markets offer company-
paid wellbeing benefits and employes-
paid insurance to UK-based
enterprise clients between 2,000
and 140,000 employees

We help people thrive in life and in work - ourselves and our clients’ employees

> Wemake 1t easy for our clients and prospects to choose us, by creating a market leading of fer,
meetng dll Reward and Benefits requirements

» Our proposition, onboarding, and ifetme service for B28 clients1sindustnal strength and scalable

> Our satisfyingly simple insurance products are backed by outstanding claims and service experence

> We make 1L easy to do businass with us through any channel

tad oLt what our business will need to be to meet our aspirations.

Our Capabilities

High performing
customer, sales, and
client service teams

Leading-edge
technology

End to end
processes that
work every time

Supplying products
and services people
need to help them
thrive in life

Purpose-driven Board
and SLT with great 7

supporting teams

Effective i
governance 7
|
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- Our Strategy continued

‘How we wi

We are focused on building a business with room 1o grow in the medium and long term and have

DRIVING INSURANCE SALES THROUGH
NEW AND EXISTING CHANNELS

Our unigque sales approach helps employers
communicate their key messages about employee
wellbeing and the key benefits they offer through
aface-to-face conduct with their employees,
both introducing them to their benefits package
on Hapi, and offering the chance to buy insurance
there and then.

o ar
ve dealh
rsmile

OurmsGlance pretdacts bravde neac~ of n
LN TY LT DI OV 0L Wehio doan't
1M S LUTVICE O S CK Ay TIrum 1T7eir 0ms Oy
peod.
unceny T rg
Pregeneu
fu

LA A STV

age 19

=2 >

deliver.

2.

TRANSFORMING REWARD
AND BENEFITS

OQur clients often first come to us for consulting help
with pay, recognition or bonus issues which we are
able to address through our Pay & Reward division,
comprising Innecto and QCG. We are then able to deepen
the relationship; offering our range of products,
including the Innecto Digital suite, Hapi benefits
platform, Let's Connect and insurance products.

Ouremp.oyee oerefits app-fus! solulicr, -ap, s amenkol-
leading cmployce ergagement pstfurm we ch 2o lerges
rlas tuly customised are wiic-lanelles witn ther

own hespake mix of venelits and branding, with bapi lex

amed at mare sophistic ated cheat users who want te be

ool ter fiexeie nener ity o b remployees

Strategic
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need to look Like to meet our aspirations

3.

ACCELERATING QUR
SME OFFER

Qur SME version of Hapi enables us to target smatl
businesses with a standardised product. We currentty
deliver to this traditionally hard to access market through
our partnership with Sage with our proposition of 'Sage
Empleyee Benefits (SEB)"

S0 B pre-populated w th key heaefits fo

mPIoYeTs
Godn
Ceplayee Assistacce Programnte anc of cred 1o Sagc s
et zose with ammibio froe Tl

tgatiess sachas aistount affers onhing LGP

(J FormctenToe gt o | Page 21
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Strategic Progress

2023 Plans

> Continugus improvement of .

DRIVING INSURANCE
SALES THROUGH NEW AND
EXISTING CHANNELS

2022 Progress

» Close examination of our policyholder journey with key
customer decision points assessed, and interventions
made. We've seen first 12 month retention increase over
two years from <50% to ¢.58% with more changes to effect
change still being developed and trialled.

Return toa strong and fully functioning face-to-face field

sales team, which delivered the highest levels of new
business seen since 2018, with records broken for best
month and best individual fult year performance.

Delivery and productivity of face-to-face team enhanced
through revised organisational design, improved planning
approach and more focused performance management
nfrastructure.

> Launched digitat insurance offer to 34 additional ctients.

> Introduction of Net Promoter Score (NPS) for both

the Customer Relations Team and Customer Loyalty
Team to enable feedback and continuous improvement
opportunities relating to our customer experience.

Prepared for the implementation of the FCA Consumer
Duty, ensuring that our insurance products continue to
provide value 1o policyholders which willin turn mean that
we retain our loyal customer base as well as attract new
customers. Workstreams have beenin place to ensure that
our customer communications and supporting customer
service are of the quality expected by the Duty.

productivity of face-to-face sales
team through introduction of ‘New
Ways of Working' which encompass
enhanced leadership capability

and improved planning and client
engagement, through to sales
Leam wellbeing.

Furtherimprovement of penetration
with existing clients through
optimisation of the digitat vs face-to-
face channets using other activities
such as webhinars and roadshows with
employer suppart.

Progress opportunities to partner with
third-party insurance providers to
offer alternative products suitable
for the widening client base.

Further work on retention journey
from initial point of sale through
the first year of the policy, with
particular focus on retention during
the first 14 day early cancellation
and the opportunity to switch to

an alternative payment method at
the point a policyholder leaves their
employer and their payroll payment.

Testing and monitaring of consumer
autcomes to enable the continued
assessment of whether customers are
receiving good outcomes from their
relaticnship with us. This process of
continupus iImprovement will mean we
can evidence compliance with the FCA
Consumer Duty as well as continuing
Lo improve customerretention and the
attractiveness of aur praducts
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Strategic Progress continued

TRANSFORMING REWARD
AND BENEFITS

> 2022 has been challenging for HR teams, as we have seen
high a levei of wage demands, industrial unrest, recruitment
difficuities and talent shortages. It is unsurprising that
clients are reaching out for advice and support as they
guide their companies through this new landscape and we
frave seen an uplift in consultant work as we help clients
through changes.

The division grew 82% in consultancy income.
101 new clients.

47 clients on Innecto Digital products with retention rate
of 87% and 17 holding more than one product.

Annual recurring revenue on surveys and Innecto Digital
products of £0.66m (£0.43m Dec 21).

Hapi has also seen double digit grawth as benefits platform
ARR has grown from £1.55m to £2.00m. We are seeing new
clients on-boarding, as well as existing clients deepening
their relationship with us by widening the benefits they
provide through us to their employees. We've seen an uplift
in underlying commissians for third party providers, such
as Cycle to Work schemes, grow by 158% in 2022 with these
schemes cantinuing into 2023 and beyond. Dame Kelly
Holmes, who joined as our Chief Wellbeing Ambassador for
2022, has introduced her wellbeing solution, Transform,
far our clients expanding our unique benefits offer.

2023 Plans

> 2023 will see the launch of
Hapi 2.0 which s our first
major redevelopment of the
platform since tts launch 1n
2016. The new platformis
upcated with improved look
and feel, but also better Ml
improved functionality for
reward and recognition and
greater ability to integrate
other third-party suppliers.

> We have centrahised all
Group Marketing functions
to improve productivity and
knowledge sharing across
the Group which allows us to
concentrate our efforts on
specific B2B and B2C marketing
as different channals, driving
both employee actrvation andg
usage on the Hapi platform
and spearheading our B2B
business develepment across
Pay, Reward and Benefits.

> We are actively looking for
acquisition targets to widen
and grow our benefit offer
beyond our heartlands of
haurly-paid employees

Strategic
Report

Financiat

Statements
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Strategic Progress continued

ACCELERATING OUR
SME OFFER

2022 Progress ,

> Following the initial years of
development with our Sage
partnership we have been delighted
at the growth in new customers and
the steady reductionin our blended
churn number, All SaaS businesses
require both, and with the
introduction of a new look and feel
to the product inJuly the division -

: is growing very satisfactority.

2023 plans

> SEBwillbe refreshed in 2023
atongside the new Hap1 2.0 to
include an upgraded reward and
recagnition function and better
M| provision for business owners.

, We have introduced new SLAs
_ with our sales colleagues in Sage,
m so our lead quality has improved, |
i and pipeline is staying steady.

_ > We have started discussions with
other prospective partnersin
different markets that we hope
to see come to fruiticn in 2023,

> We arg alsg working on the
development of a premium version
of SEB ta include higher tevels of
functionality and awider product
range to attract larger customers,

Voucher sales topped £5m for SEB
customers, showing the high level
of engagement and value that

, employees place on the pilatform,

> We will continue to continuously
improve end to end custoamer
Journey to Improve lifetime value
of chients guing onto the platform.
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. Key Performance Indicators

The Group meticulously reviews its performance
‘measured across a number of KPIs.

!

Lead Indicators

L AN ctoar straiegy fordehver nglorg-tonm susia aole growlh werdertbied a number o' lead nd caors, theampiovenient of wh chw Lenanle us 1o grow both our tevereue and prefitg
ane g fualarevalue Tor the basiriess
31December 31 December
Lead indicator Why we chose it 2022 201
Unigue chient number Winnung new cuents and retaiming existing ones will be key to us being able to grow our business. 502 s
¢ Number of clients served by two Encouraging cross-seliing across the Group will enable us to achieve Increased penetration acress our 128 132
1
_ or more lings of business existing chignts as well as making us an important part of clients' employec wellbeing proposition,
. Totalnumber of employees to Increasing the number of employees we provide services to will be fundamental to us achieving our growth 1,432,670 1210940
_ whom one or more of gurservices  aspirations as well as helping us achieve cur wision of being a winning team creating a brighter future for the
i aremade avalable UK workfarce.
_ -
_ Activated users onHapland Sage ircreasing the number of activated users on Hapi and Sage Employee Benefits will help us drive greater 582,733 FEL XD
| Employee Benefits return on tne Group's SaaS digitally enabied products.
: Number of insurance payers Re-invigorating growth ininsurance payers, together with a consistent focus on retention, will help us increase 94,877 BEREV
_ the s1ze of our insurance business, We have chosen to use payers instead of our historic measure of policies to
. reflect that the majority of our premiums are collected through payroll deductien and our retention rates are
_ largely determined by the actions of the individual payer,
UNIQUE CLIENT NUMBER NUMBER OF INSURANCE PAYERS ACTIVATED USERS ON HAP|

AND SAGE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

502 04877 582733

(2021:38/) (2021:8314/) (2027:%39,057)
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Key Performance Indicators continued

Other KPIs

Strategic [ALELTE]
Report Governance Statements

maddition 1o our lead indicators we ConLnue Lo medsure agdinst 4 vanety of additional KPts both across the Group and within the various business segments.

2022 £28.0m
| 2021 £24.4m

C2020 C o a27am |

| 2019  £30.3m |

© ANNUALISED PREMIUM INCOME1

£28.0m

(2021: L24 4m;

YEAR ON YEAR
" INSURANCE RETENTION

331«

(2077 80.7%;

g9.0m

ANNUALISED NEW BUSINESS PREMIUM2

w@ m_j

(2027:£3.7m)]

—Noz hw.ma_
r2020

{208 |

ANNUALISED RECURRING REVENUE
FOR SAAS LICENCES3

_mm @3

(2021:£3.6m)

bozo21 _24.5% |
w0 0 2a4%
w19 2219 |
CLAIMS RATIO
L (2027 24.5%)
Jonm 3355
e wao
cme T aam
|
' LC ORDERS
21 wm;mm

23
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' Acquisition of Quintige Consulting Group (QCG)

. On1st July Personal Group

QCG was foundedin 2000 . Wwe were delighted to acquire QCG in 7 . . ]
: July  add bstantial knowt ,

e I e pyrchased Quintige Consulting

HR consultancy business , Mozwc_rnmnh_maﬁ_%%ﬂ.m:w business i i n "

m:ﬂvo_..nm:mms_mn_m range af | , has a similar fingerpnnt o Innecto, , _ m—:OCU A Omm V m —.mma:\d@

public and private sector .| batoperatesin different markets .

organisations. It provides | speaifically Rall, Constructior, m_\j_UFOu\mm mxcmﬂ_mjﬁm WDQ
reward consultancy, for a cash

?
ﬁ

7 consideration of £1m.

consultancy supporting
employee experience, reward
and recognition and has a
strong pay benchmarking
survey practice.

{information Commussioner Office,
Bar Standards Counciljand Museum
and Leisure sectors. The team,

led by Juan Novoa, has a strong
reputation in building long term

| 1 relationships and providing advice I

onreward strategy, pay structures,
pay benchmarking and actually run : |
; specialist pay surveys, with over 90 ,
companies participating in 2022, |

Our goais for the division include
widening opportunities for the
Innecto Digital products INTO our new
client base, sharing knowledge and
evolving our benefits provision to
meet the needs of the new clients
we've acquired.
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¥ The Group
continues to benefit
from an increasing
proportion of
recurring revenues,
providing high
levels of visibility
for momw 9

mmmmmm
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Chief Financial Officer's Statement continucd

Group revenue

Group revenue for the year ncreased 16% to £86.7m (2021
£74 5mjreflecting growth across all éreas of the business,
with the exception of the Other Own ad Benefits division
(Let s Cannecty

With COVID 19 lockdowns, whick impacted our ability 1o
carry cut our tradihioral face Lo face selling of insurance,
firmly behind us, ourinsurance segment returned to
growth as anticipated and as at 31 December 2022 we have
aninsurance book of £28 Om Annualised Premium Income
(AP (31 Decermber 2021 £24.4m), the majonity of which s
renevvabie or weekly or monthwy rollirg contracts

External income from our irternally developed Benefits
Platform increased by over A5% year on year, following on
from the 40% growth seen in the prev ous year, This growth
15 & resdlt of cur continued expansion into the SME sector
through our partnership with Sage ard growth in our own
HADI platform sales. Growth in our pay and reward segment
reflected the acquisition of Quintige Consulting Group (QCG)
at the start of the second half of the year but alsc growth
in corsultancy income and digital subscription income in
‘nnecto Annual Recurring Revenae [ARRY across all the

Group's digital platforms now stands 21 £5.6m {2021, £3.6m).

Sales of tecknology and other products to employers
as part of thair employee berefit provision through the
Group's subsidiary, _et’s Connect, fell short of 2027,
prirarily as a result of industriai action in 1ts key client
imMpacting its peak trading periad in Q4

GROUP REVENUE

me@.NB

{2027 £/4.5m}

Income from voucher resale through the benefits

platform alsoc grew significantly in the year and, whilst this
predominantly represents pass through revenue, it does
continue to demaonstrate the vatue that our Benefits Platform
provision ¢an bring to our clients and therr employees.

Adjusted EBITDA’

Adjusted EBITDA for tha year was £6.0m (2027 L6.1™),
Adjusted eBl1JAremained in line with last year but reflected a
changing mexin contribution from the varigus business areas.

As anticipated, we saw a reduced contribution from

the insurance business, as we invested heavily In the
acquisition costs of the field sales team as it re established
tsedf topre COVID levels. Offsetting this we saw increased
contribution from both cur Pay & Reward and Benefits
Platform businesses In Line with thetr increased revenues,
with the cantnbution from Other Owned Benefits
remalming broadly ftat year onyear Qutside of the core
segments, group admimistration ard central costs reduced
inline with a return to more nermabised leve's of sates and
marketing spend

wWe believe adjusted EBITDA* remains the most apprepniate
measure of performance for our business, reflecting the
underlying profitability of the business and removing the
impact of one off items anising from past ecquisitions
on the Croup's reported profit before tax The definition
remains unchanged from previous years,

ADJUSTED EBITDA

mm@OB

(2027 L6.1m)
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2022 201
Group results £'000 £'000
Revenue 86,653 fA523
Adjusted mw_‘._dbx 6,010 . VR
Operating profit o aess oan
Arn‘.mw‘u‘\ Profit before tax o ..Nm..nm......wul. I, HM.U
Tax (493) 1745
{Loss) / Profit for the year (2,253) 3,594

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Proht before tax {6,760} 1,342
Finance costs T T
Corporate mng:_m_w“o: noﬁm:‘ 47 -
Depreciation 1,052 8Eh
amortisation of scquired
intangibles 238
Amortisation(other) 548
maongz rmpairment*** 10,575
Share-based umv..ﬁ,.:msp expense 201 1LY
Adjusted EBITDA* - ||m|.opo ) H051

U
st Ly guede |

Jur.s

o ]

N I N A RN [ N et tan at T

EARNINGS PER SHARE

23.2

(2021;11.5p)
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- Chief Financial Officer's Statement continued

Sarah Mace Chief Financial Otficer

Loss before and after tax

Statutory loss before tax for the year was 6 8m (2027
profit of £4 3mj. This reflects ar operating profit of £3.8m
rogether with a £10.6m impairment cirarge relating to the
goondwill balance associated with L et's Connect. Despite the

profitability of Lets Connect being maintained at a similar
leve 1o 2027, the operating landscape at 1ts key client has
charged and the current salary sacnfice technology scheme
they runis no longer appropriate for tiemnits current
tormar Asa result the future revenuc stream for this area
of the business has sigmficartly changed end an impairment
charge has been registered [he tax charge for the year was
£0.5m {2027 £0 /m), and loss after tax forthe year £7.3m
12021 protitof £3.6mj.

Excluding the non cash impairmert charge the profit
beforetax s £3.8m,

EPRS
Resulting earnirgs per share was (23.2p) (202711 5p),

excluding the non cash impairment charge this would
have been "0 6p. The calculation is detailed in Note 12

Q¥ Our strong balance sheet means we remain
well positioned for future growth. 99

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final ordinary dividend of
5.3 pence per share, making a totdl ordinary dividend for
2022 of 10.6 pence per share. The Board has considered
the level of dividend in the context of the non cash
impairment of goodwill, alongside the underlying growth
seen during the year and the continued confidence in the
Group s business model and prospects

Balance sheet

As at 31 December 2022 the Group's balance sheet
remained strong. with cash and deposits of £18 7m (20271:
£22 9mjand ne debt. This reduction reflects both the c€1m
purchase of QCGand a £1 5m equity investment {vaiued at
£13mwithin Financial Investments) alongside investment
of c&1min our propnetary software. The Group's main
underwnting subsidiary, Personal Assurance Plc (PA),
canuNUes to mantain a conservative solvency ratio of 333%
funaudited], with a £8.7m surplus over its Solvency Capital
Requirement of £3 5m the Company Fas consistently
maintained a prudent position in relation to (s Solvency Il
requirament. Bersonal Assurance [(Guernsey) Limited,

the Group's subsidiary which underwrites the death benefit
policy, also maintained a healthy sclvency ratio of 312%
funaudited), under its own reqime

Financial

Governance Statements

Alternative performance measure

Adjusted EBITDA, which is referenced
threughout this document, is an alternative
(non-Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{non-GAAP}} financial measure used by

he Group when reviewing performance,
evidenced by executive management bonus
performance targets. As such, this measure
ts impartant and should be considered
atongside the IFRS measures.

Adjusted EBITDA takes into account
adjustments, in addition to the standar
IFRS measure, which are considered to be
non-underlying te trading activities and
which are significantin size. For example,
goodwillimpairment is a non-cash item
relevant to historic acquisitions; share-based
payment expenses are anon-cash item
which have historicatly been significantin
size but can fluctuate based on judgmental
assumptions made about share price and
have noimpact on total equity; corporate
acquisiticn costs and reorganisation costs
are both one-off items which are not

rred in the regular course of business.

N
FURTHER INFORMATION
ACQUISITION OF QCG
Reac mone | Page 24

CE STATEMENT 1o~
Croole
Reac

oyt

vt Page13

KPIs
Frad-ae | Page 22
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Chief Financial Officer's Statement continued

The Group continues to see an increasing contribution from
Its non insurance activities.

Segment

Description

Income Streams

Pay &
Reward

Benefits
Platform

Affordable
Insurance

Other Owned
Benefits

Provisian of a full rewsard service to employers
through the Group's Jay and reward subsidiaries,
Innecto and QCG

Provision of a benefits platform to employers both
directly and through channel partners, currently
Sage for our SME salLtion

Adirectly owned benefit, provision of simple insurance
products underwritten by Group subsidianes

Other directly owned benefits: sale of technology
and other products to employers as part of their
employee benefit provision through the Group's
subsichary, Let's Conrect

Consultancy, industry surveys and digital platform
subscriptions

Digital platform subscriptions, commissions from
third party benehits which sit on the platform

Premium incoeme

Retall sales directly to employers, commission
recerved from the intreduction of third party finance

Segmental results

“he Sroup reports across four core segments as detailed in the table above.

For each of the segments, the adjusted FBITDA” contribution comprises the gross profit of that segment together with
dny costs associated directly with the operation of that segment. Sales and marketing costs and cther central costs that
are rot directly atinbetabie 10 a segment, such s Finance, HR, depreciation, amertisation and Group Board expenses are
not allocated to asegment and dare shawn separately as ‘Group Admin & Central Costs'

We believe this presentation provides transparency to enabie the impact of top line growth on adjusted EBITDA®
contribution for each area of the busiress to be better understood.

Strategic
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Dec-22 Dec-21
Revenue £'000 £000
Pay and Reward 2,008 17360
Benefits Platform 4,819
Affordable Insurance 25,257
Other Owned Benefits 16,800
Oﬁ:m.ﬂ 382
Revenue pre voucher sales 49,264 44661
Voucher resale 37,389 26,457
Total Revenue 86,655 1,503
Dec-22 Dec-21
Adj EBITDA Contribution £'000 £'000
Pay & Reward 495 0
Benefits Platform 2,866 2,004
Affardable Insurance 9,032 11,022
Other OE:mQ‘Wme:S 664 730
Group >n_‘:_:m\nm::mwﬁo.ﬂm (7,107) 8,224,
Other 160 179
Total Adj EBITDA 6,010 6,094
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Chief Financial Officer's Statement conlinued

Pay & Reward

nrnectc's stigng performance n 2027 continded nto 2022,
with consultancy Income Jp 34% as the battle for talent
continued and demand from HRDs looking toretam and
attract thewr employeesincreased Digital subscrniption
inceme from s proprnietary HR solutions a'so increascd by
19% on the previcus year. Annualised Recurring Revenrue
on these products stood 4t £6.5m a5 at 31 December 2022
2021 04m).

The acguisiion of QCG in Juwy 2022 also added to the
Croup's Pay & Reward offening with the expectations
set put at acquisition achieved in the second half of the
year Whilst operating in a simalar market to Innecto,
QCC operates it different market sectors, has a strong
presence in pay surveys and provides opportunities to
Cross sell across both client bases.

Collectively this divisior achieved revenue of £2 Om
12021 £1.2m] and EBITDA of £0 5m (2027, £0 3m} of which
QCG contributed £0.4m of revenue ard £0.1m of FRITDA
postacquision

Benefits platform

Revenue from digital platform subscr ptions and
commissions from third party benefit suppiiers which sit on
the benefits platform rose to £4.8min 2022 (2021: £3.3m).

Subscriptions for our enterprise platform, Hapl, gained
ORGP 2022 et ARR oM TR pralfoTTTOmCTRESITIY
by 29% to £2 0m (2027 L1.6m) during the course of the
year and are expected to benefit furtherin 2023 with the
refired and refreshed Hapi 2 0,

Our expansion into the SME market also continued 1o grow
at pace, with Sage Employee Benefits, the Group's SME
proposition being taken to market throughits partner Sage.
Having signed a new five -year contractin February 2022
andwith an updated version of the platform to be Llaunched
In 2023, we are anuicipating further growth in its ARR which
stoed at £3.0m at the end of the year (2027, £1.6m).

As at 31 December 2022 the ARR from Benefits Platform
subscriptions across all channels stood at £5.0m (2027 £3.2m).

Adjusted EBITDA contrbution of £2.8m (2027 2 1m)
increased in line with increased revenue but also
demonstrates theincreased margins avallable as this
area 0f the busingss scales up.

Affordable insurance

Premium income from the Group’s Core INsurance business
increased by £0 6m to £25.3m [2027: £24.7m).

the strong opportunity for our face to face sales activity,
driven by employers wishing to re engage with their
workforce post COVID 19, has given opportunity to
repuild the sales team and grow the insurance book back
towards levels seen pre COVID. £9.5m of new nsurance
saigs were written durning the year (2021 3.7m)which,
together with continded strong retention rates for existing
policyholders, meant that as at 31 December 2022 we have
£28.0m (2027 £24 Arm) of Annuatsed Premium Income,
the majornty of which are renewable on weekly or monthly
rotling contracts.

Strategic
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Claims ratics for the year increased to 2/.7% (KPI's) (2021
24.5%] higher than histonc narms as hospital admittances
and visits increased post COVID 19 lockdowns, As the NHS
starts to address their long waiting lsts, we anticipate this
continuing in the short to medium term.

Adusied EBITDA contnbution of £9.0m for the year
12021: £11.0m), reflects the increased premiums and claims
costs but also the ncreased acquisition ¢osts of the fietd
sales team as we invested heavily to re-established it at
pre Covid levels. The benefit of the related newinsurance
sales wiltbe seenm future years.

Other owned benefits: Let's Connect

Let’s Caonnect, which provides technology and other
products to employers as part of their employee benefit
QrOVISION, Saw revenues decrease 1o £16.8m (2027 £18.2m),
although margin improvements helped mitigate the
impact onits EBITDA contribution of £0.7m (2027 £0.7m)
The industrial action which took place at its key client

n the second half of the year impacted its peak trading
penod In Q4 and has led to a fullimpairment af the £10.6m
goodwill balance associated with its acquisition at group
level(see note 14)

Group administration expenses and central
costs

Group adrministration and central costs of £71m (2021 £8.2m)
reflected areturn to a more normalised level of sales and
marketing spend post the additionat investment made in
2021 alongside a reduced lavei of bonus costs

Sarah Mace
Chief Financial Officer

27 March 2023
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Effective risk management is central to our culture and key to achieving

our strategic objectives.

Oversight

[he Boerd s responsible for overseeing and maintaining
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk mandgement
and interndgicontrol systems as well és identifying the
nature and extent of the principle risks the Group s willing
1o take tn achieving its strategic objectives, ncluding the
setting of the overal, risk appetite and tolerance levels

The Board delegates gversight of risk management tothe
Risk and Compliance Committee, who in turniregularly
report up to and make recommendations to the Board,

The Risk strategy, appetite and framewsork are sel outin
a suite of policies covering the materiel nsks which exist
N the business, @ach polcy 1s subject to annual review
and approval. We employ an Enterpnse Risk Management
framework [ERM] to manage ait types of risk which,
alongswe our Own Risk and Solvency Assessment activity,
enables reasorable assurance to be previded to the 3oard
and external stakeholders that the Greupis achieving

Its risk managerrent andinternal controls objectives,

Business Area Owner

LA EVHE I EORY IR T Sl TR P ol

> P alere o e

The effectiveress of the nsk management system s also
ndependently assessed penodically by the outsourced
Internal Audit Function in therr rale as Third Line of defence,
with the results reperted to the Audit Commitiee

The dcard s satisfled that the processes set out above
erable the Group to effectively identify, assess and
mdnage currentand emerging risks and allow the required
focus on risk awareness, ethicai behaviour and the fair
treatment of customers and colleagues

Risk management approach

The risk environment 1s managed in a two-pronged approach:
top downrisks that threaten the strategic plan, and bottom
up financial, operational, regulatory and non-insurance risks
which ere identified within business areas

Therisks are captured on arisk register where the inherent
nskis identified, and the residual risk rated, after identifying
operational controls and mtigating actions.

LV RGNS VT IRRVIVIRIENTS
Framework

> Ik e

Lot ang o e Boaig

> PrSvide ) ary e

Lt e 5o g e ace

> Aenuran, e of TPe o Fro vere sy or oo s nd et cures

Resporsibility to maintain the reqister as well as to
implement and monitor mitigating actions sits with each
member of the Serior Leadership ieam. Fach month a Risk
Forum is held where the Senior Leadership Team discuss
the key nsks, both current and emerging, with mitgating
activities and timelines for implementation agreed.

We operate a 'three lines of defence' approach to define
risk management within roles and responsibilities,

The Group's risk governance is overseen by a Risk function
led by the Head of Risk, with independence assured
through direct and separate access to the Chair of the Risk

and Compliance Committee. in early 2022 we held a Risk
warkshop, iInvolving all members of the Board and the
Senor Leadershig, to reassess how the principal risks of
the business had changed in unewith the Group's refined
strategic plan as we emerged from COVID-18.

Internal Audit (outsourced)

> rsurange of tne etfego

Lo the Buareoane Ta the Al

> Advino yial
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“Risk Management continued

Key risks

[wath an rmpact of
£500k+ within the
next year]

Current and emerging factors

Financial

Strategic

Report Statements

Mitigating activities

31

As part of that warkshop, weidentified 0 'Risk Therres' and have realigned our nisk registers in line with these. Duning the year the Risk Team worked alongside the risk champions
withir the various busiress areas to Felp them identify their own key risks in line with this revised approach

Change
in risk
exposure

Customer and Key
Client Risk

Ervvaironmental,
€CINOMIC Or
regulatory change
impact protit

Technology ¢ Cyber

Products are nat
designed to meet
customer/client

recuirements

Potential to lose a Key Client or Partner that would impact the Group's ability
to meet (s strateqic ohjectives

Inflation, nising interest rates, tax rises, andncreased costs hegatively impact the
spending power of the Group's corporate clients and custamers, teading to them
10 spendtess on the Group's preducts and services or canceiLher contracts or
IAsurance cover

Candidate-led 19b markel means it 1s harder to retain staff and more challenging
torecruit, with employers having to pay increased salaries to attract top talent

Ltack of technolagical capabilities infrastructure, systems, solutions, products
and people skilis and knowtedge) could impact the competitiveness of the Group's
products and services

Weak approach to security could facilitate cyber-atiacks or data breaches,
leading to lack af trust and reputationat damage

Risk that we fail 1o deliver innovative or desirable products and services

Lhanging demands and needs af consumers in the personal iInsurance market

Relationsnip management ot key clients and partners,
Farly renewal/extension of key contracts.

bayrotl stots for collection of insurance premuums buitt into contracts as ‘enduring’
wherever possible,

Clear go to market message around how the Group's offering can help employees
navigate through the 'cost of lving crisis’ through Lhe use of discounts and the Group's
‘value propostlions’ alongside wellbeing and the employee assistance programme
Engage with clients and prospective clients to help emplayers meximise the benefit
of theiremployee benefits programme to help atteact and retan staff

Qffer support to financtalty velnerable customers where appropriate

Remunerate with competitive market -based pay, and competitive rewards

and benetits alongside a learning culture with greal career opportunities,

Continue to offer a hytnd working palicy

Delivery of Haprversion 2.0
Recruitment of specialist talent and training and upskilling of staff.
1T systems reqularly tested for securily from attack

Recommendations from internat/external audits compteted in 2021 actioned,
including upgrade of our firewall anc Intreduction of a security incident and event
management system, mobile device management and data loss prevention software.

Investment inthe design. build and launch of tlap! 2 Q which will have an impreved
look and feel, better Ml iImproved functionality and greater abelity to integrate
third-party suppliers.

Annual product governance review of the imsurance products which considers

market and product rasearch, design, value, build, testing, ang launch and sales
channels Better analysis of M Lo help drive product enhancements and improve
supporting customer service

N\

Increased
2022

<o

No change

O

No change

v

Decreased
n 2022




Personal Group Holdings Ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2022 m :._Wu A V E

Environmental, Sociat and Governance

The business is moving

forward with a
strong ESG agenda.

A purpose-led Group

As 3 Group dnven Dy a passion and commitment to
improving people's health and we.be ng, £5G 1s at
the care 9f our busingss Our purpese 1S 1o protect the
unprotected and conrect the unconnacted. We exist
N order to create d posilive Impacl on society’

> brsunng there s an affordable, straight- forward way

fo- a8 UK workers to gair access to beatth insurance,

> Helping organisations provide fairand appropriate
remuneration and benefits to ther workforces.

> Supportirg the holistic we..being of people
mthe UK both atwork and at home

The progress that we make against our ESG goals 1s
therefore very important to us and a priority at Board
eve. To reflect this purpese, we report not only on
our SoCial goals, but also our Scrietal ones, wherein
we aim tomake a positive impact on society through
cur cfferings

We pride ourseives on daing the right thirg, a vatue that
15 shared throughout our éntire orgarisation. Just as

this drives our day to day work, itis also reflected in

how we operate as a business at all levels,

The Company's ESG strategy 15 overseen by Non
Executive Director Mana Darby Walker. Mara, together
with the support of the wider Board, s responsible for
developing appropriate polcies angd practices to ensure
that we continue 1o work towards our targets,

This responsibility 1s reflected ir the fact that
prograssicn against these targets s Linked to Senior
Executive and Board compensation, with 15% of the
2021 .ong Termincentive Plan Awards being subject
to the attamment of £SG targets,

Strategic
Report

Financial

Statements
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Environmental, Social and Governance continued

ENVIRONMENTA

While we are a

naturally low-
emission business,

we take a proactive
approach to

mitigating the
environmental
impact of our
operations and
supply chain.

TARGETS

>

v

A

v

Reduce Head Office 2019 carbun emissions by three tannes
per annum

Reduce 2018 fleet CO usage by 25+% by 2025
work towards becoming nel carbon neutral by 2031
No waste production target as waste 1s negligibie,

Wark on environmental policy for suppliers and partners
S ONYoINgG

Group Environmental Policy

Our Group Environmental 12clicy has beenr formed during
the year and acknow!edges our impact on the environment
and our comritments to preserving the environment in
which we operate, Including our expectations regarding
reporting, supplier credentials, waste management, and
the efficient use of resources.

Carbon emissions

Overalithe Group's CO, praduction tevels have increased

in the year. hisis due to the benefits from the solar panels
installed at our HQ being offset by our increased levels of
face 1o face seling from the mid point of the year and the
delayed delivery of lower emission CO vehicles for our fleets
due to globai shortages. These are now expected in H2 2023,

While we are a naturally low emission business,
monitoring and reducing our carbon emissions 1s core

to our environmental approach. Aside from meeting our
reporting obligaticns, we recogrise that as a global citizen
It 15 our responsibility to mimirise our carbon footprint.
We have reported our carbon ermissions n our Annual
Reports since 2027

We have installed solar panels at cur neadquarters, are
exarmining further energy efficiency INitiatives, and will be
moving to d renewable energy provider once the energy
market steadies

Strategic
Report
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The use of sglar panels at our headquarters have praven
successful in significantly lowering our Megawatt hours.
In 2022 13.4 Mwh of energy were generated which would
power 4.6 homes for ayear and equates to planting b7 trees.

Task-Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD)

we continue to monitor the guidance published by the
Mnancial Stability Board's Task Force on Climate- Related
FHinancial Disclosures {TCFD) on corporate disctosures
to enable stakeholders to better understand financial
exposures to cimate related nsks 1CFD aligned
disclosures will be mandatory for AIM listed companies
with over 500 UK staff from 2023, end 1t 15 not yet clear
when they wiil be mandatory for businesses of our size.

Remote working and business travel

Our carbon emissions and energy use were particularly low
during the COVID-19 pandemic, and we are aware that the
gradual return to the office and fewer limitations on travel
willinevitably increase energy and carbon expenditures.
Qur employees are supported in hybnd or fully remote
working arrangements.
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Environmental, Social and Governance continued
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Personal Group’s SECR Statement

Parcond, Croup recognises that our
operations have an envirerymental impact
and we are committed to momtonng and
redLCINg OLr 8missions yedr or yedr. We are
aware Of our reporting obligations under The
Companies Diractors’ leport] and Limited
Liab ity Partnerships (Energy and Carbon
Repory Requiations 2018

2022 performance

Qur carbor footprint “or the 2022 reportirg
year has been calculated based on our
anvironmentalimpact across Scope 7, 2 and
3satected categones; russIon scurces for
the UK only Qur erussions are presented
onbathalocation and market basis On a
location bawis our emissions are 528 LCO e,
which represents an average irpact of

"9 100 epor fullumre errployee, erdor a
market basis our ermissions are 532 100 o,
We have calculated emission intensity
Metrics on ar employee basis, which we
willmonitar to track performanrce n aur
subszguert envirgnmrental disclosures

iher=has been a significant year on
year rorease in locaten based Scope 2
eMIss0ns in 2022 (39%), due pnmarily to
increased activity as COVID restrictions
have eased, as well as an increase inthe
nurber of full nme employces (20%)

Asmallportior of the ncrease 1s alsodue
10 the acquisition of a new of fice n 2022
The ond of lockdown has also been the
driving factor in a notable increase n
ermisstons from both company cars and
employeg ownedvehiclas inyear on
Yedar camparisons.

While absolute emissions have increased
1N 2022, anincrease in headcount has meant
that the increasein emissions ntensity
(tCC e per FTE) has been less severe

Energy and carbon action

The enurety of the Group's fleet s up for
roenewal in 2022723 and so a review of what
vehicies wiil be allowed was completed
inyear The Croup, unfortunately, does
not believe that purely electiic cars are

ar option at this stage for its field sales
tearn due to the lack, for charging, of a
natiorwide infrastructure, Howaover, as a
mimimam. constraints on the CO emissions
of allvetucies teased were included in the
WRURIUT Due 10 the supply side pressuies on
new £ars in 2022 a number of leases needed
short term extensions whitst orders for new
vehicles were being fulfilled. At the ime
of writing the majonty of the Group's fleet
should be replaced by the end of H12023,

Strategic
Report
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The methodology used to calculate aur
greerhouse gas emissions ts (N accordance
with the requirements of the following
standards:

W

Wortd Resources Institute (WRI)
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol
trevised version).

A

Defra’s Environmentat Reporting
Guidelines: Including Streambned Energy
and Carbon Reporting requirements
(Mar 19).

Emissions and energy usage

Governance

Financial

34

Statements

> UK office emissions have been calculated
using the Defra 2022 issues of the
conversion tactor repository.

Foltowing an operationa: control approach
to defining our organisational boundary,
our calculated GHC emissions from business
activities in the UK fallwithin the reporting
penod st January 2022 to 31st December
2022, using the reporting period of

Ist January 2020 to 31st December 2020
and January 2021to 31st December 2021

for comparison,

lable 1 Frergy and carbon disclosures for reporting year Allumits tCO e unless otherwise stated.

Emissions source 2022 2021 Variance
Natural gas 90 Liw
Scope -
Company and teased cars 370
Total Scope 460
Scope 2 Electricity 52
Total Scope 2 - 52 &y 5%
Scope 3 Electricity SU ‘ 5 4 B8 ‘
Scope 3 Employee cars 11 i 53094
Total Scope 3 u.m 7 1244
Total {Market Based) 532 380 A0
Total [Location Based) 528 ARl E U
Total Energy Usage [k'Wh)' . 2,277,147 L ies 0. 314
Normaliser ! tCO e per FTE 1.9 1o 10

Sraniu
beetog

BEDVIARY



where we trade and
that Personal Group is
an employer that strives
to offer opportunity

to people of all
backgrounds.

TARGFTS

> Pledge at teast % of EBITODA with annuat mimmum of
L100K to PACT [Personal Assurence Charnitable Trusty
per yedr which willincresse fundingwith profitabitity

> Manmtaining our long -Term pledge Lo ous school project
In Kenya (Memusi] and toincrease the me-sharing given
back to aur local community through volunteering and
comniunity action

> Connnue working towards equal gender representation
at each level In the organisdtion, maintaiming tha split at
seniorlevel and iImproving in more junior roles

» Torellect the ethnee mix of the communities inwhich
we are based, improving our outreach ensuring our
TECITMEnt/Talent Management dpmiadach 15 INCiusvg
and dicess ble

us to focus onwhat 1simportant 1o our employees
either at amoment of time and/or on a specific
topic as part of aur co create appreach, it allows for
more time'ly action and supports cur weitbeing and
engagement strategy.

Operating ethicawy 1s alse very important to us and
we havein place policies including: Treating Customers
Fairly, Whistleblowing and Anti Bribery We also have
a Modern Siavery policy which covers our pobcy

on human rights, child labaur and forced labour
Having set gender and ethnicity representation targets
at all ievels of the crganisation in 20271, we have seen
solid progress in 2022 on delivering on thase targets,

Qur focus N 202315 1e continue with our Strategic
waorkforce Planning approach where we identify the
skilland capabitity needs  for now and the future
husimesswide, and design, develop and deliver bespoke
learning interventions to support our colleague growth

In 2022 we made no polinical donauons,
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“Environmental, Social and Governance continued
People
SOCIAL Employee weilbeing remains a focus for us and we
have continued to invest significantly intraining
and deveiopment, as well as providing best in class
employee benefits, whilst mantaining hybrid work
OC—\ @Om— _m ﬁo ensure i policies inorder to create a flexible and collaborative
. working ervironment
that our business has a |
L. . . After many years of conducting annual employee
Uom”,ﬁ;\m moﬁu_m_. _Bumﬁ.ﬁ b surveys with steady high engagement results, we
. have refreshed cur approach with the aim of gaining
03 ﬁjm OOBBCD_ﬁ_mm maore meaningful colleague Insights by switching to
smaller, more frequent pulse surveys. This allows Wellbeing

The Group’s core purpose is to protect the unprotected by
supporting workforce we:lbeing and engagement, and our

offerings touch mare than a mitlion UK employees.

We are also focused ominvesting in and improving the

wellbeing and overail satisfaction of our own workforce
both at and outside of work. Personal Group employee

engagemert and wellbeing s delivered through our

industry leading platform, Hapi and our continued high

cemployee engagement scores reflect our committed
and passionate team

Employees have access to a broad range of best-in class
benefits, ncluding private medicaland travel insurance, acCess

to an onbine GP, options to buy and sell holiday allowan

ces,

deathin service, long service rewards, access to an Fmployee
Assistance Programme and disccunted gym membershps.

The Group pays all staff above the Living wage and dell

vers

a programme of culturally relevant wellbemng initiatives
Alongside flexible werking hours we have a hybrid working

policy In place. We aiso have an employee health and
safety team aswell as training for all executives on he
and safety. We wit' continue to develop our employee
proposition, ensuring that the Group's benefits remdin

alth

competitive and that we remair an employer of choice.
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-Environmental, Social and Governance continued

Diversity, Equity and inclusion has been identitiad as as at 31 December 2022

an:ntegral part of the Group's objective of providing a
welcormng and inclusive working environment where

i pecple are engaged, recognised and rewarded. The Board
strives for equality of opporturity tor alland for the Group
to reftect the diverse communities that we serve, Not only
15 this the right hing to do, but diverse, inclusive teams,
we believe, are higher performing end better for our

Diversity and inclusion Group employee hreakdown by gender
[
_

Directors

' growth Assuch the Board has put a number of imitiatives
1 place to ersure the Crowp's desired culture s enhanced,
These inciude

> ADversily and Inclusion working group, to ensure that
as an organisatior, we continge to cetebrate and support
| nclusivity and diversity within our work‘orce.

@ Male
> ANomindtion Committee, responsible for reviewing ¢ Female
P
Learning and development the structure, size and composition (including the skills, m
) ; knowledge, expenence and diversiy) of the Board and .
Our chief Peaple Officer aversees (0airing and making recormmendations to the Board with regard to
development amonrgst staff. with the Group monitoring )
any changes. ;
| the éverage traning hours per employee to ensure that au ‘ |
c 5 2 Bo:
EMp.oyees have casy access to enhance theyr learring, > Apolicy regarding the gender diversity of the Board, Male Female
. alming to keep the gender baance neutral,
i . Orrectors o 3
N 2022 Group employees competed approximately
Car e (197 £ mE . Managers i 0
I 9540 training hours (2027 6,868 hours) This included B
Corunuocus Professional Devewopmen:, Insurance Employees 96 101
Cstripution Directve alongside bespoke Uraimning courses 13n 134

end apprenticeship iearning 'n 2022 we reviewed our
apprenticeship oppor tunities and have vested in existing
and new employees te offer apprenticeships amed at
developing skiils for the future

we were delighted with Lthe progress ¢f cur Accelerated

Learning Programme particigants, all of whormr have :
reméared with the business of employzes, with the .
mejerily bemng promoted mternasy Nto new roles

‘Pe development and promoetion of nterralcardigdares 7
15 Aways ercouraged as appropriate. ﬁ
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Environmental, Social and Governance continued

Supporting our community
PACT

Personal Assdrance Charity Trust (PACT) has
donated around £2mto chantable cawses since it
was founded in 1993, The Group has Fistoncally
donated approx, £100k to PACT per year, which s
then ai.ocated in a number of ways Since 2020,
therust hasrefocused 10 ensure e monrey
teing donated was beng used effectivery.

This saw the Commuttee Mmove rrom Leing
simp.y fundraisers to becorme partners o7 local
charitigs We now work with, and allozate turds
1o, specific projects within many woca. chanties
wilha view te continued Nvolvemen= beyond
pure financial support, Key local projects argund
our offices *or 2022 included’

> MKACT - L10K towards funding the Mittan
Keynes gdomestic dbuse NLervention service,
predominantly to assist the provision of safe
emergency accormmoedation for wom™en and
children escaping domestic vicienc?

> MK Winter Night Shelter - £10k conzinuing
the funding of the Personat Group L ife Skilis
Pragramme which enables Life skills training
and employment traimmg for guests of the
sheaiter who have just gainad accommaodation,
beaten ar addiction or have the chance to
work with one of the charities employment
partners to reach therr fuil potenta: end stand a
better charce of succeeding when they maove
on from hometessness

> NCrthamplorshire Domestic Abuse Service
INDAS) - £10K towards the cost of a children's
SURROrLworker 1o help to support victims
of domestic abuse with rekabiitation
and counselling

> Baby Basics  £10K supporting families living in
Milzen Keynes and the immredigte surrounding
area who are in financial hardship. Providing
them with essentialitems they need, such
as cribs, beds and toiletries, for their children
aged O 6Gyears.

> Safety Centre  HazardAlley  L/ASKtohelp
deliver bespoke knife crime intervention
HUSNIONS L 1200 Year O sarnts
Milton Keynes,

> Worktree  EbK towards the development
of the Virtual Career Workout which allows
volunteers to be interviewed remotely by
scheol classes around the country, This belps
students better understand the world of work
ard different career options available to them.

> Rany Day E£10K supporting households
facing fuel poaverty through provision of
energy saving equipment and free instatlation,
atong wath contributions direct to the erergy
SAppLers in Cxlreme Cases.

Since 2005, Personal Group has supported the Memust Founddation,
achanity that works to provide children in Kenya with access to
qualty education, providing g sate puace tor children to learn and
gIvINg support to the surrounding commumty We pledged that
over a decade we would provide £35.5m to build and develop 4
new schoal, known as Memusi B

2027 saw-

> Ateam from Personal Group visit the school for the first time
since the outbreak of COVID-19,

= Mamust B schoohincreased to Grade 5, providing education
to 420 chndren annually in a dual stream school.

W

Infrastructure was continually invested in; inctuding two
new Classrooms, d statf room, new toillet blocks and two
teacher s houses

= Internal investment was also made meluding food farall
children, desks, text books and all lear ring material

> Maney recelved IN the previcus year for dormitories was spent
ocnther construction which s clese to completion ard will be
opened shortly for the girls to make use of this faciity,

= Acontrnibution was made to the Memust ‘Bread & Milk' 7 See The
Chiidimiative which helped feed homeless chitdren bving on
the streets and offer support and quidance with the long-term
plan of gerting children off the streots,
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Environmental, Social and Governance continued

SOCIETAL

We believe our vision,

to create a brighter future
for the UK workforce,
brings a responsibility that
goes beyond our clients
and their employees.

We have an opportunity
and obligation to drive
societal change to help
shape and redefine the role
businesses play in society.

@ Examptes of the benefits of our offerings
in use are inciuded | Page 05

TARGETS

Separating Socigtal from Social s a change implemented by
management at the ena of 2022 We are currently working
an targets for this area andwillreport thenyin the 2023
finarcial statements

Our Group expertise and portfolio of services enables us
Lo act as an agent for change, empowerng businesses
to transition from being g target of social change to
amobiliser, Employers are uniquely placed to change
people’s behaviours in order to benefit society, whether
that s through DE&initiatives, wellbeing support,
financial awareness or Srotecuion policies and we can
enabite them tg do so.

Our holistic offering has been designed to support

and engage employees and their families from all
demagraphics, including those from lower inceme groups,
in both work and ufe. We are particulariy aware that
people trom lower iIncome groups can find it difficult to
access appropnate financial services products  tho FCA
recognise they arc an underserved group. Our simple,
easy 1o buy and low cost products meet a gap for people
who find it difficu.t to use theanternet far finarcial
services products and we have speaifically adapted our
products to meet their needs. Recognising the impact
this can have on Societal good, we appointed the

Hon Colonel Dame Kelly Holmes MBE {mil] as our Chief
wellbeing Ambassador for 2022 to help guide our strategy
and amplify our message to our clients and beyend.

In 2022, 1n partnershipwith Dame Kelly we iaunched
Transform our exclusive, market - leading wellbeing
solution. Transform provides exercise, rmindfulness,
meditation, recipes, and breader wellbeing content to
enable the mdividuai to take control of therr wellbeing.
This solution was also immediately made avallable to
all Group employees,

R U AsChief Welloeing Ambassador
I'want to spread the word about the
importance of employee wellbeing
and help our clients' employees
thrive in work and in life. 5y

Hon Colonel Dame Kelly Holmes MEE (mil)
Chief Wellbeing Officer, Personal Group

in conjunction with the Financiat Wellness Group, we also
ran a serious of Budgeting Bootcamps, which were made
available, for free, 1o net only our own employees but also
those of cur clients. This six-week tutonial programme
was designed toncrease ‘money confidence’ and provide
ups and tools to manage money, from creating budyets
through to priontising spend and making money

work harder,

Addiionalinitiatives in 2022 included signing the
menopause pladge, campatgning and providing guidance
on Fair Pay at leading industry events, whilst continuing
with our long standing recognition imonthly peer to peer
allowance for all employees) and chantable giving
{match funding up to £500).
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GOVERNANCE

Governance is
central to our ethos |
of operating with h
integrity.

IARGETS

> Maintain current equalrepresentation af independent
Directors versus non-independent Dr ectors

> Mantain mﬂcg representation of men and wormen on
the Board - seclor average s 19%

> lameet blended ethnicity representztion target of 204
‘taking nto account the different tocations we trade ing

> Keep CLO pay @s @ mullipie of Peisonal Group median in
line w th market.

Our gaal s to continue to ensure and reassure our
stakeholders that our governanceis robust and
compliant with all requlatory and legal frameworks.

The Board recoygnises the important role a robust
corporate governance framework plays in the successfut
detvery of our long term strategy end has adopted the
QUA Corporate Governance Code which we continue to
moniter cur perfermance aganst inline with each of the
10 principles. (see page A5),

The Charman and the Board 1s ullimately responsible
for establishing the Group's governance structure,

the effectiveness of internai controls, nsk management,
and ihe direction of the Group 1 accordance with our
purpose and values to help deliver our strategy

Board composition

The composihion of our Board are carefully selected
to ensure a diverse and varied set of skills, cullures,
experiences and knowledge to promote success within
the business.

we have targets we are working towards to ensare that
our Board is diverse and inclusive To support this, we have
a policy In ptace regarding the gerder diversity of the
Bpard and currently have 14% of Board members with

a cultural hackground different from the location of the
corporate headquarters

we alsa strive 1o have equal representation of both executive
and nor execulive Board members Lo allow for farr,

vaned and independent opimon. Board members are etected
with @ majonty vote and have the authority to hire external
advisers or consultants without managerment’s approval

2021 saw the inauguration of our Nominations Committee,
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition (Including the skiels, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board and making recommendatiens
to the Board withregard Lo any chenges. The Nominations
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Committee Report on page L8 contains more detailed
information on the Committee's activity during the year.

Board compensation

The Board's compensation 1s determined by our
Remuneration Committee, chawred by Non Executive
Director Maria Darby Walker. Gur shareholders have
the nght to vote on executive compensation,

(p Iar mare i S0 now e Remane ation Lo

C LBy applop ale corpensationr ; Page 54

e

Policies

The following polices are currently implemented
by the Group’

Modern Slavery  The Modern Slavery Act [2015) requires
acommercial organisation over a certatn size to publish
d siavery and human trafficking statement tor each
financial year This statement can be found on our
website personalgroup.com and s made available 1o
our entire workforce

Wwhistleblowing  We hdve a whistleblowing policy in
place, which complies with local reguiatory requirements
and Is designed to protect those who repert wrongdoing
in the workplace. Details of the policy are communicated
to atlworkforce members.

ANt bribery and corruption  The Group’s Ante Bribery

and Corruption Bolcy s reviewed annually and includes all
Directors, employees and all third parties cperating onits
behatlf Therewere noinstances of bribery or corruption

in the period.

[ & Further uote
e .
== Coragrale Laver

Couecd
LeLeL

| Page 44
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Section 172 Statement
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! 7 Section 172 statement ”
| The Directors ére aware ¢! ther duty under 772 of the Companies Act 2006 Lo actin the way they would consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success .
7 alire Groas fariie beac s 0T s 2romzers 25 AWnSe ant 10 g S0, 10 have fegard (amonast othes marrers) Lo
> the likely consequences of its decisions in the long term, » the impact of the Group's operaticns on the commumty and tho anvironmaent;,
L= Theinterests of the Group's employees, » the desirability of the Group maintaining a reputation for lugh standards of
1 > theneedto foster the Groug's business relationships with suppliers, business conduct; and
i cLomers el > theneedtoact farly between members of the Group.
|
W The Chairman sets out the text of 5772 Companies Act 2006 on every Board agenda by way of & rerminder,
! _ The table that follows is a description of our key stakeholder groups and how we engaged with them in 2022,
Why we engage with How we engaged in 2022 What matters to the Group
Our ﬂo_.mn<—._o_.nm_.m Our primary interactions are Lo E.oSam595.&5_32\8\33 presentaticns of aur products > Ourproducts are S_méim:q‘
| to potential and existing policyholders at their place of work. In 2022 we expanded our sales provide cost effective pratection

I Our policyholders are key to the long-t2rm success

of the G channels further to enhance the flexibility of purchase by enabling an online cffering via some > Fair and consistent pricing
; e Group )
: of gur clients. > Efficient and sympathetic
_ The retention of existing. and attract on of new,

In early 2022 we carried out a 'backbook cammunication' to ¢.90,000 policynolders, which processing of claims

policyholders s equally important. provided a reminder of policy cenditions and benefits but also, in many instances, enhanced » Ease of access to customer
: We aim Lo make any interaction with 2ersonal the benefits received at no additional premum. We also added an additional temporary benefit service
© Groupas positive and simple as possible and onthe Hosp:tal Plan of an additional outpatient appointment for 2022 and 2023 for existing > Strong net promoter score
“ ensure that our products are regularty reviewed pelhicyholders who held policies at 31 Becember 2021, 1n recognition of the fact that during » Retention rates
tandhit for purpose COVID reduced NHS activity had meant that, in many cases, they were unable to make full use
. Prowision ot suitable and largeted employee of their plan/benefits.
! benefits to our relevant market sectors. Other activities which took place during the year were development of an ‘insurance only'

website, to improve accessibility for policyholders, enhancement of the anline claims form
and detailed one-to-one interviews of existing policyholders through a third party provider

Subsequent to the pandemic we have maintained a hybrid working environment for our
customerretations team. We value the ability Lo have colleagues in the office to support
training and development of staff and te allow greater flexibility in responding to queries
and claims made by our policyholders, some of whom are calling from a place of vulnerability.

In 2022 our Customer Relations Team took over 52,400 calls and dealt with over 58,000
' emails and online queries.

ﬁ Qur Clients We engage and build relationships with our customers and clients in several ways, from
face-to-face interaction to holding industry and other business forums and producing white
papers on topics that are relevant for their businesses. We also recognise the importance
of system security for our custamers and their employees and have 150 27001 accreditation
across the whote Group and 150 9001 cavering the tmiployee Benefits Platform operated

by the Group.

Product range, price and quality
Convenience and accessibility
Customer service

Fair marketing

Responsible use of personal dara
Ethics and sustainabitity

Our purpose 1s 1o help companies improve their
etfectiveness and profitability by improwing then
staff engagement and retention. Improving sucn
metrics In turn improves our customer retention
| andencourages new business.

V ¥V ¥V vV V V¥
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Why we engage with How we engaged in 2022 What matters to the Group
Our ﬁo_.—mmmr_mm We have an open, coliaborative, and inclusive management structure and actively engage » Fairemployment
i . regularly with our employees. We do this through multiple channels led by a belief and » Competitive pay and benefits
The Group's lang-term success 1s predicated on the )
thos that engagement s a two-way drocess. OQur colleague vorce 1s critical in enablin .
ccmmitment of our employeces to our purpose and € 929 ¥y P u 9 g > Development and career

demonstration of our values {n order Lo deliver
great customer service and improve our already
high staff engagement scores we need to ensure
that we provide an appropriate envircnment and
comimunication channels to both attract and retain
talent for now and the future,

Our Suppliers

Our suppliers are fundamental to the guality ot
oLr products and to ensuring that as abusiness
we meet the high standard of canduct that

we set ourselves. Qur Hapi platform contains
nLmerous third-party afferings whic add value
to the overall proposition. Itis impartant that
we ensure good working relaticnships with
those suppliers but also to choose partners that
allzw the Group to fulfilits day-to-day operations
to deliver our products and services to the
best standard possible

Our Community and Environment

The Board recognises the importance of
leading a Group that not only generates value
for shareholders but also contrnibutes to the
wider society.

Our Shareholders

Oui shareholders are key Lo the long-term success
of the business. Through our Investor 2ngagement
activities, we strive to obtain mvestor buy-in into
cur strateg:c objectives and how we glan to deliver
on them. We create value for our shareholders by
generating strang sustainable profits end dividends.

a‘to-creation’ approach when we seek to enhance not just engagement, but how best we
canmprove how we do business

Wwe remunerate with competitive market-hased pay, sector leading rewards and benefity
alongside d learning culture and great career opportunities. We have introduced a hybrid
working policy for all office-based staff, feedback tells us that this helps our colleagues
achieve @ beller work-lLfe balance with subseguent gains in engagement and productivity.

we regularly engage in cpen and two-way conversations with our largest suppliers.
Key suppbers are invited to attend and present at our client conferences or workshaps.,

We continuaily review and update cur suppher onboarding process and conduct annual
reviews on all key suppliers to the Group

We work with our suppliers to ensure that they have effective controls in place to protect
the security and privacy of our customers data.

We encourage all cur employees to engage in the local community and work with our PACT
Committee to utiise the funds in the Personal Assurance Charitable Trust to support charities
at home and abroad as discussed cn page 37,

Wwe are conscious of the need for our business to focus on long-term sustainability, during
2022 the Board discussed the key causes of emissions from the Group and reviewed options
around limiting them. Crgers for new fleet cars to reduce the emissions per emptoyee have
peen ordered, albeit 1t was determined that fully electric cars were not currently suitabie for
e vohurne of drmg undeiaken by the mapnty of ine satesforce.

We continue to review ways in which we can be more active in the local community and are
begminning discussions with local schools and colleges to support them and to offer ourselves
as a work experience possibility for their students.

Through odr investor relations programme, which includes regular updates, meetings,
roadshews and our Annual General Meeting, we ensure that sharehelders' views are brought
into the Boardroam and considered in aur decision making.

opportunities

> Collaborative and supportive
work environment

> Health and safety and colleague
wellbeing

> Respeonsible and respectful use
of personal data

> Ethics and sustainability

Long-term partnerships
Collaborative approach
Open terms of business
Fair payment terms

Vv oV vV

v

Reduce environmental impact
Investinlocal community
Promote environmental
offerings an platform ie. Cycle
to Work

> Supporting lecal community by
creating jobs and providing work
experience and apprenticeships

v

v

> Financial perfarmance

> Strategy and business model
> Dividend

> Long term growth

> Reputation of the Group
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This year, the key business and activities
of the Board included...

Strategy and
Development

We are focused on building a

business with room to grow in the
medium and leng term, and those
foundations are now in place

At our strategy day in June 2022, we worked on
development of the refined strategy first implemented
N 2021 Anvarea of key focus was around how best we
can continue to improve interactions with our chents and
customers to enable us to really drive growth around our
three core strateqic pillars of:

> Drivinginsurance sawes through new and
exisung channels
> Trarsforming reward and benefits

> Accelerating SME

Following recommendations from our independent
Board effectivaness review, we have also made the
decision 1o restructure our Board meetings ir 2023 to
allow greater focus on strategic matzers, more details
on this can be found on page 44,

Open actions from the Board effectiveness review are
being worked and are all due to be completed in 2023

elegy Page 17

42
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Board Activity in 2022 continued

Governance
and Risk |

We continued to identify, assess,
manage and appropriately mitigate !
the key risks to the Group in

achieving its objectives

During 2022 the we conducted a Board effectiveness
review which highlighted some key areas for the
Board to work on tn the coming year in order 1o
ensure a strategic focds on the long term objectives
ard key resources underpimning them. There have
heer eight follow up acuions identified by the review
a.lof which are expected 1o be considered and dealt
with during 2023

we have continLed with 'deep dives' inwo key risk areas
gt each Risk and Compiance Commitiee meetirg on
subjects regarded as either new risks or areas where
wo perceive we have increased risk which aro koy Lo
us athieving our bLsiness objectives.

In addition, through our outsourced internal audit
furction, provided by RSM, we have continued to
changed our approach 1o ensure that we not cniy
forus onthe effectivenass of key wterna. controls
but dalso those areas of the business that are
potentially gomg to witness the mast change as we
progress or Qur journey to growlth.

<k | Page 30

Performance
Monitoring

The monthly review provided to

the Board includes an update on
all strategic KPIs as well as an
update on performance

In 2022 we have regularly reviewed our lead
indicators and together with a suite of KPIswhich
sit beneath them to enable us to moniter cur
performance against our strategy, alongside a
standard monthly business review.

There hias alsobeen a continued focus on our KRIs
areund FSG, which were introduced in 2020 and have
been conuinually refined thereafter. Work has begun
ta complete an Fnergy Reducnion Plan as we work
towards our I.50S compliance for 2023

Allof these metnics are broughtinto consideration by
the Remuneration Committee for the development
of annual bonus schemes and performance targets
forthe Group’s long term incentive plan for the
senior leadership team

Uy Pecgoyans e
* | Page 22
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Culture and
Engagement

The Board continues to have

a significant role to play in
establishing the culture of our
business, ensuring it is consistent
with our business modet

Supporting, communcating with and rewarding our
own people has remained a key focus this year and
we have remained committed to a flexible hybrid
working policy to cater for a broad vanety of personal
preferences and spent time reaffirming our core
values as ateam

Qur culture and values are also an important part
of who we are, during the year the Board has been
working on revising the Groups values to reflect
the work undertaken inrecent years and how the
business sees itself moving forward. These revised
values are still being finalised and will be announced
in due course.

D Avad moie

: Page 35
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The Board continues 1o

have a significan
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the culture of the business

Chairman's Introduction
Dear shareholder

My Fole a5 Crairman of ersona. Group 1o ensurethatthe
Board 15 performing ts row effectvely. This Migans mMaking
qure the threctors rave the capacily, abity, structure,
dive-sity and SUppert to respond to the OpROTLLNILIES
heiny created £or us, whilsthawing consigeration of out
responsibitnes ander st/2 of the Comrpanes AL 2006

P aiss heve hmr.Do:m,U_:E for ensuLing e robust
guwernante o the Group thrgugh chalenge and drection
of Lha Senal Leaderstup Team Good goveinante should
enhance performarce and deliver positively for our
gharzholders, graff, customers, suppliers and other
raketalders whist srillenablind actiavement of whe
(Grou s sLrategll alms,

|he doard Continues to have & sigrificant rowe 1o pady IN
psrablistung the calture of the BUsiness, ensuring thatitis
consistert with odr fusiness model and suitably cascaded
through the Grodp.

i1 15 rroritored tnraugh engagemenrt with the wider
VESLOT Commumty, hrough VDLV EFTEBITL of e Board
Commitiees and by usé of the wite ranging expenente,
skils and capabilities of Boarg mempers.

we continue workng o anntegrated qucression pian fof
the Roard and, a5 notad nmy Chawman's (eport earlierin
this dpgumment, we have axpenianced poard changes both
execLive and non oxecutive) thioual 207272 with Clarah
AsLiny JOINITG LhE Board as hon Dxecuilive Drector as o May
70722 and Lam mcGrath, Chief Operating officor, deparung
the Parsonal Group Holdings oard in August 2022,

This year representeddn opportunity for the Group

1o rebound following the challenges ol the COVID 19
pandermic and the Board has heen forused 00 cantinded
supportof the geniof Leadership “eam n ensuning the
employees gf the Group are quppaortedin thetr (oles with
Aur continung pybnd warking evironment, £nsunng our
<taff have the nght support, ot jual i terms of eaupment
but alsowith ther menzal health, hds cortinued to be
amaigr prionty for the Roard, especially In Light of the
ongomg cost of living Crisis

In 2072, we conunued o devetop our qoverndnee
processes to imgrove adherence 1o the Quoted rompanies
Auarce (GCA] Corporale covernance Code which the
Group adopted 2018, The Board does nol consider that

2022 Committee meeting dates

5May 26May 30 Jun

Financial
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t role to play in establishing

it departs fram any of the principles of the Code and we
continue to momter our performance agamnst each of the
A0 prNCIples. The Board 15 able to gewver effective gecision
making and subsequent drive of value for shareholders,
pased on e gquabity nformation whichit fRCeIvVES.

A poard ef fectiveness FeviEw was carred out during

2097, nling with our commitrment under the QCA Code
(Principle 7Y We have addressad and witl be addrassing the
T Ci..j_,c:a_z.fu,.} astd WAt com MTRARSS] ATIENAY
ndepandent reviews ayery three years and wii continue
o complete anny al mtesnat board effectivenass reviews
i the ntesvemng years,

1ne Board met 10 Tmes in 7027 and the number of
meetings each Director atzended can be seen on pages
A6 and 47 lnadditian, the reports of the audit, Risk and
Compliance, Remuneralian Comrmtiees and Nomnatians
and SM&CR Commuttee can be seen latarn this sectwon.
As we move into 20723 the Board has decided Lo redure
the number of in persan meetings. With six more in depth
%om::@m;on&_:cog strateqic matters, and four oard
meatings conducted remotety and used as updates on
performance. This changeé will have imited impact on the
Board s Comrmittees put should enable greater focus on
GLrateqic matters.

Martin Bennett
Independent Nan Cxpcutive Chait

21.Jut

Board 26 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 785ep  210ct 24 Nov
Audit 3 I AT
Risk & Compliance 17 Mar 76 May 20 5ep 24 Nov
Nominations 205.p

Remuneration 26.Jan 17 Mar 21Jul 210ct
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QCACode compliance

Principie 1 - Establish a strategy
and business model, which
promote long-term value for
shareholders.

Personal Group provides insurance
services and a broad range of
erpoyee benefits and wellbeing
producls tg businesses across the
UK. The Group enables empioyers
Lo improve employee engagement
and support thesr employees
prysical, mentat, social and
financial wellbeing, supparting
oLrvisien of creating a bnighter
future for the UK workfarce

Full details of our business model
can e found on page 16 and on
the Company website

{whwww persanalgroup com)

Principle 2 - Seek to understand
and meet shareholders' needs and
expectations.

Regular dialogue takes ptace with
shareholders through initiatives
in¢luding the Annual General
Meeting, iInvestor roadshows,
regulatory announcements

and Lhe Reporl and Accounts.
During 2022 our Chief Executive,
CF3, Chairman and other Non-
Executive Directors met virtually,
and in person, with key investors.
We also hosted our investor events
In March and September 2022

Corporate Governance continued

Principle 3 - Take into account
wider stakeholder and social

responsibilities and their
implications for long-term
SUCCess.

As a Board we understand our
duty to premaote the success of
the Company whilst considering
the views of and impactan,

our wider stakeholder group

of customers, policyholders,
suppliers, collecagues and our
community and environment

as well as our shareholders.

A more detailed summary of the
Group's engagement with all our
stakeholders can be seen on pages
40 and 41.

Principle 4 - Embed effective
tisk management, considering

both oppertunities and threats,
throughout the organisation.

The Board is responsible for
identifying and mitigating

risks to the Group achieving its
strategic objectives. It addresses
risk management threugh an
"Enterprise Risk Management
Framewark”, and a system of risk
governance, including a Risk and
Comptiance Cormmittee. During
2022, arisk based internal audit
function was again provided

by RSM. For further details see
page 51.

Principle 5 - Maintain the Board

as awell-functioning, balanced
team led by the Chair.

The Group maintains, and Is
satisfred that, the Board has ¢
sultaile balance of independence
and knowledge, with Directors
encouraged to challenge all
matters. The Beard meets regularly,
with a formalschedule of matters
for its approval The Board s
supported by regular engagement
with the Semor Leadership Team,
and a system of formal Board
coemmittees. Directors are required
to devote sulficient time to carry
out theiriole.

Principle 5 - Ensure that between
them the Directors have the

necessary up to date experience,
skills and capabilities.

The background and expenence
ot the Board ensures there is

an effective and appropriate
batance of skills and knowledge.
Additional training is provided
where needed and Board members
are encouraged to mamntam

their professional development
As noted on page 44 there has been
one addition to the Board in the
yearwith Ciaran Astin taking up
tis role as Non-Executive, our first
Non-Executive to concurrently
hold an execulive posilion outside
of the Group.

Strategic
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Principle 7 - Evaluate Board
performance based on clear and
relevant objectives, seeking
continuaus improvement.

Board members are each

set annual objectives, with
gerformance feedback provided
by cosresponding Executive and
Non-Executive members. Board
evaluaticn is the responsibility
of the Chairman, Internaj

hoard effectiveness reviews

are undertaken yearly, with
independent reviews at least every
threeyears. The findings from the
2022 external review have been
fed back to the Board and actions
are being worked on.

Governance

Principle 8 - Promote a corporate
culture that is based on ethical

values and behaviours.

The Board believes Group cultureis
set from the top of the organisation
These values form a core part of
how the business 1s managed,
from recruitment to training, and
ongoing reward and recognitton.
Curing the year the Group has
focused on smaller, more fraquent,
pulse surveys to obtain meaningful
celleague insight on key 1ssues. This
has allowed more focus on these
Issues at the pointin time it arises
and helps to facilitate the co-create
approach with our employees
supporting our wellbeing and
engagement strateqgy.

Financial
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Principle 9 ~ Maintain governance
structures and process that are

fit for purpose and support good
decision-making by the Board.

The Board is collectively
responsible for the lang-term
success of the Group and for
setting and executing the
business strategy. It fulfils this
responsibility through Beard and
other Committec meetings held
regularly throughout the year
The meetings held in 2022 far the
Board and other Commuttees can
be seen on page 44.

Principte 10 - Communicate how
the Company is governed and

is performing by maintaining a
dialogue with shareholders and
other relevant stakeholders.

The Group communicates through
avanety of regular digital and
traditional communications.
These include face-to-face
meetings, the Annual Report

and Accounts, Interim Results,
investor news announcements
and information provided on

the Group's website.
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Board of Directors
The Board has a combined wealth of knowledge and experience to help the business achieve success and
keep it moving forward.

Martin Bennett

Non-Executive Chairman

Leborah Frost
Group Chiel Executive
i January 2021 .. .,

September 2015
[ R A ,"

BN I

| Externalappointments

R N [ |

Skills, persanal qua

littes and capabihities
[ eowwlal

| W cOm

1

'

|

|
10/10 ‘
Meetings artenged E

10710
Meetings attended

Sarah Mace
L Chist Financiat Officer

Maria Darby-Walker
SenmarNon-Executive Direc tor

June 2019 .

Glecte g

October 2020 .. -

Skills, personal qualities and capab

: N f L
i

. T
|

1010 LERA S| At
Meetings atrended \

10/10
Meetings strended

Committee membership key

. Risk and Compliance
Committee

| Audit
Committee

Nominations &
SM&CR Committee

_HH_ Remuneration
Committee

C Chairofthe
Committee

E Independent
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Board of Directors continued

Bob Head LTI doa b
Nui-Executive Director R L B
' L I BN O I TR
November 2016 : I T R TR T T S o
ﬁ Externalappeintments , [+- . Ve e
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Andy Lothian
W Nen-Executive Director

|
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Committee membership key

. Risk and Compliance
Committee

Audit
Committee

Nominations &
SM&CR Committee

D Remuneration
Committee
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i Ciaran Astin TR P A RO SR R
|
! Non-Executive Directar NP TR I AN N AR
May 2022
External appointments
RTINS U PR I S DAL
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!
i
Skiils, personal qualities anc capabibities
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B 00
5/5 i
Meetings attended 7
Damian Kane R
) Finance Director and Company Secretary .
I ! -
| October 2020 | .
. i
' (N
I
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C Chair of the

Committee

18/
Meetings attended
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Skills, personat guabities and capabtilities
1leee Rt

[1] Independent




Strategic Financial
Overview Report Governance Statements

Personal Group Holdings Plc [ Annual Report and Accounts 2022 = _.nnvu“_ A V

Senior Leadership Team

An adept Senicr Leadership Team reflecting all facets of the Group.

Deborah Frost Sarath Mace Karen Thornley S el “ .u.jm mmj_o_. ﬁ.mmamﬂ.mj__u

Group Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Chief Commercial OFficer SR I Team Ul:@ arange

reaon o " srevious e SR U of experience and
commercial drive which

has created a solid and
committed team, driving
the business forward
through both innovation

and a focus on execution. §§

Deborah Frost
Group Chief Executive

Richard Thompson B T R PRt Julie Stayte
Chief Information Officer ! : o chief People Officer
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Risk and Compliance Committee Report

The Committee’s role is to oversee compliance with regulatory
reguirements, assess the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
framework and to set the group’s risk appetite.

Meeungs rHeld

A

kisk and Compliance
Committee members

Meeting Attendance
Bob Head (Chair]
Martin Bennett
Maria Darby-Walker
Andy Lothian

Ciaran Astin®
Leborah Frost
Sarah Mace

Liam McGrath™

A

Dear Shareholder
|

Ohjectives

Therute of the Committee s to manage
and memtor the
STrateqic 0
sk appetite for the Group, monitor and

5k and the

crives of the gioup, set the

reviow theampact of busimess decisions
upon the Group's risk protile and manage
and monitor compliance with Prudential
Requlation Authonty and Financial
Corduct Authonty requirerments and

AT
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Activity during the year
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slocoosenl sk ang Corol ance ComaiLLee [Repost ‘or the year snding 31 December 2022

The Committee focuses its debate on key risks, emerging risks, new nsks ond areds where

we perceive we have increased risk,

The Commuittee’s Charman reports formally to the Board onits proceadings after each

mieting a°c duning the year tae Commitiee met four

Graun-wide proects which inclucea:

> Consideration of the Group’s approach to
the chalienging economic outlook which
tock hold Inthe Autumn, including how
to optimise the Group's current offering
and tanor the go to market message
to mitigate the risk of any impacts on
income from clients and customers,

> Consideration of the Group’s restiience
against cyber threats following on
from external audits and reviews of
systems and controls, The Group used
spectalist companies for this work and
1twas designed to support the Group's
1S3 accreddation

> Close monitoring of the potentialimpact
of the energy cnsis affecting the country
including deveiopment of conuingency
plans for any power outages or rolling
blackouts that may occur,

S, GVUTSUeg SIgNHIcan.

> Astrategic review of the Group's man
risk exposures and challenging whether
certain acuvities provide return on
investments which are relative to the
Inherent nisks involved.

> Update and further development of
the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment
{ORSA) for Personai Assurance Plc
to account for current rnisks and
exposures, particularly inrelation to
inflationary pressures and negative cost
of lving effects which have increased
throughout 4029

> Review and approval of Personal
Assurance PLC's operational resilience
self assessment and ratification of the

Dasnge sy i [ assesamenty
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. Risk and Compliance Cammittee Report continued

Inaddion, other work undertaken during
the year ncluded.

> Theregular review, consideration and
approvalof existing Croup policies
[P FRR R A TR N D ATER

> Oversignt of the further errbedding
of data related sysiems and controls
(specifically GDPR)

> Consideratior of management
inTormation which assess levels
of quality and compuance, and the
effectiveness of the Informaticn

SECuay Mo gement Sysieo

> Oversight of the further development

and embedding of risk management
Inthe “first Line” environment acrass
the Group
management training to neminated

includirg rolling out rnisk

business area "Risk Champions”,

whao have the rale of coordinating risk
management acuvities In conjunction
with thew respective Senior Leadership
Team member and being a point of
contact for their designated Risk
Tesm part e’

> Oversight of the implementation of
the FCA Consumer Duty, including
challenging, reviewing and approving
the Group’s gap analysis against the
requirements and iImpiementation plan.
This s currently work in progress.

> Annual review of Fair Value for

ISUT Al Ce CUS O TS

» Assessing the results frem a quality
assurance review of insurance sales
to custamers, which had an emphasis
on ensuring that vulnerable custamers
are receving outcomas "at teast as
good as those” experienced by any
alhers custor
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Asin previous years, the Committtee has
continued 1o apply its mind to the nisk logs
both in terms of completeness and how
risks are optimised. the Committee has
atsoworked c.osely with the Audit
Corrmittee Lo ensure that thoe Committees
neither duplicate work nor allow things
toslip between the gaps

Boh Head
Independent Non- Executive Director

27 March 2023
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' The primary role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities in areas such as the integrity of financial reporting, the effectiveness of the internal
~controls as well as oversight of the internal and external audit functions,

Meetirgs Held

3

Audit Committee W
members

Meeting Attendance
Bob Head (Chair]

Martlin Bennett

Maria Darby-Walker

Ciaran Astin

Dear Shareholder

The Committee oversees the appointment
of andrelationship with, the external
auditor and ensures compilance with other
regulatory requirements that are reievant
to the Group, as well as gaining reassuranca
that the control envirenment s fit for
purpose Theinternal audit funcoionis
currently cutsourced to athird party,

and the Committee 1s also responsible for
overseaing the effectiveness of internal
audit inune with the Chartered Institute
of Intermat Auditers (HA'S) Guidance on
Effective internal Audit.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Audit Commitlee assists the Board in
discharging its responsitylities with regard
tathe oversight of:

Financial reporting:

> Monitoring the integrity o the financial
statements of the Group, including
1ts annuat and halfyearly reports, and
considering the clanty and completeness
of disclosures theren;

> Reviewing and challenging ary changes
to accounting policies, accounting for
significant or unusua: transactions and
the applicaticn of eppropnate jJudgements
and estimaies,;

> Considering new accounting standards
and pronouncements and comments from
the binancal Report ~g Colnoil ard

> Advising the Board on whether the
Group's financlal statements are far,
balanced and understandable Particular
attention has been given to ensuring the
bustness commentary 1s consistent with
the reported results.

internal and external audit:

> Overseeing the Group's relationship
wilh 1ts external and internal
auditors, inc:uding their appaintment,
remuneration, iIndependence and the
cffectiveness of the audit processes,

> Developing and implementing a policy
on the supply of non audit services by
the externa: auditor, and

A\

Monitoring and reviewing the scope
of work and effectiveness of the
putsourced internal audit function in
the context of the Group's overall risk
management system.

internal controls:

> Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's Internal financial controls
and risk management systems; ang

> Reviewing the Group's arrangements
with regard to emptoyee/cortractor
whistieblowing, fraud detection,
prevention of bribery and money
laundering.

Membership and meetings

The Audit Commuttee comprises the
Independent Non £xecutive Directors
and meets at least twice g year

The Directors' profiles and gualifications
arc included on pages 46 and 4/

Risk matters are covered at the Risk and
complance Cormumittee but all members
of the Audit Committee are also members
of the Risk and Compliance Committes,
which ensures tight co ordination

Three formal meetings were held during
2022 and all Committee members were

n attendance. Additionally, the remaining
soard members, Head of Risk and Company
Secretary were present at all meetings.
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Audit Committee Report conlinued

'he meetings of the Committee are
destgned to facilitate and encourage
communication among the Committee,
the Group, the Group’s outsourced Nt 2rnal
audit function (RSM) and the appainted
exterral auditor The Committes meets
with themternal avditors and the £xLEra,
auditors, with and without managerrerit
present, Lo discuss the resuds of ther
examinations, their evaiuations of the
Group’sinternat controland the overall
quebity of the Group's financial reporting
in aodition, the members of the Audit
Cormiltée also meet separatewy to
consider any 1ssues.

Activities of the Audit Committee
during the year

Tho Commitiee discussed with the Group’s
interna: and external auditors the pverall
scope and plans for their respective
audits As a part of these discussions the
Committee has considered whether there
are further risk areas that need 1o be
corsidered ir addition o those raised by
both sets of guditors, In addition, the key
work undertaken by the Committee dunng
the year urder review and up tothe daze
of this Arnual Report included’

> Review and approval of the 2027 Annual
Report and Accounts and 2022 Interim
Results statement,

> Approval ot the Sotvency and Financia.
Cendition Report,

> Review of internal audits carmned ou.
fy «5M

Duning 2022 RSM urder:zook audits,

N line with the agreed scoge, over areas
including ficld sales team remuneration,
change management and a folow up
review of responses te 20271 action
recommendations R5™ also undertook
anddvisary repert providing a GAD
analysts against key ESG documents,
ML L5 a7 aeontrons

The Commiltee received reports from the
Interral audizors throughout the year and
was sausfied with the etfectiveness of
interralcentrols and risk optimisation,

It supports the recommendations made by
theinternal authtors and s satisfied with
the plans in place and the actions taken or
plarned by management iIn response to
these recommendatiors and monitors the
clearance of thetems raised to ensure that
they are resolved ona timely besis,

The appreachin developing the internal
audit p.an for 2022 (and for 2023] was
based ondnalysing the corporate
cobjectives, sk profile and assurance
framework of the Croup, as well as other
factors affecting the Group. The aim s 1o
cover all sigrificant risk areas at least once
avery three years

The Audit Committee requlariy discusses
the performance of internal audit within
the Committee, with managemant and
with mterral audit. Given the size of the
Group we heleve that an outsourced
-nrermal Audit function gives Ls eeess Lo
rmore areas of expertise than anntern

resourced department
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Significant reporting issues

and judgements

In“whillirg s oversight responsibilities,
the Committee has reviewed and discussed
the audited consolidated financial
statemerts and the retated schedules
within the Annual Report with Group
management, including a discussion of
the appropriateness of the accounting
principles, the reasonableness of
significant judgements and the clanty of
disc.osJres in the financial statements,
the areas the Audit Committee have
focused onare detalled later in the report

<ey Group 1ssugs included:

> Investment in the salasforce and s
direct impact on the Group's profitability;
following two years of interrupted
new Business prermum leveis due to
OCkdowns and other restriclions,
the Group needed toreturn to a full sales
tearm complement to return to normat
and service the demand of 1ts clients,

> AN ongoing focds on cyber nsks as
weil as operational resilience to deliver
whal we have promised our clients
and customers remains a key topic of
discussion for the Committee.

> Consideration was given Lo going concern,
The adequacy of capitauin a variety of
scenanos and the abitlity Lo pay ¢ dividend
whilst maintamning our target of two times
requlatory capitat.
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> The carrying vatue of goodwillin the
Group's financal statements was
reviewed in iane with the difficutt
L ading nnvironment

> The acquisition accounting surrounding
the purchase of Quintige Consulbing
Group Limited

The Committee reviewed the
recommendations of the finance function
and received reports from the external
auditor on their findings Where cost
effective to do 5o the Commitlee has
encouraged the external auditors ta adopt a
cantrols appreach to the audit rather than
substantive audit approach.
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Audit Committee Report continued

The significant reporting matters and judgemerts the Committee considered during the year included:

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangibles

As aresult of business acquisitions, the Group has
recagnised significant balances for goodwill. Goocdwii
must be tested annually for impairment; cther intangible
assels are tested when there are indizators thal they may
be impaired. The assessment of potential impairment
requires a number of jJudgements and estimates tg e made

. ndetermining the relevant future cash flows and the

% Q,_mnc;::mﬁmnowmmuc:mg.

Note 14 & 15

The Committee reviewed the key financial assumptions
underpinning cash flow projections, the discount and
long-term growth rates applied thereto and the results of
sensitivily analyses. The Commuttee was satisfied with the
conclusion of management that, due Lo the macreeconomic
impact on matertal custgmer, an impairment was required
te the value propesed for Let's Connect and appropriate
disclosure has been made (see note 14 to the financial
statements for details),

The Commuttee was satisfied that noimpairment was
needed on the goodwill of Innecto and that the accounting
surrounding the purchase of QCG and the imtial assessment
of the acguired intangible assets and goodwillwas appropriate.

The presentation of “Adjusted EBITDA” alongside
statutory profit.

_ Acjusted FBITDA, in this context, tooks to adjust for non-
i underlying trading activity within the financials for year
which are materialin size, in order to fairly remunerate
the management on underlying perfcrmance.

Note 5

The Committec considered the approach adopted and was
satisfled that the approach continues to help provide a clear
and more balanced view of the underlying performance of
the business than simply focusing on profit after tax. it also
concluded that the approach is being applied consistently
from year to year and the ratronale is clearly presented and
reconciled back to the I[FRS published numbers.

| The valuation of the claims provision

The Group retamns @ provision for the gross estimated
Liability arrsing from claims in the current and preceding
financialyears which have not yet given rise to claims paid.
Its estimated based an the currentir-formation,

and the ultirmate liability may vary as a result of subsequent
information and events,

Note 25

The Cornmittee has reviewed the methodology and
calculations relating to the claims provisions held by

the Insurance entities within the Group to ensure that

the tncurred but not reported clatms reflect nat only the
historical trends of the insurance policies sold but also
continuing impacts pest COVID-19 including consideraticns
such as increased hospital waiting lists. The Committee was
satisfied that the amount reserved foracross the Group s
appropriate given the data available it should te noted that
the insurance business is short tail and post year end claims
are exaimined before the accounts are signed off
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External audit

EY i Pwere first appointed for the 2019 financial year.

We value continuity providing the Group gets value for money
both fer the formal reporting and the third party assurance
that the business has a good control environment

The Committea considers a number of areas whan
reviowing the externat auditor reappointment, namety
thewr performance in discharging the audit, the scope of
the audit and terms of engagement, ther independence
and objectivity, and their reappointment and remuneration.
Inaddition, as noted, we are seeking more value from
the audit and encourage a controlbased approach rather
than substarh ve where Dis cost ellhechive 1o 00 S0

The external auditor reports to the Committee on
actions taken to comply with professional and regulatory
requirements and s required to ratate the lead audit
partner every five years.

Therels also an active, ongnirg dialggue between the
Committee and the external auditor on actions to improve
the effectiveness and ef ficiency of the external audit
process, In addition, the Committee considers risk areas
that might inform the audit strategy and discusses this
Wl e vxiernal oud-tors

The Committee has confirmed it 1s satisfied with the

ndependence, objectivity and effectiveness of BY LLP
as auditor and will support a resolution to retamn them
At the fortheorming Annual Geng

Mg

No non-audit services were provided by the external
auditors duning this financial year or since they were
originally appointed.

Bob Head
Independent Non Executive Directaor

27March 20723
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Remuneration Committee Report

The Committee’s objective is to align our reward strategy with the
delivery of profitable and sustainable growth for the benefit of all

our stakeholders.

veetings | leld

A

kemuneration Committee
members

7 Meeting Attendance

Maria Darby-Walker (Chair) il

Martin Bennett AiA
Bob Head Aesi
Ciaran Astin RV

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the 8oard, lam pleased

1o present this year's Remuneration
Committee report. The Remuneration
Report providas a comprehensive picture
of the structure of pur remureration
framewaork, Its augnment with the
busiress strategy and the rest of the
workforce, as well as the decisions made
by the Committee as a result of business
performance for this year,

Aims of the Remuneration
Committee

The primary purpose of the Remunerauon
Committee s to review and make
recommendations regarding the
remuneration policy for the Group,
specifically regarding the Group's
framework ot Executive Remuneration.

The Committee's overall objective 1s to
augr reward for the Executive Oirectors
with the delivery of profitable sustamable
growth for cur shareholgers and employees
through the Group's remuneration
framework which,

> Offers competitive salary packages
to attract, retain, and motivate
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> Operates straightforward, transparent,
and effective reward schemes that
incentivise delivery of stretching annual
targetls and delvery of our longer-term
business strategy

'naddition, the Committee:

> Dffers the charce for aemployees
to participate in share schemas so
that everyone thinks and acts to
“run it ke we own it”
UMD Oy v Uey

one of our core

> Oversees and reviews the commission
and bonus arrangements for customer
facing msurance sales employees
toensure a proper balance between
motivating staff whitst making sales
of the highest guality (ie beyond simple
regutatory compliance).

To that end, we currently operate the
following remuneration framewaork:

> Annual salary and associated benefits
PIMplye
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Defined contrnibution pension scheme and
other benefits such as Life cover, private
medical insurance (all employees).

Performance based annual bonus linked
todelivering stretching firancial, business
development, and service criented
targets (selected employees).
Commission, bonus schemes and
mcentives for the customer-facing
Insurance teams (selected sates and
SA:S SLEROrt rme oyt

Share schemes:

> PG Share Ownership Plan
lall employees);

> Campany Share Option Plan
selecied emptoyees), and

> Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPS)
[selected senior executives -
see page 57 for further details).

Q¥ Weremain focused on aligning reward with the
business's long-term sustainability and growth. 5y

Maria Darby-Walker

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

We have continued Lo consider compansons
of remuneration for semor employees

of simiar sized guoted companies In
ralated sectors when establishirg the
evels of packages set. Our most recent
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
benchmarkirg exercise was undertaken
niber 202

Composition of the Remuneration
Committee

The emuneration Commitiee corsiste of
the independent Non =xecative Directors,
with the Chiet £ xecutive, Chief People
Otficer, Company Secretary and any non
Independent Non Executive Directors
invited to be inattendance at times.

The Rermuneration Committes operates
within defined terms of reference.
which were updated last year. It met four
umes in 2022 with ad hoc calls takine

[y iy T

None of the Committee has any perscnal
financial interest, conflicts of irterests
ansing frem cross Directorships, or day to
day nvelvement in running the busingss
and, as such, the Committee s deemed
to be iIndependent.

The doqard delermines the semureration
of the Non Executive Directars after
benchmarking external market research
Non Execdlive Directors are not inyoived
nsetting ther own pay and do not
participate n the bonus schemes artre

vt

5 orinany other share award scheme

Performance for the year & 2022
annual bonus

Despite significant progress in achieving
K?ls and underlying growth, the Group did
nat achieveits goals for 2022, As a result

It has been agreed by the Cormmittee that
no bonuses would be paid to the Executive
Directors for 2022 1t has, however, been
agreed toreview the bonus potential for
the leadershipin future years

Thoremamder of staff below the 5L T
level with a contractual bonus target
have recelived amounts commensurate
to personal objectives being reached
but not for Group wide Largets

Pay increases

[he Remuneration Committee approved
a payincrease pot of ©.3.5% for dll
eligible employees, Including the Board,
nJanuary 2022,

Other Committee activities for
the year

The Committee has been actively engaged
N reviewing the changing nature of
reward ard benefits, The Committee s
i regular communication with the Chief
People Cfficer to ensure that the Group
understands the market norms and offers
packages which are competitive for cur
employees. The Committee paruicularly
focused on the attraction and retention
of scarce talent, with a detated review
of the pay of all employees, and those

at particuiar fight niskain crucial roles
identified. Market rate adjustments wore
completed and key emmployees were
retained through 20272,
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The Committee discussed, and approved
the change to, the remuneration and
INcentive programme surrcunding the field
sales team. The revised programme looked
to simplify the existing scheme whilst
supporting wong term career paths far staff
and adjustirg for best practise guidance
offered by a recent internal audit into

Lhe subact

The Commitiee also reviewed pension
arrangements for employees, and
estabushed a Pensicr Working Group to
prioritise our review of pension take up
and encourage employees to plan for
therr futures.

The year ahead

FSG goals and targets have beenincluded
Inthe 2022 LTIR design, demonstrating our
commitment to ESC goals, and ensuring
that theyremamn top of mind for our
Fxecutive Directors and Ltherr teams

The Remuneration Committee remans
focused on aligning reward with detivenng
long term sustamnabibity and growth

of the business, combined with cur

o0 gomrg progressive dividend policy.
Where any material changes are made to
the remuneration policy, we will continue
[0 discuss our Intentions with our

major shareholders and give them the
opPOoriumty to comment,
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Service contracts

The Executive Direclors have service
contracts that canbe termimated on six
months' notice with the exception of
the Chief Executive who has a 12 month
notice per.od

These provide for termination payments
equivatent to the notice penod's basic
salary and contractual benefits.

The Non Executive Directors have letters
of appoirtrrent that can be terminated
on six morths' notice.
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Remuneration Committee Report continucd

At 31 December At 31 December

2022 2021
Membership of Board and Directors' interests Deborah Frost 333,678 0406
i The membership of the Board throughout the yearis set (Chief Executive)
out herein Sarah Mace 12,071 12,050
(Chief Financial Officer)
Thenterests of the Directors and therr families (Including And Lothi
ndre thia 17543
transactions committed to betore the year end and shares rewtotman , 53 =
{Non-Executive Director - Managing Director PGB Sales until Becember 2020)
hald im the PG employeae share ownership plan) .
Ir the shares of the Compeany as of 31 December 2021 —H_mnun_: mdzzmﬂ . e Chair - A d 2091 18,070 )
ndependent Non-Executiv air - ointed Ja
ordate of appomtment if later, and 37 December 2022, A P r B ¢ f~ ARpOINLE nuary _
are shown in the table to the night. Bob Head - )
b : {Independent Nen-Executive)
AU 37 december 2022, the mid market closing share prnice N ’ ) ’ -
166,00 per share (31 Decems 202 o o0m Maria Darby-Wa ker )
S 196, ¢ 2027 - I
i we P pershares ecemoer Pi {Senior tndependent Non-Executive)
! Ciaran Astin - -
. {Independent Non-Executive - Appeointed May 2022)
Share-based
gainson
: Salary exercise of Pension
and fees Bonus options contributions Total Total
, 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 20
, £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Directors' remuneration Deboran Frost - 142 19 0 A1 o
“he Executtve Directors’ remuneration packages currently Sarah Mace 1ey - - 1 462 238
| Inctude components of & basic salary, annuai bonus, Liam McGrath™ ) L2l - o N 6 140 145
" a company car or car allowance If applicable to the role, Andrew Lothian 11 A1 41
, cong lerm nicentive Paan (LT11%), non matched pensian Bob Head . w _ _ . . 50
m contributions and Life cover as appropriate. Maria Daroy-walker i _ _ 1 -
Theremuneration of the Directors listad by individual Martin Bennett ** 10 B - 101 8
Director shown to the nght Craran Astin * 29 e )
Mark Winlow - . - 33
Total 016 - ] 29 1021 1,062

Goaref e oew e ow
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-Remuneration Committee Report continued

Directors' share options

CSoP Company Share Qption Plan
" On 31 December 2022 oplions cutstanding were as fol.ows. Awards under CSOPs have taken place for a number of
Number Exercise price Earliest years and have bean predominantly allocated to senior
of shares pence per share exercisable date members of staff across the business in line with the
~ Andy Lotian 0026 AQH 00 rules on the government scheme. The oplions have a
| ) requirement to be held for three years prior to exercise
' Sarah Mace LIRS

and no perfermance obligations.

Deborah Frost 34300 PHNNoere 2024
LTIP . Long Term Incentive Plan
0On 21 December 2022 options autstanding were as follows The Long Term incentive Plan introduced i Apri 2027was
Number Exercise price Earliest  ©stablishedinorder to reward and incentivise the semor
: of shares pence pershare  exercisable date _ executives to deliver sustainabie growth for the Company
| Debarah Frast 135 362 3 GlJanuay w021 and to create material value for shareholders. The scheme
: i s accommodates performance conditions dcross market,
' Sarah Mace 24104 50 Sanuay 2024

_ financial and £SG measures which support the growth of
]

the business.
The apucns ghove are subject ta the performance critena of the LTIR.

The scheme has made two awards of share options to
date in April2027 and Aprii 2022,

The performance critena of the awards are detailed in
Note 272,

. Inaddition to the Executive Directors, members of the
Semior Leadership Team also had awards.

Maria Darby-Waltker
Independent Non Executive Directar

27March 2023
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-Nominations Committee Report

'The objective of the Nominations Committee is to recommend for selection
by the full Board, Director nominees and to ensure compliance with the
requirements around Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR).

Z
oo
o
o
=]
e}
o
T
I
o

Naminations Committee
memkbers

Meeting Attendance

2
|

Martin Bennett {Chair) 209
Maria Darby-Walker 2
Bob Head i
Ciaran Astan iFa

The CEQ, Nor Independent NEDs,

Chief Peop.e Officer and Compdny
Secretary are normally present ar

Dear Shareholder

lam pleased Lo present the Nominations
Committee Report for the year ended
3iDecember 2022, The Committee's
prnimary furction is to enabte focused
discussions arcund the composition of
the Board ard the Group requirements
aroure SM&CR

Objectives

The aims and objectives of the

SO s SO LTee s Lo

> Ensure thereis a formal, ngorous and
transparent procedure for the appointment
of new Directors Lo the Board and new
meambers of the semior management tearm:;

> Provide oversight of Board composimion,
membership and Board and seror /
axecutive appointments;

» _ead the process for appomntments,
ersure plans are in place for orderly
sLECEsSION to both the Board and senior
Management posiuens, and oversee
the develapment of a diverse pipeline
107 SLLLess on

> Provide independent oversight of the
Group's comphance with the Senior
Managers and Certy ication Regime, and

Strategic

Report

> Determine whether employees who are
subject Lo disciplinary procedures have
breached the Conduct Ruies applicable
to therr role and whether dismissal 1s an
appropriate outcome.

The Nomiratuons Committee, assisted
by external executive search agencies as
required, primarily manages appointments
Lo the Board, but all Board members
have the opportunity to meet shertlisted
cangidates, ensuring a wide range of
feedback in the appointment pracess.

All Executive Directors are engaged on a
full time basis, Non txecutive Directors
have letters of appointment stating their
annuat fee, the minimum required time
commitment and confirmation that their
appointment 1s subject to satisfactory
performance. Their appointment may

he terminated with a maximum of six
morths writhen notce sl any Lime

The remuneration of the Chairman and
Non Executive Directors isdetermined by
the Board following proposals fram the
Nommations Committee, withir the amits

Governance

Financial

Statements

58

set out in the Artictes of Association, based
on a review of the level of fees paid by
comparator comparues, Non Executive
Directors do not participate in discussions
about their own remuneration

Activity during the year

The Committee's Chairman reports
formally to the Board onits proceadings
after each meeting and duning the year the
Committee met twice, detail of what was
reviewed by the Committee 1s as follows;

Board succession

We actively manage our Beard succession
plan, to ensure that our Board has an
appropriate and diverse range of skills to
enable us to deliver our strategy forthe
berefit of all of our stakeholders

We dre a small and cohesive Board, and
take care to ensure that all new members
of our Board are aligned to our culture and
share our values, whatever their skills and
Backaraund, Qur Board yducian procags,,
undertaken by all new members upon
appointment, 15 ar important way to get

P ¥ TneBoardis satisfied that its current composition
includes an appropriate balance of skills, experience

and capabilities. yy

Martin Bennett

Independent Non-Executive Chairman
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Nominations Committee Report continued

our New Beard members up 1o speed and valued by our
NON Execltive Shrectors. We have a formal plan for how
Board membership shoutd develop which aims to balance
conbinuity of service with aregular refreshment of skills
and experience needed to deliver gur evolving strategy
We regutarly review the balance of sk lsonthe Board as a
whcle, taking account of the future needs of the business,
and the knowledge, expenence, length of service and
performance of the Directors We are satisfied with the
planwhich has resulted in the placerrent of Ciaran Astin
onthe Board Liam McGrath left the business during 2022

Board and Director effectiveness

“he CeO receves a formal evaluation o their performance
daring the year, which s conducted by the Chairman.,
madditgn, The CLO discusses with the Non Executive
Directers the performance of indiwiduals of the Executive
team and any changes that she proposes to make tothis
team, Whitst this activity does not taks place formally
within the meetings of the Nominatio s Committee,

1w does form part of 1Its work in overseeinyg Fxecutive

tear development and succession process, and the

pipe.ne of talent avasable for succession to the Board,

The performance of our Board and the Committees is
ovaluated by the Chair and he bas concided that the Board

Is functioning well, 1s dynamic, has a breadth and depth of |
comp.ementary skills and expertence and that there 1s a
strong trust between the Non Executive Directors and the i
Pxecutive Directors in the running of th= Group. An external
Board effectiveness review was conducted in 2022 with .
devalopment areas being worked on

Diversity

We fully support diversity as an impor.ant Contripution
to good quality decision making and irnovative thinking,
Diversity has many dimensions and we particularly value
diversity of thaught, which m turnis assisted by diversity of
background and experience, as well as gender and eLthnicity,
wWe already have on our Board a divers ty of gender, ski.'s,
expenence, perscnality, ard cogmuve epproach Across
The busingss, Leams are diverse with ar aven split of males

and females in menagement positions. However, we are
conscious that our senior leadership population does not

currently reflec: the broader ethmic mix of our employees
and our custorrers and we will seek to address this,

We continue 1o review how we can further broaden our

approach, encouraging diversity and inclusion throughout

the Beard and the business.

Culture and values

Preservation of cur culture has always been a prionty,
which stems trom the values instilled by the Board.

Cur culture1s brought to life through our shared values and
busimess princples which the Board monitors through Board
reports and agenda items, engagement with employees,
andvisits to the Group's offices

Tenure and Re-Election Of Directors

Diractors s set out below:

Strategic

Report
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Our culture and values are animportant part of what we
look for in new candidates to join our Board, so that they
may promote and engage with the development of these
aspects throughout the business. It 1S important that they
are augned with our values so that they can be role models
for ait our employees and stakeholders,

Certification & conduct rules

iz important for the ongoing success of the business that
rigerous certification processes and training and oversight
of compliance with the conduct rules are completed and
monitored by the Committee. We have worked hard to
articulate the conduct rules as part of the wider Group
values and have no tolerance for any breaches of the rules.

The Nominations Committee considers the tength of seryvice of Board members at least annually. The tenure of the

Last AGM Up for renewal
Member Appointment renewal at 2023 AGM Board role
Martin Bennett January 2021 AGM 2021 Far renewal Non-Executive Chairman
by rotation
Ceborah Frost wmuHmEUmﬁ 2015 (previously NED, b‘mz moﬁ ‘ nj‘_m* Executive
appointed CEOC Feb 19)
Sarah Mace Cctober 2020 AGM 2021 Forrenewal Chref Financial Officer
by rotation
Maria Darby-Walker ,._E.:m 2019 AGM 2022 Senior Non-Executive Director
Claran Astin May 2022 - For renewal Non-Executive Director
as first year
Bob Head Novemsber 2016 AGM 2022 Non-Executive Director
Andy Lothian July 2017 ipreviously AGM 2021 Non-Executive Director

Executive Director,
appointed NED Jan 20217}

Martin Bennett
Independent Non Fxeculive Chairman

27 Marck 2023
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal activities

The Groep s prmcpacy engagen n proveting employe
SO VUGN sl ermacaieent and hoalth
LU arcea, nenetilty anag t.micj,: nrodud s, pay and
reward corsuttancy and the Drovision of salary sacnfe
Lcorulugy products e UK

Results and dividends
Areviow of LN year's sosally s giver 1 the Chicl Minanc.,

Giber s Statement fuo e page 25;

[heoss ey contimung uperaniens for the year
LE/CL 2002027 arolief £4,332 000) uefor© tax
Gt L5 16,000 2627 LAd,,auh Du
COo,202°

Ui yed urd ndry
L3 2 L0 were pand

divicerds of £.3,2

Directors

“he memibe stip of the Board gt tac ol of the year s

solGut e Beees

SLOr Repu on

qojes DA 10 57
e Renarl also maotudoes coals

“he <emarcratien Con

clors' erurerauicn andinterests 1in the ord rary

sihates of the Company Juing b year all aeoctors and
officers were covescd by vara party mdeminity nsurance

Political contributions

15 LG Y
politca. denatucn o ncures any po tcal expenditure
dar

N ther the Comaany ner aty o s subsiic

Lhoyean 2027 L

Charitable donations

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal v sks and urcertamt es fac ng the Group,
Along with (e oisk managemoent objec ive s and [eadies
cussee 1 he Risk and L ompuance ana Audit

Jommtiee resarts anc Note 3of these finangal statementsy

Capital requirements

Bee Nete 2 of rhecp foaanCal sTatereents

Corporate governance

The Soard of Persona Creup bocings PLC supposts T

princenles ane 15 committed to acheving b gh stancards
ol corparate quyernance and nas adoptoed the Quoteo
Compar.cs Allance Larnorate Governance ©odemils
ensrely The Board's ceport cntne Lroup’s corporate

GOvVEraance arecedues 1 S0t oLt 01 Dages 44 an

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Direclors who newd office at the cawe of approvat of

s Jireckors' Report zonfens that, so ¥

Pas They o cach

awdre, there 1w ne retevant audit mformation of wiich tho

Crodm's audilon s unaveare, and cacn DirecLor fuas Laken
all e steps (aat they ougbl to bave Laken as a Director Lo
make thersewves aware of
shth
that i Tonmation

yrelevertave tirformation
tho Grcun's anditer s aware cf

and to ostat

Auditor

=Y LR have oxpressed wh o nghoss Lo cantnucinaffice
Inaccordance with section 488 (4 of the Compan es Act
2C0k arevoulion to Botn formally appont ard reappomt

SY LR wali by pmropoesed 31 e Annaat General Moee
pe nald cn Trarsoay 4 May 202 4.

gto

Qther information

A incication of bkely futare developments in 2ne husiness
ang pirbiculars of signidicant events which hove coouree
since the end ot the financialyear have been -ncludedin
the Strateqic Report

BY ORDER OF THT BOARD
_,L‘F.,.(Fu:;

Sarah Mace
Chief Iinancial Qfficer

2/ March 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report,
Directors’ report and the Group and parent company financial statements

iIn accordance with applicable law and regulations.

In respect of the Strategic Report, Directors’
Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors areresponsibie for preparing Lthe Strategic
Report, irectors' Report and the Group and parent
Corvpany Financial Statements in accordance with
appicabie waw and regulations.

Company law requires the Directers to prepare Group and
parent Company financiat statemerts for each firancial
year Under the AiM Rules ¢f the Landon Stock Exchange
they are requied Lo prepare the Grouwp financial statements
In accardance with Internationa. Financial Reperiing
Standards as adopted by the JK {UK adopted IFRSj and
applicable law ard they have elected to prepare the parent
Company financial statements on the same basis,

Under company law the Directers must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that
periad. Inprepanng each of the Group and parent Company
finarcia. statements, the Directors are required to:

> Select suitable accounting policies and then appiy
Lhivnyconsisteatiy

> Make juggements and astirmates that are reasonable,
relevant and reliable

> State whether Lhey have been prepared in accordance
with UK adopted FRS.

> Assess the Group and parent Company's ability to continue
asa going concern, disclostng, as applicable, matters
related to gomyg concern.

> Usethe going concern basis of accounting unless
thay eitherintend to ligquidate the Group or the parent
Corrpary or to cease cperations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do se

Strategic

Report
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Governance

The Directors are responsibie for keeping adequate
dccounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent Company’s transacticns and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent Company and enable them to
ensure thatits financiat statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006, They are responsible for such
internal controt as they determine 1s necessary ta enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free
from matenzalmisstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and have generalresponsitility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them Lo safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
orher rregalantes

Under applhicable law and regulations, the Directors are
also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and
a Directors' Report that complies with that law and
those equlations.

The Directors ere rasponsible for the mamtenance and
Integnity of the corporate and financial information
Included on the Company’'s website. i egislation in
the UK governing the preparation and dissemmation
of financial statements may differ from legislation in
otherunsdaetiors
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Personal Group Holdings Plc

Opinion

N Qur cpINon;

> Personal Group Howdings ple's groap financial statements and parent company finanaal
statemerts (the "finarcial statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the
group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group's
loss for the year then ended;

> the group financial statements ava been properly pregared in accordance with UK
acuopted nternational accounting standards;

> the parent compeary finarcial statements been properly prepared in accordance with UK

acopted nterraucrel accounting standards as applied in accordance with section 408
of the Companies Act 2006; and

v

the financial statements have been prepared in accorddance with the requirements of
the Companies ACt 2006,

We have addited the financia. statements of Personal Group Holdings which comprise:

Group Parent company

Consohdated balance sheet as at 31
Deczmber 2022

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

Statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended

Consobdated income statement for the year
then ended

Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended

Cash flow statement for the year then ended

Consclidated statement of changes in equity
far the year then ended

Related nates 1to 33 to the financial
statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies
Consalidated statement of cash flows far

the vear thun ended

Related nptas 116 33 to the financial
statements [except for the soivency
capizal position of the Group's regutated
companies disclosed in note 4 which s
marked as unaudited), including a summary
of significant accounting policies

The financiatreporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s applicable law
and UK adopted international accounting standards and as regards t¢ the parent company
financial staternents, as applied inaccordance with secton 408 of the Compantes Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

Wwe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(U]} and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsitilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
repart beiow. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are retevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
UK including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied 1o isted public nterest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

Wwe belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate
1o provide a basis for our opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

Inauditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of acceunting in the preparation of the financial statements
15 appropriate. Qur evatuation of the directors' assessment of the group and parent
company's abilily to continue te adopt the going concern basis of accounting included
the foliowing procedures

> confirmed our understanding of management’s going concearn assessment process and
obtained management's assessment which covers 12 months erding 27 March 2024

> obtained the financial forecasts prepared by the Group and assessed the

approprateress of assumptions applied in the modelled stress scenarios based
on our understanding of the business and the Group's tustoricat performance;

v

performed enguines of management and those charged with governance to identify
risks or events that may impact the Group's ability to centinue 4s @ going concern.
We also reviewed management’s assessment approved by the Board, minutes ot
meetings of the Board and its committees, ard made enguiries as to the impact of
market conditions on the business, and

v

dssessed the appropriateness of the gaing concern disclosures by comparing the
consistency with management's assessment and far compliance with the relevant
reporting requirements,
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

Based on maragement's assessmert, we have observed that the Group 1s able to
continue to have surpius cash and solvency above the solvency reguirements within its
two regulated entities in a number of extreme downside scenarios and the Group has
continued Lo service customers and meet Its commitmentsin the current environment,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any materigt uncertainties
relating Lo events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast sigrificant
doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the
period ending 27 March 2024

Cur “esponsbilities and the responsibibities of the directors with respect to going concern
are described inthe relevart sections of this report However, because not ait future
evernts or cenditions can be predicted, this statement is Not a guarantee as to the group's
abniTy TO CoNUINUE a5 a guing CoNCcern

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope

> UK cer2insurance {Personal Assurance plc),

> Guernsey coreinsurance (Persaonal Assurance [Guernsey)
Limited),

= |Tsalary sacrifice (PG Let's Comnect IT Salutions Limited),
> Software as a service (Personal Management Solutions

Limited)

in addition, we performed audit procedures on specific balances
for Innecte People Consulling Limited, included in the Graup
component Software as a service

> The components where we performed full or specific audit
procedures accounted far 97% of the Group revenue and 98%
of the Group profit before tax,

Key audit matters > Valuation of PG Let’s Connect goodwill
» Valuation of Innecto goodwill and other intangible assets
> Acquisition of Quintage Consulting Group

Materiality > Overall group matenality of £195,050 which represents 5%
of consolidated protit before tax

» We performed full scope gudit of four components ot Lhe Group:

Strategic

Financial
Statements

Report Governance mw

An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Qur assessment of audit sk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance
materiality determine our audit scope for each entity within the Group Taken together,
this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We take into
account size, risk protile, the orgamsatuon of the group and effectiveness of group wide
cantrols, changesin the business environment, the potentialimpact of climate change
and other factors such as recent internai audit results when assessing the level of work
to be performed at each entity.

In assessing the nsk of matenal misstatement to the Group financial statements, and to
ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage of significant accounts in the financial
staternents, of the five reperting companents of the Group, we selected four companents,
which represent the principat business units within the Group.

Of the five components selected, we perfarmed an audit of the complete financial
informatian of four components {"full scope cempanents”) which were selected
based on ther size or nisk charactenstics For the remaming component "specitic
scope components”), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within
that compenent that we considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the
significant accounts in the financial statements either because of the size of these
accounts or their risk profile

for the current year, the full scepe compenents contributed 81% (20271 89%) of the
Croup’s Profit before tax, @3% {2021 98%) of the Group's Revenue,

The specific scope campanent contnibuted 7% (2027 6%) of the Group's Profit before tax,
A% (2027 2%) of the Group's Revenue, The audit scope of these components may not have
included tesung of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to
the coverage of significant accounts tested for the Group
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Independent Auditor's Report continued

The zharts below rjustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed Climate change
by odr audit teams

Stakehotders are increasingly interested m how climate change willimpact the Group.

Profit before tax Revenue The Group has determined that the most significant future impacts from climate change
on ther operatonrs in the £5G section of the strateqic report. The Group has also explained
their cimate commitments on page 33 1in the ESG section of the strategic report. All of
these disclosures form part of the "Other information,” rather than the audited financial

W statements, Qur procedures on these unaudited disclosures therefore consisted solely

, of constdering whether they are matenially inconsistent with the financial statements,

or our knowledge abtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appear Lo be matenalty

misstated, in line with our responsibilities on "Other information”,

‘n plarring and performing our audit we assessed the potentiatimpacts of climate change
onthe Group's business and any consequential matenal impact onaits financial statements

B O1% Full scope companents B 539 Full scope components Qur audit effortin considening climate change was focused on challenging management's

) ; fnisk assessment of the impact of physical and transition risks and the resulting conclusion

© .1 7% Specific scope components [.] 4% Specific scope components

I that thare was no materialimpact from climate change and the adequacy of the Group's

. 2% Other procedures 3% Other procedures ) i

i disclosures on page 79 of the financial statements which explain the rationale.
Invelvement with component teams We also chailenged the Directors' considerations of climate change risks in their assessment

" In establishing cur overall approach Lo the Group audit, we determimed the type of of going concern and viability and associated disclosures,

work that needed to be undertaken at each of the components by us, as the primary
audiz engagemeant team, or by component auditors from other EY global network firms
operating under our mstruction

Based on cur work we have not identified the impact of climate change onthe financial
statements to be a key audit matter or to impact a key audit matter

Of tre four ful, scope comporents, sudit procedures were performed on these directly by
the primary audit team, £Y UK, whilst audit procedures on the remairing one component
Hersonal Assurarce [Guernsey] Limited) were performed by the component audit team,
EY Guernsey.



Personal Group Holdings Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2022

= <

Independent Auditor's Report centinued

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiona judgment, were of most
sigrificance in our audit of the financic statements of the current period and include the
most significant assessed r1sks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. hese matiers included those which had the greatest effect on: the
overali audit strateqgy, the auccation of resources in the audit; and duecting the efforts
of the engagement team These mattars were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financiat statements as a whaote, and in our opinian thereon, and we da not provide
d separate opinion on these matters

Strategic
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Key observations
communicated tothe
Audit Committee

Valuation of PG Let's Connect
Goodwill [2022: £0m, 2021:
£10.6m)

We constder the risk assacioted
with the voluolron of PG Let's
Cannecit goodwilt 1o be greater o5

o result of increosed uncertainty
mrelation to future cash flove
grojections os @ result of the impact
from the COVIG-T9 pandemic,
econormic uncertainty ulong with
key custorner controct renewaols
ond ongoing supply issues.

Refer to Accounting poficses
fpage 83), and Note M of

the Consolidated Financiot
Statements fpuges 95 ond 86}
The PG Let's Connect gocdwill
balance as at 31 December 2022
has been fully impaired to nil.

To obtain sufficient sudit evidence to
conclude on the valuation of PG Lat's
Connect goodw ll, we performed the
following procadures’

= Examined and assessed Lhe
appropnateness of management's
impairment model, Inctuding an
identification of the cash genarating unit
{"CGU"; and attrnibutable cashfiows,
an assessment of discounted cash flows,
and understanding of the significant
assumptions used in the impairment
test for the identif ied CGL,

> Considered theincreased uncertainty in
the underlying forecasts and chattenged
the future cash flow projections of the
CGU including the appropriateness of the
applied short-term andlong-term growth
rates and estimated conversion rates,

> Reviewed post year end informatign
avallable Lo assess Lhe likelihood of the
key contract renewal

> Assessed the appropriateness of the
identified CGU and attributed cash flows,

> Challenged the future cash flow
projections of Lets Connect to ensure
pipeline business and canverson
rates included in the projections are
appropriate by comparing te prior year
accuracy of farecasung;

» Engaged our valuation speciatists
to assess thereasenableness of the
impairment including an assessment
of Lhe dis¢count rate, and

» Considered whether the applied
accounting treatment s in compliance
wilh IFRS and the Group's accounting
policy, and the Group deisclosures are in Ling
with the required reporting framework.

We have reviewed
managements Let's
Connect impairment
paper along with post
year end information
available which shows
the loss of a mapor
customer, ieadmgloa
fallin cash flows which
no longer support

the recoverability of
goodwill.

Based on the above
considerations, we

are satisfied that the
Let’s Connect goodwill
impairment of £10 6m
beng recognised at
31December 2022 is
dappropriate.

We have reviewed Lhe
retated disclosures and
concluded that these
accurately reflect the
impairment recarded
durmng the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

Key audit matters continyog

Risk

Vatuation of Innectg goodwil{
{2022: $2.6m, 2029: £2.6m)

We consider the risk ossociotig with
the valuatign of fnnecta Quodwilf
16 hgve NCreused us g TEsSull of -
meremseg WACEr tomty over the

future c gsp has\bac\mﬁ:o:v due
fothe LUV 14 Rondemic

Refer to Accountting policres
{page 83, gng Noee 14 of
the Cansalidated TAnciae
Statements fboges 95 g 97

The nnecto go0dwitl ansing on
contalidation Fepresents the
excess of the COs18 of ACYUIsiLion
Gver the Graup's nterest in the far
Yallz of the dentified asyers anhd
Yabiites at tha date of acquisaion
of Innecto in2p1g

Asat 31 December 2022 we noteg
that the valye pf the Innectn
goodwil( was mast sensitive to
the discpynt 13Le and the short -
term grawth rales ofthe digita(
sales. The forecasted cash flowg
ar& dependent on the cononued
Prujecled growth from digitalang
Lonsultancy incumg Current 2093
foracast, show g NOre posiive
Outiook tyr InAEcto, but dye j<1]
the ecanomie yn Certdinty and
_::ﬁ_o:mé pressures that may
MRACT the bugineys's ablity 1o
QEnNerate new busingss, uncertainty
relal =0 16 the byt uee cash Hows
AN L ensitivity 1o the discount rute
tent nueto reman

v

v

.

The iwentifieg key aSsumplions
INVoive m,m_::,nw;:cnwm_jmss
2boul futlire events Forvenich smap
€hanges can resuie 1n a materiag
"MPACT 1o the resylrant valuarion
and therefprg leats 1o g yreater rsk
of matera| Misstarement,

Qur respanse Lo ce risk

Toobta n sufficient ane apprepriate
Ldence 1o conclude onthe valustion pf
goodwill at the year end, we perfarmeqd
the o)) IWING procegdres

Key observations
Catmunicated to the
Audit Committee

Based on our work

WE are satishied thar

e carrying valye of
GOodwiltl in relation

to the scquisition of
Innecip s not matenally
Misstated

Lxamined ang A55e85p0 Lhe
dpRIapriateness of Managemeni-q
IMPATMEnt imode Including an
aentification of the cash genergting
UMt CGL S and attributaple Ccashflows,
an gwmmmmim:no_ﬂaano::nmq cash
flow,. ang understanding of the
SGMICant assumptigng usedin the
IMParment test for the identifigd CGl,

However, therg 15
nherent uncertamiy
within the forecastea
Lash Hlows used 1n 1ha
HMpairment. model due
tethe expertpg growth
IRNECtD (g, (vsed in
NGte 14 of the financial
statements) Thesn
bncertainties coylg have
a sigmficant dadverse
Impact onthe future
Cashilows af the Innecte
CGU ang may affect the
future Cartying vatye af
the goadwill

Cons dered the INCreased unLertaingy in
Lie: waderty W forccasts amd challengeg
the future cash flow Projections of the
CGUY, ‘netuding the IBProprateness of the
appied short-term andlung-term qrowth
‘ates angd estimateq Conversign rates,

ASsessad the pLopriateness of the
identified CGU ang attributed cash flows;

Challenged the future cash flow

brojec hiung of Innecio ty €nsure pipahina
busiress ang conversign ratos included
N ihe projectians are appropriate by
COMEANng 15 prigr Yearatturacy of
::me::@ N applying sensitivity
analyss,

We have reviewaq the
relsted disclosures and
encluded thag Lhese
aceurately reflect 1he
c:mc:m‘::&mwctammm
with the future casp
flows of 1ng Innecto
CBU, ay wellas the
SehsITvITIes and key
assumptions

Engaged Obrvaluation specialsts T assess
methadologies ang #S5UMDOONS us e 1y
the analys g neluding the feasonablengss
ofthe discaunt rq te by Cansidering
Innectony specific CIrcumstances as well

A5 COMgarab|e COmpanres,

Pertcrmea mm:ﬂ:c:wa:mg; taassess
the Inpagp of certam key varables on
levels of headroom, meluding discount rate
and grawith aAssumptions, ang

Considered whether the appliag
2LCDUNING Lreatment is n fompliance
WILh FRS and the Group’s accounting
Policy, and {he Group disclosurps aren ine
Wih he requirey reporling framewnri

Overview

Risk

Valuation of 9oodwill ang
other intangible assels arising
on acquisition of Quintage
Censulting Group (2023: £0.9m)
Refer o bnnoc::.:q Dolicigs
{page 43); and note T of

the Consoligoteg Fincacio)
Stotements (Pages 95 to a7,

an Ist Jyly 2022, Personal Group
Haldings pre acquired Quintage
ﬂc:m::_:m Graup Umited{ QCe iR
aleading employep Experienge
and rewarg Consultancy, for 4
Cash considerayion of £09m

We consiar he identificg tron
and valuation pf dentiflable
tangibte sssets such as
customer retationshps. acguitted
warkforce and brang. The QTG
2CGUISILION has, hean Classed as 4
signtficant risk aue ta the nature
of judgments ang estimates
invalyed in valuing the ntangiile
assels acquired

Strategic
Report

Governance

Ourresponse tg the risk

Toobtain sufficient aud)t evidence to

conclude an the valuation af intangiple

assets arising on acquIsition of GG ang

the valuation of goodwill a1 the year end,

We performed the following procedures:

> EXamined |he QUG Sale ang Purghase
Agreement top understand tarms and
Conditions and ther IMpact on the
ACQuIsItian SCCounting,

v

Assessad aPpropnataness of the ldentifeg
ntangible assets ang <ash flows wdengifiey
d5 attnbutable to Hzmmmmmmmﬁ_,

Y

Reviewed (he valuatign report of
Managenteng's EKpEr! and assessag the
methedulogy ang assumptions vdopted by
Management for cateuiat g the fair values
of INtangible acsets arsing on ecquisiLion,

v

Engaged By valuation speg iy 150y 10 a53es5s
the reasonatleness of the key assumptions
by tonsidering wmqme:&oacu.m (QCCs)
spacthic crcumstances as well as
Comparable compames,

o

Assesseq tompleteness of the Intangiple
ASSCLL ansing from ATENSIEion,

v

Assessed APPropsiateness of the ident fed
CGUand challenged the crofitatibity
Brojections of the el specifically growth
fate, rayally rales ang obsolescence
AsSUMpUGNs,

“

Assessad JPAropridtencss of the
impairment model ang challenged the
Key assumgtians _wuv»_mqnv:i:mmmﬁ:mzﬁ
specifically discount rateand short-term
and long-term growth rates; and

> Lonsiderag whether the apptied
accounting treatment s in Lomptiance
With IFRS and tha Group's accounting
rolgy, and the Group disclosures are n tine
With the etharey reporting framework,

Financia(
Statements

Key observations
CemMmunicated tothe
Audit Committee

We are satisfied that the
intangile assets ansing
fromthe acquisitign gf
QLG are u_un_‘n_n:mmmm.\
dentified ang accounted
for and theirvaluation
3t ihe acquisition date s
matenally Lorrect,

We are satisfipg that
there s ng Impairment
and the carrying valye
af the Guomw(| s
2PRIDPrIaLe ag at
I1December 2u77

in Adition, we gra
satistied that the
aceaunting for che
acquisitien ang retated
disclosures are in
cempliance with the
anplicable 4ccounting
framework,
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Independent Auditcr's Report continued

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of matenality in pranning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the 2ffect of identuficd misstatements on the audit and n ferming our audit opimion

Materiality

The mognitude of an omission or nusstatement that, individually orin the oggrsgate,
could reosonably be expected to influ=nce the economec decisions of the users of the
financial statements Motenolity provides o basis for determining the nature and extent
of cur quadit procedures,

We determined matenality for the Group To be £165,050 (2027: £219,000), which s 5%
12027 5%) cf the consolidated profit betore tax, adjusted tor the Let’s Connect imparment
of L10.6m. Given the one oft nature of the impairmeant, we have excludedit from our
matzriality calcuation The Group has been profitable over a number of years, and we
Judge the focus of shareholders to be the Group’s underlying profitabiity and earnings
per share We consider that 1t remains he most appropriate basis to determine matenality
for the Group

We reassessed the mitiavmatenaaty for the Group from £217,000 to £79:5,050 due
toadecrease in the Group's profit before tax between the interim forecast amount
{uponwhich the iritial material was based) and the year end actual When reassessing
materiality, we gave due consideration to the impact of the geodwillimpairment as set
out above. We reassessed our audit procedures as a result of the decreased materiality.

we determined materiality for the Parent Company to he £252,832 (2021 £250,000),
which 5 1% (2027: 1%) of the parert Company equity. We have used the capitai based
méeasure for determining matenality due te the Parant Company being a holding company

we glso reassessed initial materiality for the Parent Company from £267,300 to £252,832

due to adecrease in the Parent Company's equity between 31 0ctober 2022 (upon which

our iitiglmatenality was based) and 37 Jecember 2022 We considered the impact of this
on the extent of gur audit procedures

Financial
Statements

Strategic

67

Report Governance

Performance materiality

Ihe applicahion of materiality ot the individual account or batance level itis set at an
amount to reduce to on appropriately iow leve({ the probabibity that the aggregate of
uncorrected aond undetected misstatements exceeds matenahty

Onthe basis of our risk assessments, together with our éssessment of the Group’s overali
controlenvironment, our judgement was that performance materiality was /5% (2021, 75%}
of our planning mateniality, namewy £146,288 {2021: £165,000). We have set performance
materality at this percentage as we have notidentified any significant errors in the prior
year audils

Audit work at component iocations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over
significant finarcial statement accourts Is undertaken based on a percentage of total
performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each component is
based on therelative scale and risk of the companent to the Group as awhole and our
assessment of the nisk of misstatement at that component. In the current year, the range
of performance matenality allocated to components was £16,440 to £146,288 (2021
£33,000 10 £165,000),

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial,

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them alluncorrected audit
differences in excess of £9,000 (2027 £11,000), which is set at 5% of planning matenality,
as wellas differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements aganst both the quantitetive measures
of materigity discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations
N farming our opinion
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Independent Auditor's Report continued

Other information

The other information comprises the information included inthe annual report set cut
on pages 1to 62, other than the finanZa, statements and our auditor's report thereon
The directors are responsible for the other informaton

Qur opinten on the financrll statemerts dooes not cover the othaer information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

nconnection with cur audit of the finanual statements, our responsibility s to read the
other mformaticn ard, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally
inconsistent with the financiat statements or cur knoweledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materally m ssiated. If wedentify such material inconsistencies
or apparent meterial mestatements, we ere required Lo determine whether this gives rise
toareatenal misstatement in the finendigLstatemerts or a material misstatement of the
otherinformation, If, based on the werk we have performed, we conclude that there s 4
material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

we have nothing toreport e this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, the part of the direclors’ remuneration repert to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

ino..r cpinion, based on the work und 2riaken in the course of the audit

> thainforration given in the strategic report and the directors' repert for the finznoal
year for which the financial stotements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements, and

> thastrategic report and directors’ r2port have been prepared inaccordance with
dapplicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In thz ught of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company
andits environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatementsn the strategic report of the directors report.

Strategic

Financial

Report Statements

We have nothing toreportinrespect of the fotiowing mattersin relation Lo which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, 10 our opinion:

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

= the parert company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remunerauon
Report to be audited are not Inagreement with the accounting records and returns; or

'

certain discicsures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

A

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully i the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 67,
the directors are responsible for the proparation of the fingnoial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control s the directors
determine s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

in prepanng the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group
and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matiers related Lo gong concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liqurdate the group or the parent compdany or to cease
operations, or have noregustic alternative but to do so

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiat statements
as a whole are freg from matenalmusstaternent, whather due to fraud or error, and to
1ssue an auditor's repert that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s ¢ high level
of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with 1SAs (LK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to mfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these firancial staterments,
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Independent Auditor's Report continued

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irrequlariiies, including fraud, are instences of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
we design pracedures inune with our responsibiuties, outlined above, Lo detect
irrequlanties including traud The risk of not detecting a materiat rmisstatement due 1o
fraud 1s higher than the risk of not detecting one resu.ting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,

or through collusion The extent to which pur procedures are capable of detecting
irreqularities, including fraud 15 detanad below,

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
hoth those charged with governarce of the company and management.

> Weobtaned ar understanding of the tegal and regu.atary frameworks that are
appucable to the group and determined that the direct laws and regulations related to
etements of Company law and tax l2gislation, and the financial reporting framewaork.
Our considerations of other laws ard requlations that may have a material effect on
the financial stataments included parmissions end supervisory reguirements of the
Prudential Regulation Authorty (‘PRAY), the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) ard the
Guernsey Financial services Commission {{GFSC',

> We understosd how Lhe Company 15 Complying with those frameaworks by making
erquines of management, and throagh discussions with those charged with
gevernance. We also reviewed correspondence between the Company and the
regulatory bodies; reviewed menutes of the Board and the Risk and Compliance
Coemmittee; and gained anunderstanding of the Company's approach to governance,
demanstrated by the Board's approval of the Company's governance framework.

> We assessed the susceptibility of the Group’s financial statements to matenal
misstaternent, including Fow fraud might occur by considernng the controis that the
Cecmpeny has estabished to address nisks identified by the entity, or that otherwise seek
1o prevent, deter or detect fravd. Where fraud risk, including the nisk of management
averride, was considered tc be ugher, we pertormed audit procedures to address each
identified nsk These procedures inctuded:

> Rovicwing estimates tor evidence of management bias Supported by our valuation

speciaists, we assessed f there were any indicators of management bias in the
valuation of goodwill.

> lestung the appropriateness of journacentnes recorded in the general tedger, with a
Tocus on manuat jodarnals and evaluaung the business reticnaie for significant end/
Or unusudl transactions,

Strategic

Financial

Report Statements

Afurther description of our responstbilities for the audit of the financial statements
s located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at hteps: #www. frc.org.uk/
auditarsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

Thisreportis made solely to the company's members, as a body, In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to
theryin an auditor’s report and for no other purpese. To the tullest extent permitted by
iaw, we go nal accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Rabert Bruce (Senior statutory auditor)
forand on behatf of Crnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Lendan

27 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement

2022 2021
Note £'000 £'000
Gross premiums written 25,660 20,000
Outward reinsurance premiums _pws Lol
Change inunearned premiums (254) 208)
” Change inrensurers' share of unearned premiurms (11) 19
mw..:mg premiums net of reinsurance . . 25,257 2a6/0
Employee benefits and services incame . 23,627 PENEE]
m ‘e‘_o:njmq resale income . . ) 37,389 20,557
" Other ncome 237 2
i Investmentincome 145 2
: Group revenue 86,655 foail
. Claimsincurred {6,990)
m Insurance operating expenses - (6,619)
_ Employee benefits and services expenses ' (22,236) {22370,
_ Voucher resale expenses (37,368} 26,804
_ Other mxum:mmm; (33 Y
Group administration expenses (8,973} 19.779]
Share based payments expenses - [291) 16
Unrealised losses on equity investments {210) -
Cha-iLable donations {100) L1008
Group expenses (82,820} 0,139,
Operating profit 3,835 23
Finance costs (20) 152,
1 ‘moons..;. impairment e (10,575) ‘ -
, [Loss)/Profit before tax (6,760) 1,412
Taxztion {493) A
| (Lass}/Profit for the year (7,253) 3497
f The loss for Lhe year s attnibutable 1o 2quity holders of 2ersonal Group Holdings Plc There s n other comprehensive income for
! the yedr and, as a result, no statement of
, Earnings per share Pence Pence comprehensive iInccme has been produced.
” sasi: H 3. a The accompanying accounting policies ¢énd notes
| Dituzed 17 (23.2) s form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Censolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
Goodwil K| 2,684 12,666
; Intangible assets ) 2,384 103/
Preperty, plant mwm equipment B 4,639 50143
9,707 29368
Current assets
Financial investrments i 3,031
Trace and other recervables 11 15,863
© Reirsurance assets 20 95 s
, Inventaries ‘ 18 726 704
| Cash and cash equvalents . 91 16,958 20,97
W Current tax assets ) 229 310
36,902 Al
Totzl assets 46,609 SALS

The accompanying accounting policies and notes
forman integrat part of these financial statements.



mn_.mnmmmn _u.:_m:n_m_ NM
Report Statements

Personal Group Holdings Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2022 m _“Wu A V

-Consolidated Balance Sheet at 37 December 2022 continued

2022 2021

' Note £000 £'000

EQUITY
_ Equity attributable to equity holders of Personal Group

Holdings Plc
| Share capital P 1,562 11061
, Share premium 27 1,134 ~.134
, Share based payment reserve 367 tod
W Capital redemptian reserve 23 2
, Other reserve [55) (32}

Profit and loss reserve 27,946

Total equity 30,978

LIABILITIES

_ Non-current liabilities

' Deferred tax tabilities 23 681 A78
_ Trade and gther payables - 130 07
Current liabilities )
Trade and other payables 24 ‘ 11,346 12,156
Insurance contract labilities 25 3,474 ) wom:
14,820 L3
Total liabilities 15,631 10 323
Total equity and liabilities 46,609 57604

Ihe firarc ol stater-enty we e soproved by the doerd on 2/ March 2023
J,( W T

|
| sMace D Frost
|
|

Poned

et O e Vhef Faeontive

e ALCOGPYDANY G aCCeUnting 060 C os and nates

regrat patt of these faancal statementy
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Company Balance Sheet at 37 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £°000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings s 25,474 FRWHE
25,474 25003
Current assets
Trade and other recevables _ 322 132
Cash and cash equivalents 1 237 115
559 111
Total assets 26,033 25541
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders .n..* Bersonal Group Holdings Plc
Share capital 22 1,562 15617
Share premwm 1,134
Share based payment reserve 429
Cap talredemption reserve 24
Other reserve (55) (12}
Profit and loss reserve 22,217 22172
Total equity 25,311 25014
LIABILITIES
Current :mcm:zmm
Trade and onjm_.umwmgmm s 722 197
Total Liabilities 122 A4/
Totzl equity and liabilities 26,033 24

TIe Dere L Lampany has taken advantage of seclion 408 of the Companies Act 2006 29d has not maudod s own profil

BIATCRITERNS IO W R A A AL TR I

it

,U/r)f_f\rﬁ\, v

5 Mace
rhetFinan o

por 319G

RIS R

D Frost
Ret b xe

L

1

Lt

ncial statements were aoproved by the Board on 27 Marcn 2073

ol o T year wes L3 303,

e e
s SpVN

272218000,

The gccompanying ot counting policies and notes
‘ormanantegral part of these fimancial stetements,
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

. Equity attributable to equity halders of Personal Group Holdings Plc

74

Share

Capital based Profit
Share Share redemption payment Other and loss Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1,561 1,134 24 158 (32) 38,436 41,281
Dividends pard - - - - - (3,310) (3,310)
Employee share-based compensation - - - 271 - 20 291
Proceeds of SIP~ share sales - - - - - 11 11
Cos: of SIP shares sold - - - - 20 (20) -
Cos: of SIP shares purchased - - - - (43) - {43)
LTIP options exercised 1 - - (62) - 62 1
Transactions with owners 1 - - 209 (23) 3,230 [3,050)
Loss for the year (7,253) (7,253}
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1,562 1,134 24 367 (55) 27,946 30,978
Balance as at 1January 2021 1,561 1A bz} - AN 38,076 AN
Dividends paid - - - - - - 13 244) 14,244
Empicyee share-based compensation ih8 - i :b
Proceeds of S5IP~ share sales - 24 PR

Cost of 5IP shares sold 28 sk
Cost of SIPshares purchased - - - - 139) - 139
Trarsactions with gwners - 154 (L2230 1.3 0uin
Profit for the year - - 159/ 30497
Balance as at 31 December 2021 L he1 1134 7L 170 32 18,43 41,241

ERETIT

The accompdnying accourtng poicies and notes form anintagral part of these financial statements.
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-Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022
Equity attributable to equity holders of Personal Group Holdings Plc
Share
Capital based Profit
Share Share redempticn payment Other and loss Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve equity

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1,561 1,134 24 158 {32) 22,172 25,017
Dividends paid - - - - - (3,310) (3,310)
Employee share-based compensation - - - 271 - - 271
Proceeds of SIP* share sales - - - - - 11 11
Cost of SIP shares sald - - - - 20 (20) -
nom.H of S|P shares purchased - - - - (43) - (43)
S5ha es 1ssued in the year 1 - - - - ) - 1
Transactions with owners 1 - - 271 {23) (3,319) (3,070)
Profit for the year 3,364 3,364
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1,562 1,134 24 429 (55) 22217 25,311
Balance as at 1January 2021 156 ) 24 PRI 25,840
Dividends paid - - - - - (3240
Employee share-based compensation - 1hHE 1u8
Proceeds of SIP* share sales 24 e
Cost of SIP shares sold 26 173)
Cost of 5IP shares purchased - - - - (&R - 130!
Transactions with owners - - 154 111 13,2718) {3,101}
Profit for the year - - - 2,078 2,278
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1561 BT 24 158 32 221719 2n01%

lFe accompanying accounting poucies and nates forre an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ccnsolidated Cash Flow Statement

" 2022 2021

. Note £'000 £'000

_ Met cash from aperating activities [see next page) 3,240 /il

I Investing activities

_ Additions to praperty, plant and equiprient 0 (332) VRl

. Additions to intangible assets ' (1,196) 1961}
Proceeds fromdisposal of property, plent and equipment ‘ 19 ‘ 1

© Proceeds frem disposal oﬁ.j.w._m:ni_mmmmﬁm 871 -

m Purchase of financial assets (1,517) - 19)
Interest received G 145 R
Acguisition of QCG Limited i ‘ {812} ‘ -
Met cash from investing activities {2,802) WAy
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 1
Interest paid - 2
Purchase of own shares by the SIP* ‘ (54) (24
Proceeds from disposal of own .w:mﬁmm by the SIp* 21 ‘ 20
Payment of lease liabitities 0 (429) 1424

” Dwvidends patd . .u_mws. o 13,270

_ MNet cash used in financing activities (3,771) 13684
Mel change in cash and cash equivalenis {3,333) 2,702
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyear 2 20,291 14549
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2l 16,958 20.2m

The accomparying accounting policies and notes form an integrai part of these financial statements,
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement conlinuad

2022 2021
Note £'000 £'000
Operating activities
[Loss)/Profit after tax (7,253) 3049/
Adjustments for
Depraciation 16 1,052 966
Amartsation of intang ble assets 1a 186 Rt
Goodwillimpairment 14 10,575
Profit or loss on disposal of property, p.ant and equipment 12 i1
Rea 1sed and unrealised investment losses 210
interestreceived (145) 23
ﬁ I m..mmm‘njmamm ) Nc 37
| Share-based payment expenses L 291 269
, Taxation expense recognised inincome statement ~ 1 493 145
” Changes in warking capital
W Trace and cther receivables {1,637) 4280
frace and other payables {1,010
, Inventories 172 34
! Taxes paid (326) 1920)
Net cash from operating activities 3,240 /588

The accompanytng accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022 200
Note £'000 £'000
Net cash from operating activities [see below) 10 146
Investing activities
Dividends receved 3,450
Net cash used in investing activities 3,450
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 1
Purchase of own shares by the SIP* (54} (19
Proceecs from chsposal of own shares by the SiP* 21 20
Dividends paid i 1! {3,310)
Net cash used in financing activities {3,342)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 118 27
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 7 119 g7
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 21 237 )
Operating activities
Profit after tax 3,364 Pt
Changes in working capital
Trade and other recewables (129) .
Trade and other payables 225
Dividends received . (3,450}
Met cash from operating activities 10 HG

Joamnr S Bl

The parent Company has cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2022 including £168,000 {2021 £50,000) of

Company's own cash and £69,000 (£85,000) relating Lo the purchase and sale of 5IP shares by the employee benefit trust.

Ihe accompanying accounting poucies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 General information

The arincipat activities of Persona. Group Holdings PIc ["the Company”) and subsidianes
itogether "the Group™)include providing employee services and transacting short term
acaident and hea.th insurance in the UK

The Zompany 15 a irited laiity compary incarporated and domiciled in Fngland
"he address of 1ts registered office is John Ormond House, 899 Silbury Boulevard,
Milton <eyres, MK3 3XL,

The Companry s listed or the Alternativa Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange

Thece financial szatements have beer approved for issue by the Board of Direciors

st 2 Maree 300

2 Accounting policies

These financial statements of Personal Growp Heldings 1Pl are for the year ended

1 Jecohy - P02 The firasaial statements a7 ool

enaraccoreance with [
a0 REan conformity w Lo the reguirements of Zomeanies Act 2306

rrdo

{FRS 17 Insurance Conmrgetsim o i sclve Ter oer ods om Tdonudry 2023 11351/
‘Insurance contracts’ provides comprehensive guidance on acceuniing forinsurance
contracts and investment contracts vath discretionary features and s expacted 1o
have a sigmticantimpact on accounting for insurance contracts and presentation of the
insurance revenue and insurance serv ce result for many insurers.

under FRS 7, different measurement approaches for the insurance contract iabilities apply,
depending on the length and nature of the insurance contracts being accounted for
Forcertain contracts, IFRS 17 foreseec a simplified ipremium allocation) approach,
which can be applied to contracts that have a coverage period of 12 months or less or
forwhich suck simplificaticn would produce @ measurement of the tiability for remaining
coverage and uatnlity for incurred claims, that would not differ materially from the one
obtamed applying the general model

Allhospital pian, death benefit paan and convalescence plan policies written by the Group
dre wss than "2 months in length Whi.e Employee Default poucies may be ionger than
12 months, calcuiations performed by the Group indicate that the application of the
simpified premium allocation approach under IFRS 17 does not yield a matenally different
resu't than that obtamed by applying the general mode! ([profit difference idenaified for
2022 would have been circa £90k higher under the General Method).
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The Group has, therefore, assessed that aluinsurance contracts 1issued, and held in force
as of the transition date, will be eligible for the application of the sumplified approach
and will apply the simplifred approach for such contracts under 1£RS 17. Due to their
short term nature suchin force contracts will typically use the fully retrospective
transition approach.

1he Group will adopt IF RS 17 retrospectively and restate the comparative period of 2022
where required. he Group expects the impact of IFRS 17 on net equity at 1Jdanuary 2022
and 31 December 2022 to be immatenal.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The functional and presentatignal currency of the Group 1s Sterling. These statements
and the prior year comparatives have been presented to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise stated

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements,
esTorsles and assamst ons Lot affect the application of the Growp's account:ng po
and the reported amount of assets, labilities, ncome and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Csumates and underlymng assumptions are reviewed on gn ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively

Climate Risk

In preparing these financial statements the Oirectors have considered the impact of
the physical and transition risks of cimate change, but have concluded thatit does

not have a matenalirpact on the recognition and measurement of the assets and
Liabibities in these financial statements as at 31 December 2022 Thisis because the
assets are reported at farr value under UK endorsed IFRS. Market prices willinclude the
current expectations of the impact of climate change on these investments, Insurance
liabilities are accrued based on past snsurable events so witl not be iImpacted by any
futurempact of cimate change. mowever, we recogmise that government and societal
responses to climate change risks are still developing and the future impact cannot be
predicted. Future valuations of assets may therefore differ as the market responds to
these changing impacts or assesses the impact of current requirements differently and
the frequency/magnitude of future insurable events linked to the effect of cimate risks
could change,
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Notes to the Financial Statements conlinued

2 Accounting pelicies contnued

2.1 Basis of preparatien continuec

Judgements

Informatior about judgements made n applying accounting policies that have the most

significant effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated firancial staterrents
s inc.wded in the following rotes

> Acent vs prircipgi (Note 2.22)  whether the sale ot discounted vouchers should be
treated a5 d PriNcipal or agency trarsaction.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Informaticr about assumptions and estimation uncertairties that have a significant risk of
resu.oing in @ material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Lakabhthies within
the yedr erding 31 Decerrtier 2022 1s irciuded ir the following notes.

> Coodwill valuation (Note 14] key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts.

> Bstablishirg the vaiue of Claims outstending {Note 25)
tha provisicrs for c.aims

key assumptions regarding

Going concern

The financial statemerts are prepared on a going concern basis. In considering
going concern, the Directors have rev ewed the Group's and Company's future cash
requirements, earnings projections and capital projections over the next 12 months
ending 27 March 2024 The Directors Celieve that projections have been prepared on

vl cenaan

A e mnatt v range ol Sotonualonar
to trading performance over the next 12 maenths ending 27 March 2024, inciuding the
impects of cumate nsk discussod above.

Having prepared end considered these stress scenaries the Direclors have corcluded
that the Group and Company will be asle to operate without requiring any external
funding and therefore belicve 1t s appropriate 1o prepare the financial statements

of the Group and Company on a going concern basis. This s supported by the Groap's,
and £ompany's, sguidity position at the year end
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2.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities controtled by the Greup. The Group controls an entity when 1t
15 exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns fromits involvernent with the entity and
has the ability to affect thase returns through its power over the entity. In assessing
control, the Group takes into considerstion potential voling rights that are currently
exercisable. The acquisition dateis the date on which control is transferred to the
acquirer 'he financial statements of subsidianes are included in the consolidated
financialstatements from the date that control commences until the date that
contro: ceases

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised INcome and expenses arsing
from these transactions, are eliminated on consolidation

2.3 Goodwill and acquired intangibles

Coodwill representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired, 15 capitalised and reviewed
annudlly forimpairment. Goodwill1s carried at cost less accumulated impairment {0sses.
Negative goodwill 1s recognised immediately after acquisttion in the ncome statement.

Intangible assets meeting the relevant recognition critenia are initially measured at cost
and amortised on a systematic basis over their useful uves.

2.4 Revenue

Rovenue s measured by reference to the far value of consideration received or
receivabile by the Group for goods supplied and services prowided, excluding VAL,
2T and trade discounts.

Whilst IFRS 15 considerations have been noted for the most significant revenue streams to

wh il apolicahle, the nsgrance pro mium revi

e streamss cut of sgope Tor IFRS 15
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued
2.4 Revenue contirued
Earned premium

Farned premium is recognised in the penod in which the Group is legally bound through
acontract to provide insurance cover, whichas typically @ week or amonth in length
and rerews at the erd of each cover perod It represents the garned amount of gross
wriLtzen premiums receivable under the contract. The remainder of gross written
prermums are deferred as a provision for unearnec premiums until recognised as
revenLe computed on amonthly or daily pro rata tasis. The unearned premium reserve
Is typically small as a large proportior of policies are weekly renewals

Nel earned premiums are stated net of amounts passed to rensurers. Premums are
shown betore deduction of commission and exclude any sates based taxes or duties.

Other insurance related

Commussionracevabie on the renewal of previously sold financial services are
recognised by the Group as the renewal takes place with the underwriter.

Other Owned Benefits - IT Salary Sacrifice
Income from the provision of salary sacrifice technolegy productsis recognised when
the goods are dispatched.

IFRS 15 - 1T salary sacrifice income (Other Owned Benefits)

Strategic
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IFRS 15 - Platform income (Benefits Platform)

Performance Ongoing access to Hapi platform with each relevant month access

Obligations 1s provided being considered a separate performance obligation,

Transaction Price  Prices are set on a by employee rate and are agreed with each client

individually.

Allocation of Price  Price allocated eventy to each period/performance obligation.

Satisfaction of Recognisecd straight-line over period of agreement of service as

Obligations the performance obligationis deemed to be met each month as

the contract progresses.

Voucher mcome derives from customers ordering retail vouchers through the Hapi
platform. b vouchers are fulfilied and made avaitable instantly to the customer while,
for reloadable cards, customers receive these several working days after placing the
order. Income from the sale of reipadable cards and e vouchers is recognised as arders
are fulfilled by the Group. In the vast majonty of these transactions the Group aCts as
principal. Refer to 2.22 for further details of agent vs principal assessment.

IFRS 15 - Voucher resale income

Performance
Obligations

Prowvision of IT goods to employer companies. Goods are acguired by
the Group from various suppliers and held as inventory until sold to
customers at an agreed price,

Performance Provision of voucher to individuals/companies.

Obligations

Transaction Price  Prices are based on each retailer's disgount on purchase into the Groug,

Allocation of Price. Whole price allocated to the sole performance oblgation.

Satisfaction of
Obligations

Recognised on dispatch of voucher as this s the paint at which the Group
has fulfilled its part of the agreed contract.

Trarsaction Price  Purchase price vanes dependant on product purchased but is

clearly indicated.

Allozauon of Price  Prices are allocated by product, volumes and values.

Satisfaction of
Obligatians

Revenue 1s recognised on dispatch as Group has met its performance
obligation as peor the contracts in place.

Platform income
Datfarm income including that dernved from Hap, 1s recognised on a straight line basis
aver the length of the contract.

Whe e a proportion of this income and costs, credited or charged in the current year,
rewate to the provisior of services provided in the fouaowing year, they are carried
forward as deferred income or costs, ca.culated cnra daily pro rata basis.

The Grougs receves income fromits provision of HR consultancy services to corporate
clients. Consu'tancy iIncome 15 recognised in the profit and loss account at the retevant
charge gut rates of the consultants and based on the chargeable time spent on each
L pigetl
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting policies continucd
2.4 Revenue continued

IFRS 15 - Consultancy income (Pay and Reward}

Perfoimance Provision of consultancy services, typically based on an agreed number

Obligations of consuitant hou's,

Transaction Price  Prices are based on each contractual client agreement, dependant on
the level and duration of consultant hours spent.

. Allocationof Price  Each chargeable hour wili have an agreed price dependant on the level
, and experience of the consultant.

Satisfaction of
Obtigations

Each consultant hour charged s considered a separate performance
obligation and recognition is recorded periodically {typically monthly)
pased on chargeable hours in that pernod,

Other income

Properry rental tncome is recogrised on & receivable basis when the right to receive
consideration has been established

Costs incurred to fulfil o contract

Costs incurred to fullila cantract under IFRS 15 are recognised as an asset unaer certan
conditigns tard out in IFRS 35,95, The capitalised contract Costs are amortised o g
systematic basisthat s consistent with the Company’s transfer of the related goods
Or $ervICes to the customer.

Capitaused contract costs are subject to an impainment assessment at the end of each
reporung pericd. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss There are no contracts
inthe Group forwhich these conditions are met and, as such, ne assets have been recognised.

Investment income

mterestincomes recognised on an effective interest rate method

2.5 Reinsurance

Outwards reinsurarce prermiums are accounted for in the same accounting pernod as the
I premiums for the related direct or Inwards business beirg reinsured Reinsurers' share of
techycglreservesis shown as an asset In the balarce sheet

AMgLrts recoverdbie urder remnsurance contracts are assessed for imparrment at each

Lalance sheot date. fobjective eviderce of impairment oxists reinsurance assets are
reduced to the level at which they are considered to be recoverable, and animpan mant
loss 15 recognised Ir the iIncome statement,
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2.6 Claims recognition and claims provisions

The provision for claims represents the gross estimated liability arising from claim
episodes in the current and preceding financial years which have not given rise to claims
paid. The provision includes an allowance for claims management and handling expenses.

Theprovisces tor Slarrs s osirmaten based o cone= o mation, end “he o
Habilizy may vary 35 o rosut b af subseaue

1male

inforahion and averls

Adpustments to the amount of claims provision for prior years are inciuded in the Income
statement i the financial year in which the change 1s made,

In setting the provisions for tlarms outstanding, a best estimate 1s determined on an
undiscounted basis and then a margin of prudence ss added such that there 1s confidence
that future claims willbe met fromthe provisions When IFRS 1/ becomes effective from
IstJanuary 2023, the margin of prudence added to the claims provision will form the
basts of the nisk agjustment for non financial risk. [he level of prudence set 1s one that
provides an appropriate degree of confidence.

The liability adequacy test s performed at each reperted balance sheet date. This requires
the estimate of future cash flows under its Insurance contracts to be measured against
the recogrised insurance Labilities

2.7 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and software iIntangibles are stated at cost, net of
depreciation, amortisation and any provision for impairment No depreciation or
amorusation s charged dunng the period of construction,

Research and development

Cxpenditure on research activities 1srecognised in the income statement as an expense
as reurred

Expenditure on devolopment activities 1s capitalised if the product or processis
technicatiy and commercialiy feasibie and the Group intends, and has the technical
abihity and sufficient resources to, complete development, future econormic benefits
are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during 1ts development. Development activities Involve a plan
or design for the production of new or substantially improved oroducts or processes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting pelicies continued

2.7 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets conunued

Research and development contnued

The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, external consultancy costs and
salary costs where a distnct product has been created Other development expenditure
Is recognised in the income statement 4s an expense as incurred Cdapitalised development

expenditdre 1s stated at cost less accumulated amortsation and less accumulated
Imparrment losses

Disposal of assets

The gan orcss ansing on the disposal 9° ar asset s determined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
N the Income statement,

Amortisation and depreciation

Amcrtisaticn and depreciaticn are calculated to write down the Cost or valuation iess
esumated residual value of allintangisle assets, and tangible assets other than freehold
land excluding investment properties by equal annualinstatments over their estimated
economic useful ives.

Residudt vaiue 1s reviewed annuatly ard amended If material. The rates generally
appl cab.g are:

Freehold properties SCyears

Motor vehicles 3

Computer equipment

Furniture, fixtures and fittings '

Computer software and development 20 Ayearsy
Internatly generated intangibles - ayears
Intangible assets Lohyears

Rigiit of Use Assets lermo® [ edse

2.8 Leases

Under IFRS 16, with the exception of s1ort term or low value leases, all operating

and finange leases are accounted forin the balance sheet. Oninception of the lease,
the f.ture payments, including eny expected end of Ufe costs, are discounted based on
themplicit interest rate in the spectic iease, ARight of Use” assets created at an egual
value depreciated over the life of the lease which is determined by the contract with
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dny break clauses being reviewsad as to the expected use at the time of inception and at
cach following year end. Payments made to the lessor are debited to the batance sheet
and the ircorme statementis charged with monthly depreciation and interest which s
included as finance costs in the accounts,

Low value leases or short ife leases of less than one year are expensed directly into the
Incame statemeant account on a straight Line aver the ife of the lease

2.9 Impairment of nen-financial assets

Fortne adoaoses of g

LS A IMPAlr enl, assets are geounes 21 Lhe . owesLlovels fo-
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash gencrating urits). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash

generating unit level Goodwillis allocated to those cash generating units that are
Crpeclen o LRom synergaes of thy

d husiness camburation ard represeet
the lowestevel within the Group at which management monitors the related cash flows.

Goodwill, otherindividual assets or cash-generating units that include goodwill and those
intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested for impairment at least annually.

All other individual assets or cash generating units are tested forimpairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. See Note 14 for further details on the impairment testing of goodwill.

2.10 Taxation

Current tax s the tax currently payabie based on taxable profit for the year.

Deferred income taxes are calcwated using the bability method on temporary
differences. Deferred tax 1s generally provided on the difference between the carrying
amounts of assets and Liabilities and their tax bases,

However, deferred tax s not provided on the initial recogmtion of gecdwill, nor on the
imtal recognition of an asset or liatility unless the related transaction 15 a busingss
combination or affects tax or accounting profit,

Deferred tax on temporary differences asscciated with shares in subsidiaries and joint
venturas 1s not provided If reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled
by the Group and 1t1s probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.
In additicn, tax losses availlable to be carmed forward as well as other income tax credits
to the Group are assessed for recognition as deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued
2.10 Taxation continued

Deferred tax labiuties are provided in full, with no discounting. Deferred tax assets are
reccgnised to the extent thatit s pronable that the undenying deductible temporary
differences will be ¢bic 1o be offser aganst future taxable income. Current and deferred
Tax assets and Labrinies are Lalc . ated dt tax rates that are expectod Lo apply 1o thar
respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

2.11 Financial assets

ngncial assets include, equity mvestments, bank deposits (as defined below}:

loans and other recervabiles. Firancial assets are assignad to the different categories
by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose forwhich they
were acquired.

Afinancial asset s measured at amartised cost «f1t1s both held within a business modal
whose abjective s 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and its contractuat
Lerms give rise 1o cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the
amauart outstarding. Far the purposes of this assessment, "principal” 1s defined as

the fairvalue of the financial asset onnitial recognition, and "interest” s defined as
consideration for the ume value of money and for the credit rnisk associated with the
pnncipelamount outstanding. In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal andinter2st, the Group considers the contractual terms

of the instrament, including any terms which may affect the timing or amount of
contractuat cash flows.

Loans and recervabies are nan derivative financiat assets with fixed or determinable
payments that dre not quoted in an active market Loans and receivables are measured
subsequent to inmal recogmuon at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
lass provision for impawrment. Any change in their value through imparment or reversal
of Impairment is recognised in the incore staterment

Fixedinterost rate bark deposits with a matunity date of three months or more from
the date of acquisition are classified as financial assets

Lquity investments are financia. assets categorised as al fair value through profit and
loss and areamtiday recognised at fan value on the date acquired and are subsequently
re rreasdred at therr fairvalue Changas in the fair value of equily investments are
recoymised in prohit or loss.

Strategic

Financiat
Statements

84

Report

In assessing impairment requirements on financial assets, the Group corsiders the rate of
historic losses an similar assets in conjunction with expected fulure losses and credit losses
as aresuit of potentiat defaults. This will, as mandated by IFRS 9, continue to be reassessed
A5 AN W

e nfor~ation heromes ava.lab

corwnen cond tiors change

Afinancial asset 1s de recognised only where the contractual nghts 1o the cash flows
from the asset expire or the financial asset s transferred, and that transfer qualifies for
de -recognition Afinancial assetis transferred f the contractual rights to receve the
cash flows of the asset have been transferred or the Group retains the contractual rights
Lo recaive the cash flows of the asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more recipients. A financial asset that s transferred qualifies for

de recagmition if the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assee, or if the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership but does transfer control of that asset.

Impairment of financial ossets

The Group assesses ona forward looking bawis, the expected credit losses [FCLY
associated with 1ts debtinstrument assets carried at amortised costs. The Group
calculates the ifetime FCL as a practicat expedient for short term recevables, A loss
allowance 1s recognised for such losses at each reporting date 'he Group measures
ECLoneach balance sheet date according 1o a three stage ECL impairment model;

Stage? fromnitiatrecognition of the financial asset Lo the date onwhich the asset
has experienced a significant increase in credit nisk (SICR) relative to s imtial recognition,
aloss allowarce s eeudl to the credit [oss experted Lo resail fromdefau Loccuning

over 12 months following the reporting date.

Stage?  following a significant increase in credit nsk relative to the inmial recogmition of
the financial asset, a (0ss allowance 1s recognised equat to the credit losses expected over
the remaining Lifetime of the asset. Where an SICR 1s no longer observed, the instrument
will move back to Stage 1.

Stage 3 wher the financia. assel s considered to be credit impaired, a loss allowance
s recognised equal to the credit losses expected over the remaining Uife of the asset
Interest and revenue 1s caiculated based on the gross carrying amount of the esset,
net of the loss allowance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements conlinued

2 Accounting policies continucd
211 Financial assets continued
impoirment of financial assets cor tinued

The measurement of the ECLreflects an unbiased and probability weighted amount
“hatis determined by evalualirg a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money
and reasorable and supporteble intormation that s available without urdue cost and
effort at the reporting date about past events current canditions ard farecas:s of
future acorormc conditions.

Insurance receivables, which are outside the scope of IFRS 9, are subject to ¢ lapse
provisian calculated based on historic loss data

212 Financial liabilities

Mnancial labraties are classified a5 measdred at amortised cast or far value through
profit and loss [FVYTPLYL A financiat tability is classified as at WYL f it 1s classified as
hetd for trading or it designated as such on mitial recogmtion.

Financial labilimes are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest relatec charges recognised as an expense In finance cost
N thzincome statement, Finance charges, mcluding premumes payahle on settlemert ar
redemption and direct 1ssue Costs, are charged to theincome statement ondn accruals
basis using the effective interest mathod and are added to the carryirg amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

i
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2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
othershort term, Fighly lgquid investrments that are readily convertibie into known
amo.Jnts of cash and which are subject to an insigruficant risk of changes in value.

As stated inote 277 fixed interest rate bank deposits with the matunty date of three
months or more from the date of acquisition are classified as financial assets.
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2.14 Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Company investments in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures held in the Company
Balance Sheet are shown at cost less impairment provisions

'mpdirment testing 1s completed on an annual basis or as and whert an indicator for
impairment under IAS 36 arises,

2.15 Equity

Cauity comprises the following:

\

"Share capital”represents the nominalvalue of equity shares.

> "Share premium account” represents the amourt paid on issue for equity sharesin
excess of ther nominalvalue

v

“Capitatredemption reserve” represents the nominal value of its own equity shares
purchased, and then cancetled, by the Company.

> "Share based payments reserve” represents the equity value of the accumuiated share
based payments expenses in L1P 2027

v

"Other reserve” represents the investment in own Company shares by the t mployee
Renefit Trust,

> "Profit and (0ss reserve” represents retaired profits.

2.16 Employee benefits

Defined contribution group and setf invested personal pension schemes.

The pension costs charged against profits are the contnbutions gayable to the schemes
inrespact of the accounting period.

2.17 Share-based payment

Equity-settied share-based payment

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share based payment
are measured at their fair values Where employees are rewarded using share based
payments, the fair values of employees’ sarvices are determined indirectly by reference
to the fair value of the instrument as at the dateitis granted to the employee.

Allequity settled share bhased payments are ulimately recogmised as an expense in the
ncome siatement with a corresponding credit to “profit and loss reserve’
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2 Accounting policies continued

2.17 Share-based payment contnued

Equity-settled share-based payment continued

If vesting periads or other ron market vesting conditions apply, the expense s allocated
overthevesung perod, based onthe best evailable estimate of the number of share
oRpuons expecled 1o vest Fetimates are subsequently revised T there s any mdication
that the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estimatas.
Any umualative adjustment prior Lo vesting 1s recognised in the carrent period.

NO adjustment s made Lo any expense recogrised in prior periods If share opticns
ultimately exercised are different to that estimated on vesting.

upon exercise of share aptions, the proceeds received net of attrnbutable transaction
costs are credited to share capitay, and where appropriate share premum

2.18 Employee benefit trust

The assets and habilities of the Employee Benefit Irust (EBT) have been included inthe
Group accounts Any assets held by tThe [BT cease te be recogrised on the Group balence
sheet when the assets vest unconditionally inigentified beneficiaries.

Ihe costs of purchasing own shares held by the £BT are shown as a deduction agdinst
eqJiy The proceeds from the sale of own shares held increase equity Neither the
purchase nor sate of own shares leads 1o a gain or [gss being recognised inthe Group
INCome statement,

Atpresent the Company operates a plan whereby all employees are entitled to make
monthly payments 1o the trust via payrolldeducuions, The curvent allocation penodis

R ALY

Noczed toemployees ot the ere sl each allacaties Serod
The shares are allocated at the lower of the mid market price at the beginning and
end of the allocatior perigd The trust Company has not waived 1ts nght to dividends
on unallocated shares. Any profit or ioss cn allocation of shares toindividuals is taken
directiy to the "other reserve” within eguity

2.19 Shares held in an employee benefit trust

Iransactions of the Compary sponsored FBT are treated as being those of the Company
and are theretore, reflected in these financial statements,
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2.20 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due
atlowance for obsolete and slow moving items. Cost includes all direct costs and an
appropriate proporuon of fixed and variable overheads,

2.21 Provisions

Aprovisicn s recognised inthe balance sheet when the Group has a present legai,
arconstructive, obligation as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
abugation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
al apre tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.

2.22 Agent vs Principal

The saic of discounted vouchers, be it physical or electronic, represents the majority of
Saasrevenue tor the Group, The Group has a mixture of relationships with retailers and
third party suppliers, depending on the offering, Sorme of ferings require purchasing
nventary i advance while others require the maintaining of cash floats with suppliers
and others require the settlement of supplier invoices as they are received.

Depending or the contractualrelationship and the nature of the transactions with the
relevant suppliers, the Group has made a judgement on whether the offerings constitute
agency or principal transactions. This judgement 1s significent in nature asit has a
matenalimpact on the revenue and cost of setes of the Group.

In the majority of circumstances, the Group, either physically or via its 1T systems, takes
possession and ownership of the vouchers, has control aver their use and resale price
and, as a result, these transactions are deemed to be principal In nature. in such cases,
the sale of vouchers, and their relevant cost of sales, are presented gross in the mcome
statement for the year,

Where a contractusal relationship exists with the supplier that classifies the relationship
as that of an agency, this is deemed to supersede the factors discussed above. As a
result, the voucher sale and their relevant cost of saies have been presented net as
agency Income in the income statement for the period.
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3 Risk management objectives and policies

The 3oard recognises that the effective rranagement of risks ard opportunities is
fundamental to achieving the Group's strategic objectives As a result, It1s important
there s a strong risk management culture throughaut the Group, and that we identify,
assess and appropriately mitigate the key risks to the Group achieving ths strategy

l0 achieve 1Ts objectives as well as sustairable profitability, the Group may pursue the
apportunities that gave rise to risk, Therefore, we have adopted an Enterprise Risk
Maraggement Framework as part of our decision making and business ranagement
process, As aresuit of this ngorous aparoach, the Group can mamtam financial security,
produce good outcomes and the fair treatment of custamers, and meet the needs of
other parties such as shareholders, employees, suppliers and requlators

We rzview the risk management strat2gy regularly, partcularly after any significant
charge to the change environment ard, each year, after the approval of the Group's
strategy and business plans. The most significant financiat risks to which the Group

and Company are exposed under normal circumstances are described in this secuion,

Credit risk

The Grouwp's and Coempany's exposure to credit sk includes the carrying value of certain
financral assets at the batence sheet date, summansed as follows:

Group Company

2022 021 2022 2021

£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Insurance receivables 2,391 14Eh -
Reinsusance assets 95 - -
Trade debtors 11,349 1, .82 - -
Accrued interest 14 10 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 16,958 20201 237 179
Equity investments 1,290 - -
Bank deposits o741 -
Total credit risk 33,838 237 119
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Alarge proportion of the Group's revenue I1s generated from the sale of insurance
polhaes toindividual customers, with most of the premiums collected, and paid over
to the Group, by the individuals’ employer via payroll deduction. The vast majority of
employers pay over payroll deductions made, within one month, on a regular basss,
thereby minimising the credit risk exposure to the Group.

Due to the seasonat nature of the PG Let's Connect business, the year end receivables
batance 1s heavily weighted towards salary sacrifice goods. These receivables are due
from the employers of the individuals who place the order, The vast majority of these
employers pay the recavable balance within two months of receiving the consolidated
invoice for therr scheme Included within trade debtors are £8 2m (20271 £8.4m) relating
to PG Lel's Cornect sales.

The use of payroll deductions by a "host company employer” would not be perrmitted
where the Board believed there may be a sigmificant credit nisk. Receivables past their
due date are summarised within Note 19, the credit nsk for liquid funds and other short
term financial assets i1s considered negligible, since the counterparties are all requlated
Inthe UK by the PRA.

AL 31 December 2022 the counterparties were as follows: The Co operative Bank plc,
Santander UK ple, HS8C Bank Plg, Lioyds Bank Pi¢, Close Brothers Ltd and Aberdeen
Standard Investments. Long- term rate credit ratings for these counterparties range from
AATO B (ratings sourced from Fitch, and Standard & Poor’s) (2020: AAto B rating range).

The Group1s also exposed to the recoverabiuty of receivables from reinsurers,
AL 3T Decombe: 2022 tne Grous ulised Lwe reinsarancas couaierpariios, namaly,

Swiss Re Furope SA, United Kingdem Branch and AXA XL Insurance Life Syndicate 3002
Credit ratings far this reinsurer range from A+ to AR

All subsicdhary undertakings are 100% owned by the Company or subsidianies thereof.
There s at least one Director of Personal Group Holdings on each of the larger subsidiary
comparies' Boards and all operations are controlled fromwithin the registered office

In Mittor Keynes The Company Directors have a good understanding of the operational
performance of each of the substdiary undertakings The Company Directors are satisfied
that the subsidiary undertakings have sufficient future income streams to enable the
labilities to be repaid in fullin the foreseeable future

nformation relating to the far value measurement of financial assets can be found
In Note 1/
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3 Risk management objectives and policies continued
Interest rate risk

The Croupis not exposed to any binanoal hlabilities with aninterest element aside from

the interest element INtrirsic in leases,

At 37 December 2022, hank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were £78,/00,000
2021 £22,887000 If UK interest rates increased by 2%, net finance ncome wou'd

TS0 Dy 30T ox M cly L3I L LT wetn oo

JAnCrease To e

Market risk

he Group s exposed Lo Market nisk, n the torm of equity price risk, in respect of its
equity Investmerts In managed funds which are invested in worldwide equities and so
dre ve.ued via directly observabie mputs (level * mputs]. The assets are measured at fair
value through profit ard .css

Liquidity risk

Cask halances are managed internally by the Financial Controller and amounts are
paced an short term depostts (cdrrer tiy not exceeding sixmonths) to ensure that
suffizient funds are avarable at alltimes to pay all liabilities as and when they fall due.

Asat 31 December 2022, the Group’s and Company's babilities have contractuast

Malet Dus (e, ading ST AT S wWs e aIpnCobleras sumeese o Bulow
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At 31 December 2022
Amounts owed to Group
undertakings 431 - - - 431
Total liquidity risk 431 - - - 431
AL 31 December 2022 A : Pyl

Amaunts pwed to subsidiary
undertakings

Non-
Within 6 6-12 cash
months months 1-5years items* Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
macu
At 31 December 2022
Trade and other payables “_.o‘:»mu 136 - 868 Hp.mum
Insurance contract liabilities 2,321 - - 1,153 3,474
Total liquidity risk 12,743 186 - .01 14,950
At 31 Becember 2021
1rade and other payaoles o s
Insurance contract Labilities 2 oo - 442 PRI
Total liquidity risk 14403 Y Vs shubs

L LT T O B VL LY O

Currency risk

The Group 15 not exposed te any currency rnisk as all business s conducted in GBP and all
bank accounts were held in GBI?in both 2022 and 2021

Insurance claim and related risks

During the year, Personal Assurance Ple [PA) underwrote two categories of business and
Personal Assurance (Guernsey) | td (PAGL) a further two categories, which are described
In gdetall helow

Hospital cash plans and other personal accident and sickness policies

These have been PA's core products since 1984 and, at 31 December 2022, represent
991% (2027 98 8%) of PA's gross premiums wntten. The vast majority of these policies
dre sold Lo Irdividuals at therr ptace of work as part of an employee benefits package
ntroduced by PGH on behalf of the employer The gross Loss ratio (excluding claims
handiing costs) on these policies at 31 December 2027 was 26.4% (2027 19.2%) While the
tuss ratio has Increased year on year, histonc (gsses have been consistent over the period
of time that these policies have been underwritten and therefore the Board has taken
the decision to continue to accept the underwnung risk in full and not ro use reinsurance
as away of managing insurance claim risk This wilt continue o be reviewed to ensure
thatthis remains appropriate going forward.

At present the maximum payable on any one single claim s £87,375 (20271 £81,3/5)
and would omy be payable after a period of hospital confinement of twa years The
total number of these individual policies in force at 37 Jecember 2022 was 174 887
(2027 /2 429 and the tota e ot those policies wils L20,/20,000
(20727 £19,227,000). The average amount paid per claim in 2022 was £184 |2021 £20%)

An

15000 01

HARRY
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3 Risk management objectives and policies continucd
Voluntary Group Income Protection policies {VGIP)

N Juty 2072 PA commenced the undeswiiting of VGIR policies In order to manage this
nsu-ance risk, the 8oard took oLt 4 quota share reinsurance policy 1o exclusively cover
this 2art of the business. Lnder thisrainsurance policy 90% of the value of eacn claim s
recoverable from the reinsurer

At 310ecember 2022 these policies represent 0 9% (20271 1.2%) of PA’s gross premiums
written, The totai annualised prermiuri value of these policies was £208 000 12021,
L£237,000). The gross loss ratio (excluding £laims handlng costs) on these povcies at
Toce e POEF was AT 12077 G0 E Thirtolg cpalicies
in force at 37 December 2027 was 09 (2027 674} and the average amount paid per claim
1M 2022 was £8,908 (2021 £17116)

IELE SRl BTN

Death benefit policies

Death berefit policies have been unde~written by PAGL since March 2015, These polices

are sold pnimarnily 1o individuals at ther place of work i the same way as the hospital
cachy ons

At 37 December 2022 theso policies represent 80% (20271 89%) of PAGL s gross premiums
writ.en The totatannualised premium value of these policies was £7,068,000 (2021
£5829,0001 The gross Loss ratio jexcludirg claims handiing costs) on these policies at
31 December 2022 was 23.6% {2021: 32.6%). Astop loss reinsurance policy 15 1In place 1o
cover claims over £3,000,800 at any given location The total number of these individual
paticies in force at 31 December 2022 veas 54,197 (2021 62, 482) and the average amount
paid per death n 2022 was £9,36% (2077 £9,578).

Employee default policies

Ir February 2020 PAGL commenced tre underwnting of employee default policies in
relation 1o sa.ery sacntice sales made by | et’s Connect. These poacics provided cover
toer’s Connect’s largest customer in the event that employees left owing salary
sacrifice deductions to their empioyer and these monies were unable to be recovered
by alternative mears.

At 31 December 2022 these policies represent 10% (2021: 11%) of PAGLs gross premiums
written. The gross loss ratio (excluding claims handling costs) an these policies at

DL2%was 32000 B2
PN D2 w1039, 7007

cen ind the average amount dpetani v g
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Group loss ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2022 the gross claims ratio of the Group was 26.9%
12027 20 9%, ny Laking clams nourred as a prazorbion of earec Sremiotm A 2% Increasy

inthe claims ratio would increase claims incurred by approximately £513,000.

There are no matenal ndividual claims and open claims over 12 months old are also
mmaterial, As a resolt, the Group has ewected to not disclose claims development tables.

4 Capital management and requirements

The Group's capital management objective 1s to maintain sufficient capital to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a geing concern and to protect the interesis of ali of
Its customers, Investors, regulator and trading partners while also efficiently deploying
capital and managing risk to sustain ongoing business development, The Group manages
Its capital resources in line with the Group’s capital managerment Policy, which s reviewed
onanannual basis The Group's capital position 1s kept under constant review and 1s
reported manthly to the Board.

Since TJanuary 2016, Personal Assurance Plc {PA} has been subject to the requirements of
the Solvency 1 (51l Directive and must hold sufficient capital to cover its Solvency Capital
Reguirement (SCR}. In addition, PA maintains a bufferin excess of this capital requirement,
specifiedn ine with the capitai sk appetite agreed by the Board. The SCR1s calcutated in
accordance with the Standard Formula specified in the Sti legislation,

At least annually, the Group undertakes the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment {ORSA).
This process enables the Group 1o assess how welt the Standard Formuta SCR reflects
the Group's actual risk profile, and compnses all the activiues by which PA establishes
the level of capitalreguired to meetits solvency needs over the ptanming period given
the Company’s strategy and nisk appetite. The conclusions from these activities are
summarised in the ORSA Report which s reviewed by the Risk Committee, approved by
the Board and submitted to the Prudential Regulauion Authority (PRA) at least anndady

PA's unaudited Eligible Own Funds, determined in accordance with the Sil valuation

rules, were £11.5m (2021 £12.6m) which was in excess of the estimated SCR of £3.5m
(2027 £3.5m) This represented an estimated solvency coverage ratio of 333% (2027;

357%). the movementyear on year remains consistent andis in line with the Board's

risk appetite of holding greater than 150% of the requirement.

Other than discloset above there have been no changes to what s managed as capital
of the Group’s capital management cbhjectives, policies or procedures dunng the year.



Personal Group Holdings Pic | Annual Report and Acco

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4 Capital management and requirements continucd

AL 3t December 2022, the requiremerts of the Group’s requlated companies were

Tl cws
Surplus
Capital over capital
resources Capital resources
Relevant requirement resources requirement
regulatory unaudited unaudited unaudited
body £900 £'000 £'000
Company
Personal Assurance Plc FCA, PRA 3,469 11,541 8,071
Personal Assurance Services
Lim ted FCA a3 4,330 4,287
Persanal Group Benefits Limited FCA 51 521 470
Berketey Morgan Limited FCA 75 411 336
Personal Assurance [Guernsey)
Lim ted GFSC 914 2,848 1,935

Personal Assurance Plc and Personal Assurance (Guernsey) Limited mamntains the
A G Ly S nerr assels neasnand Shart cerm i xecirerostrale 802osis

“he capital resources and corresponding capital resource requirement for aach PRA
regutated entity 1s calculated in accordance with PRAregulations

The capitaliesources and corresponding capital resource requirement for each FCA
regulated entity s calculatedir accordance with FCA regulations.

The Group's capital cormprises all components of equity.

“he Group's regulated entities have complied with all externally imposed capital
reguirements during Lhe year
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5 Segment analysis

The segments used by management to review the operations of the business are
disclosed below.

1) Affordable insurance

Personal Assurance RiC {PA], a subsidiary within the Group, I1s  PRA regulated general
msurance Company and s authornised to transact accident and sickness insurance. [t was
established in 1984 and has been underwnting business since 1984, In 1997 Personal
Group Holdings Ple (PGH) was created and became the ultimate parent undertaking of
the Group

Zersonal Assurance {Cuernsey) Lirmited (PAGL ), a subsidiary within the Group, 1s regulated
by the Guernsey Finanaial Services Commussion and has been underwriting death benefit
polities simce March 2015,

Thus operating segment derives the majority of its revenue from the underwriting by PA
and PAGL of insurance policies that have been bought by employees of host companies
vid bespoke benefit programmes. Durning 2020 PAGL began underwriting employee
defau't irsurance for a proportion of PG Let s Connect customers.

2) Cther Owned Benefits

This segment constitutes any goods or services in the benefits platform supply chain
which are owned by the Group. At present thisis made up of a technology salary sacrifice
business trading as PG Let's Connect, purchased by the Group in 2074,

3) Benefits Platform

Revenue i this segment relates Lo the annual subscnpucn income and other related
income arising from the licensing of Hapi, the Group’s employee benefit platform
This includes sales Lo both the large corporate and SMF sectors.

4) Pay and Reward

Pay and Reward refers to the trade of the Group's pay and reward consultancy Company
Innecto, purchased in 2018, and QCG, purchased in 2022 Revenue 1N this segment relates to
consuitarcy, surveys, ardlicence income denved from selling digitat platform subscriptions

5) Other

Ihe other operating segment consists exclusively of revenue generated by Berkeley
Maorgan Group (BMG) and 1ts subsidiary undertakings along with any investment and
rentalincome obitamed by the Group. This segment also includes revenue generated
from the resale of vouchers (hote 2 223,
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5 Segment analysis continued Segmental assets and liabilities
2022 2021 2022 201
£'000 £'000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Revenue by segment £'000 £'000 £'000 '000
Affordable insurance 25,257 insurance 25,080 8,419 28,60 g 164
i | otrer Owned Benefits 16,800 Qther Owned Benefits 9,608 4,794 1€ 510 6,176
m Berefils Plattarm 7,446 051 Benefits Platform 2,410 1,325 2ULY 1.40C
Berefits Piatform - Group Elmination (2,627 (28 Pay & Reward 1,190 17 171 -
Pay & Reward 2,008 1336 Other 8,321 1,076 /9
Other income Total segment assets and liabilities 46,609 15,631 57604 10,1713
| Voucher resale 37,389 Other assets comprise mostly of goodwill, intangible assets, and assets associated with
" QOther 937 917 the sale of ¢ vouchers through the platform. Other babilities comprise mostly of Liabilities
. Investment mcome 145 3 associated with the sale of e vouchers,
ﬂ B -
} Group Revenue 86,655 /.5Ld 5a Further segmental analysis
Adjusted EBITDA* cantribution by segment *he following note provides additional analysis on Group segmental income and expenditure.,
Affordable insurance 9,032 11,017 3 . A
: Employee benefits and services income
Other Owned Benefits 664 70
_ Benefits Platform 2,866 2,094 2022 2021
; - . : o £000 £'000
| Pay & Reward 495 103
B 8
Gther 160 74 Gther Owned Benefits . 16,800 18.214
; Groap admin and central costs* (7.107) Benefits Piatform 7,446 6.0%1
Charitable donations (200} 1750) Benefits Platform Group elimination® (2,627) R EATH
Adjusted EBITDA* 6,010 LYl Pay & Reward 2,008 1.0 36
' Depreciation** {1,052 1661 - .
| Total employee benefits and service income 23,627 24052
" Amartisation® (786) R
Interest . 20 42 Insurance operating expenses
5ha-e based payments expenses (293) 1LY}
: 2022 201
W Impairment (10,575) £'000 £1000
W Corporate acguisitian costs ) {46} ) Operating expenses 9,246 1608
{Loss)/Profit before tax (6,760) 4 342 Group elimination” (2,627 RN
i
I, . Totalinsurance operating expenses 6,619 HED

NPFI e o

LINSTE S FLES IR




mnqmnmu_n _"_:m_..n;_
Report Statements @ M

Personal Group Holdings Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2022 = @ A V

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

_ 5a Further segmental analysis continued 7 Claimsincurred
| Employee benefits and services expenses 2022 2021
2022 2021 £'000 £000
i Cost of Operating Total Costof Operating Total Claims paid ) 6,353 a4
sales expenses expenses sales expenses expenses Remnsurers' share of claims paid (66) G
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 000 £'000 Claims handling expenses paid 570 BLY
Cther Owned 6,857 G0
Benefits 14,502 1,639 16,141 feA
, Increase in claims provisian 132 1270
i Benefits Platform 1,590 2,592 4,582 P 10,1 -
: Reinsuters’ share of movements in claims provision 1
. Pay & Reward 29 1,484 1,513 - G2
133
, Tetalemployee o
W benefits and Total claims incurred 6,980
SErvices expenses 16,121 6,115 22,236 1h G2 sk 27540
8 Insurance operating expenses
Gross transactional value
Gross transactiona, value represents the total value of revenue generated from both 2022 201
b principatand agency arrargements. Gross transactional value from the sale of goods £'000 £'000
and vouchers 1s recognised at the net vaiue when significant nsks and rewards of Incurred acquisition costs 5,078 .
ownership of the goods and vouchers have been passed to the buyer, usuaily cn Administration expenses 1,541 N
i the dispatch of the goods and vouchers, The Company 15 considered to be an agent -
i . . . Total Insurance operating expenses 6,619 i
- forvoucher sales of £3,677,000 (2027 L6,668 000! of the total transaction value of
£40,830,000 (2021 £33.096,000)
) Total cammission incurred during the yearinrespect of direct insarance was £107.000
! R
2022 2021 (2027 £762,000),
; £'000 £'000
_ Voucher revenue recognised as principal 37,153 26174
| -
Voucher resale for revenue recognised 3s agency 3,677 6,668
Gross transactional value 40,830 54096
" 6 Investmentincome
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Inte-est income from cash on deposit 145 23

Totalinvestment income 145 R
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9 Directors’ and employees’ remuneration The amounts set out above include remuneration in respect of the highest pad Director
a) Staff costs (excluding Non-Executive Directors’ fees) during the year as follows Allemolumerts relate to payments made by subsidiary undertakings
were as follows:
2022 201
2022 20 £'000 £000
£'000 £000
Emoluments 332 co
. Wagas and salaries 11,289 11,.51
: Gain on exercise of options 79
| Share-based payments expense 291
1 Pension contributions 1o Group and self-invested
| Socalsecurity costs 1,450 personal pension schemes 10 .
Other pension costs 561 504 Total a1 o
. Totalstaff costs 13,591

Detans of ndividuat Director's remuneration are given In the Remuneration Report on pages
Dunng the year the Group received Lril from the job retention scheme (2021: £126,000). 54 to 57, The Company does not incur employee remuneration
these governmenrt grdnts have been offset aganst the salary costs in the table above.
Key management of the Group are the Directors of Personal Group Heldings PLc together
with the members of the Senior Leadership Team. Key management perscnnel remuneration

mecludes the following expenses:

Average number of employees throuch the year was as follows

2022 2021
Number Number 2092 2021
Administration 161 160 £000 £'000
Sales and marketing 101 73 Shart-term employee benefits:
Total number of employees 262 233 Salaries including bonuses R 1,443 2,052
} mon_mw‘mmnczg nomwm . 189 263
' b) Directors’ remuneration: Qainon exercise o*..m_u:o:m ‘ 79 -
2022 2021 1,721 2,335
£'000 £'otc Post-empioyment benefits;
W Emoluments . 916 S0 Defined no:ﬁ:uc:o.: pension plans : 62 Lb
1 Amounts paid to third parties in respec: of Directars’ Tetal remuneration 1,783 T
services - 12
Gain on exercise of options .wm
Pension contrnibutions 1o Group and self-invested
personal pension schemes 29 Pl
Totat Director's remuneration 1,024 1062

Dunng the year, three Directors (2027 three Directors) parbicipated in Group and
sefoinvested personal pension schermes,
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10 Profit before tax

2022 2021
£000 £000
Pro“it before tax is stated after:
Auditor's remuneration (iInclusive of ncn-recoverable
VAT).
Audit services:
Audit of Company financial statements - Current Year 158 )
Audit of subsigiary undertakings 139 120
Nan-audit services - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,052 N
Amortisation of intangibles 786
Rentalincame recevable 94 Ll
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Therelationship between the expected tax expense based on the effective tax rate of
Personal Group Holdings PIC at 19% (2021: 19%} and the tax expense recognised in the

income statement can be reconcited as follows:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Profit before tax (6,760) 1,342
Tax rate Hm{n 19
Expected tax expense (1,284) H2
Adjustment for non-deductible expenses - Goodwll
impairment 2,009
Adjustment for non-deductible expenses - Other 122 a8
Adjustment for tax exempi revenues {254) (101
onsmqmai:mn3m3nm ‘
Effect of tax rale changes an deferred tax - L/
Tax credit in respect of prior years {100} 1229,

Adjustment far previously non-deductible expenses
Actualtax expense

Conuinuing aperations

Current tax expense
in Smum‘nﬂ. of prior <mmfw
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Fffect of tax rate changes

433 £y
493 N5
471 775
1100) [y
122 L2
- 6/

Total tax
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"Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12 Earnings per share 14 Goodwill
\ 2022 2021 The carrying amount of gocdwill which has been allocated to those cash generating
| — - LNIts can be anaiysed as follows:
W Weighted Weighted
i average Pence average Pence ,
; Earnings  number per Earnings number of per PG Let's
£000 cfshares share £'000 shares share Connect Innecto Qce Total
£'000s £'000s £000s £'000s
Basic (7,253) 31,214,765  {23.2) L0700 31,79547% 0 11. "
ost
Dilutive effect of shares - —_—
in Employee Share- At 1 January 2022 10,575 2,171 - 12,696
pased schemes 0.0 755224 6.0 00 B 0e Additions in the year [note 32) - - 563 563
Diluted 17,253) 31,969,989  (23.2) BTERET Disposal - - - -
Al 31 December 2022 10,575 2,121 563 13,259
_ The weighted average namber af shares shown above excludes unallocated own Company Impairment charged
| o T + ) .
| shares held by Personal Group Trustees Lid. Excluding the goodwillimpairment, the earninys A1 January 2022 ~ _ _ - _
! per share for 2022 were 10.9p (Miluted 12.6p). - - .
; Impairment charge for year 10,575 - - 10,575
13 Dividends At 31 December 2022 - - - -
2022 2021 Net book value at
_ Pence per Pence per 2022 2021 31December 2022 - 2,121 563 2,684
| share share £000 £1000
. Equ ty dividends ‘ PG Let's
Q2 5.300 T 1,655 1,01 Connect innecto Qce Total
, £'000s £'000s £'000s £000s
Q4 5.300 5 400 1,657 L b
Cost
, 10.600 Ripee 3,312 1,245 -
i : AT 1January 2023 057 212 - w2090
; Less: amounts paid on own :
ﬁ shares @ Additions in the year - - -
I
| Totat dividends 10.600 HIBAN, 3,310 e Disposal : : -
At 31 December 2021 10457 212 12,696
. The dividends listed above were paid 11 the calendar year Dividends of 10.6p per share Impairment charged
were paid relaung to the 2021 finanaiel penod and an intenm payment of 5.3p has been At 1January 2021 _ - - -
“ paidreiating 1o the 2022 firancial pensd. Impairment charge for year ) -
At 31 December 2021 - -
Net book value at
31 December 2021 O 7121 - L2650

The net carrying values at 31 December 2022 have been reviewed for impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

14 Goodwill continued
PG Let's Connect

The first cash gererating unit (CGU) considered was The PG Let's Connect business as a
whole and its recoverabie amount was based onvalue in use, determined by discounting
the *uture cash flows to be generatec from continued tradirg of PG Let's Connect.

Asaresultinthe change of the operational landscape at akey customer, PG Let's
Connect has lostaccess 1o a significant poruor of 1t customer base from previous
years Tris, combined with the ongoing impacts of COVID 19 on stock avarability and
profit margins, has resulted in the revanue and profitability outlooks of the business
being iessened at the end of December 2022,

Thevalue muse of the CGU was founc Lo ne longer suppart the recogmtion of any
goodwill As such, amimpanment of £10,5/5,000 was recorded in the yesr.

For the purpose of the value in use model, the CGU ve.ue 1s comprised of the Goodwill
alictated, the carrying value of the Intangible asset recogmsed on acquisition and the
assets af the COU such that the carrying amount of he CGU has been getermined on
a basts consistert with the way the rezoverable amount of the CGU 1s determined.

Five years of future cash flows were inciuded in the discourted cash flow model

-nlirewith previous years, an expected cash ftow approach, based on various different
SCENANOS, was used. ds marégement delieve this method to most appropriateiy
address the fact that the tirming ard s2ale of Let’s Caonnect's future growth currently
remams uncertain, Fach of the scenarios was given a probability expectation, hased
onmanagement's bestview and histene performance, and the weightaed average net
present vatle (INPY] derved from these calculations was then determined as the value In
use. Budgeted EBITDAwas based on expectations of future cutcomes considering past
experience aswell as existing contracls in place.

Key assumptions

Civen that NPV IS sensitive 10 severdLkey assumptions which have been used,
the fouawing have been highlighted es being the most sensitive,

Strategic Financial

Statements

Report

Discountrate

Ihetong term growth rate into perpetuity was determined as 2. 5% (30 year average
of JK vunsamer prce ndex] 1o reflect the ~oreases inzesiaimnty of toe busness

operations, the cash flows were then discounted using a post tax discownt rate of 18%
2027 13%) based on PG Let's Connect weighted average cost of capital, using the capitat

asset pricing model,

Cash flow revenue projections

Management applied an expected cash flow approach to the vaiue in use model for
revenue forecasting, using the weighted average of a number of scenanos to determine
the expected future revenues of Let’s Connect. The scenarios used, and the probabilities
appiied, take irto account the carrent market conditions, Including global supply chain
nterruptiors, and represent the possible future outcomes and management's best
estimete as Lo therr bkelihood

Gross profit margin

Management applied an expected gross margin of 15% onits future revenue projections,
a shightincrease on actual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 (14%). This 15 due
to the fact that the customer mix:in future penods, as a result of the lost key customer,
15 expected Lo resut in @ higher margin.

Beiow 15 a table showing the sensitivity of the key assumptions and the impact of
changesn various key assumptions (In base percentage pomnt terms) have on the value
of the impairment. The Base column refers to the value of the impairment followimg the
review completed by manegerment.

-% Base +%
Sensitivity Analysis - Impact on impairment £'000s £000s £'000s
Discount Rate | +/- 2%) JERIT 1051y a5
mnmum._:noaﬂ +/- 5% L ‘.‘E_c\: [(eReENY
Gross Profit Margin [ +/- 2%} ML 10,575 i
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14 Goodwill continucd
Innecto

the second cash generating Lnit (CGU) considered was the Innecto business as awhaole.
For the purpcse of the vatue in use model, the CGU value 1s comprised of the goodwill
aliocated, the carrying value of the intangible assets recognised on acquisition and the
assetrs of the CGU such thal the carrying amount of the CGL has been determined on a
hasis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the CGU 18 determined,

An e<pected cash flow approach, simi.ar to that applied to PG LeUs Conrect, was used
appwying multiple scenarios and affixed probabilities that were deemed Lo be appropriate
under management's best understanding of the busingss,

Key assumptions

Five years of futare cash fiows were inciuded in the discourted cash flow modet
including atong term growth rate of 2.3% (30 year average of UK consumer price index).
These cash flows were then discounted using a risk mitigating post tax discount rate

of 22 A% {2027 22 4%) based on 'nnec-a's weighted average cost of capital, using the
capital assot pnang maodelbwith a nsk premium in lne with the risks associated with the
uncertamnties around the forecested growth

Sensitivity
Whia management are corfident tha: Inrecto will generate forecasted iIncome, it is

recogrisad that there 1s an inherent uncertainty within the forecasted cash ftows used
Inthzimparment rreodel dae 1o the expected growth.

Betow s a table showing the sersitivity of the key assumptions and the impact of vanious
changes {In base percentage pomt terims) on the headroom. The Base columnrafers to
the teadroom on the impairment revizw mede. completed by management,

Sensitivity Analysis -% Base + %
- Impact on headroom £'000s £'000s £'000s
Discount Rate (+/- 2.5%) 2,091 1,148 i/

Terminal Growth Rate (+/- 1%)

14l 1
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The third cash generating unit [CGUY considered was for QCC. For the purpose of the
value inuse model, the CGU vatue 15 comprised of the goodwill allocated, the carrying
value of the intangible assets recognised on acquisition and the assets of the CGU such
that the carrying amount of the CGU has been determined on a basis consistent with
the way the recoverable amount of the CGU 15 determined

An expected cash flow approach was used applying multiple scenarios and affixed
probabilities that were deemed 1o be appropriate under management's best
Jrderstanding of the business.

Key assumptions

Five years of future cash flows were nctuded in the discounted cash flow model
ncluding a long term growth rate of 2.3% (30 vyear average of UK consumer price index).
Ihese cash flows were then discounted using a risk mitigating post-tax discount rate of
24.8% based on QCG's weirghted average cost of capital, using the capital asset pricing
modelwith a nsk premium in ine with the risks associated with the uncertamties around
the forecastad growth.

Sensitivity

while management are confident that QCG wiit generate forecasted income, it 45
recognised that there s an nherent uncertainty within the forecasted cash flows used
in theimparrment model due to the expected growth.

Below 1s a table showing the sensttivity of the key assumptions and the impact of various
changes {in base percentage pont terms) on the headroom. The Base column refers to
the headroom on the iImpairment review model completed by management

Sensitivity Analysis -% Base +%
- Impact on headroom £'000s £'000s £'000s
Discount Rate |+/- 3%) 8z 147 1
Terminal Growth Rate (+/- 1%) 09 5 |71

Manragement believe that there s no cause for animpairment i either QCG or Innecto.
In addition 1o the future benefits built into each CGU, there are benefits of each to

the wider Group as aresult of improved market penetration, marketing expertise and
additional cross selling opportunities made available
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

15 Intangible assets
For theyear ended 31 December 2022

Pay & Reward Internally
customer Computer generated
Customer value and Innecto software and computer
vatue trade name technology development software wiIP Total
, £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
, Cost
” At1danuary 2022 1,648 726 298 2,287 mom 198 5,663
7 Acquisitions ‘ ) 337 ) - - - - 337
Additions - - - 201 - 995 1,196
Transfers - - - 19¢ - (190) -
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2022 1,648 1,063 298 2,678 506 1,003 7,196
Amortisation
Al 1Jdanuary 2022 1,648 411 . 170 1,293 504 - . 4,026
| Prowvided in the <m‘m: - 179 . 60 545 2 ‘ - 786
_ Eliminated on disposal ‘ - - - - - - ‘ -
At 31 December 2022 1,648 590 230 1,838 506 - 4,812
m Net book amaunt at 31 December 2022 - 473 68 840 - 1,003 2,384
_ Net book amount at 31 December 2021 E 174 994 7 1498 16747

“he Pay & Reward customer values and trademark inciude acquired intangibles relating to innecto and QCG. This, and the Innecto technologies, 1s being amortised through the
consolidated income statement aver a five year period. “he net carrying values on 31December 2022 have been assessed for impairment and no tmpairment was deemed necessary.
The assets were assessed in conjunction with the goodwill value m Note 4. The total value of amor tisation reiating ta acquired ntangibles was £238k (2027 £205k).
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Notes to the Financ al Statements continued

15 intangible assets continued
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Pay & Reward Internally
; customer Computer generated
_ Customer value and Innecto  software and computer
value trade name technology development software wip Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
©At1January 2021 1,678 126 268 1523 H06 - 1,698
Additions - - - 7t - 108 941
- Dispesals - [14) t1b]
I AU I1December 20271 1.6 776 20 247 Helf TGy ERY
| Amortisation
At 1January 2021 1,640 286 110 921 408 -
Provided In the year A% ) ) -

Eliminated on disposal

[ AU December 2071 618 111 140 501
_ Net book amount at 31 December 2021 - 994 2 108
Net book amount at 31 December 2020 4ty L9 3
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16 Property, plant and equipment
Forthe year ended 31 Decemher 2022

Furniture
Freehold land Motor Camputer fixtures & Lease Right of use
and properties vehicles equipment fittings improvements assets Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
, Cost
m At 1 January 2022 5,037 157 1,112 2,310 3 1,204 9,858
W Acquisition - - 7 - - - 7
Add tions - - 324 8 - wﬁ, 703
Disposals - - - - - (436) 436)
At 31 December 2022 5,037 157 1,443 2,318 38 1,139 10,132
Depreciation
. At1January 2022 1,828 125 786 1,265 37 784 4,825
m Acqursition - - 2 - - - 2
“ Provided in the year 88 m: 270 209 1 :aqm 1,052
_ Elirrinated on disposal - - - - - {386} (386}
i At 31December 2022 1,916 134 1,058 1,474 38 873 5,493
i Net book amount at 31 December 2022 3121 23 185 844 - 266 4,639
Net book amount at 31 December 2021 5,200 2 120 1018 R 420 EREE

In lire with IFRS 10, nght of use (RO 3ssets relate to motor vehiclos and building leases, a breakdown for which can be found in Note 30.
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16 Property, plant and equipment continued
For the year ended 31 December 2021

: Furniture
; Freehold _u.sn z.oﬁo_. no_.._.__u:nm.. :x_.”:_..om & . Lease Right of use
! and properties vehicles equipment fittings improvements assets Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost
ﬁ At 1January 2021 . .. 07 157 1,085 2303 35 1¢0/9
. Add'tions - - pUL] 27 - 544
Disposals - - {20 - ol
. At 31December 2021 S0 e i g HuB
W Depreciation
W At tJanuary 2021 107 2! w,‘ai 31 907 \mi
| Providec in :Jm:«_mmq 73 71 3 o 19 aco
Eliminated on disposal - 156 RN
At 31 December 2021 s L 4 Judl LBET
Net book amount at 31 December 2021 12 176 =045 1 420
Net book amount at 31 December 2020 Sl i 1,239 A
| 17 Financialinvestments
Group Company
W 2022 2021 2022 2021
| £'000 £'000 £'000 £'900
f Bank deposits 1,742 2 08 -
Equity investments i H‘mmw - - -

_ Total financial investments 3,031 2,09¢ - -
i
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17 Financial investments continhued

IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement estabashes a fair value hierarchy that categorises into
three .evels the irputs to valuation techmgues used to measure fair value The fair value
hiererchy gives the highest prionity to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or labiiuies (L evel Tinputs) and the oweast priornty to unobservable
npuTs ilevel 3mnputs)

Level 1. quoted prices {unadusted) n ective markets for identicai assets or Liablities.
All current equity Investments are valued using Level TInputs.

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Laevel 1 that are observable for
the zsset or hability, either directly {Le. as prices| or indirect:y (1.e. derved from prices).

Level 37 inputs for the asset or natulity that are not based on observable market data
iunohscrvable mput).

Bank deposits, hewd at amortised cost, are due within six months and the amortised cost
15 areasonable appreximation of the far value. These would beincluded within L evel 2
of the fair vaiue higrarchy

18 Inventories

Inventones in the Croap relate primar ly to salary sacrifice technology products held for
sale as part of the PG Let's Connect T sacrifice business and vouchers [both digital and
physical) heid for sale in the SaaS division of the business

nventones held are classified as the telow:

2022 20
£'000 £'000
Finished Goods - IT Satary Sacrifice 699 LEE]
Vouchers for resale 27 03
Total tnventaries 726 548

“Report stotements  [EMLO)
19 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 201
£'000 £000 £'000 E£'000
Loans and recevables
Insurance receivables 2,391 1.bbu -

Irade Debtars 11,349 TahaY - -
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings ‘ - - 3. 21
Accrued interest i 14 10 - -
Other prepayments and accrued income 2,109 LGB 281 171
Total trade and other receivables 15,863 14,034 322 199

Allof the Group’s insurance recevables and other recervables due within one year have
beern reviewed for indicators of impairmeant . IFRS 9 compliant credit loss provisions have
beer made where appucable and the values shown sbove are net of those prowisions.

Other recevables inciude non nsurance trade recevables, and recewvables relating to
float payments on the e voucher platform.

Aweighted average ageng of the expected loss provision 1S shown below:

2022 2021
Trade/ Cradit Trade/ Credit
Insurance Weighted Loss Insurance Weighted Loss
Debtor  Average Provision Debtor  Average Provision
£'000 Provision £'000 £'000 Provision £000
Not Invciced 2,565 0.3% 6 G G33 O 2% 16
Current 10,288 0.1% 10 £ 30l 0 1% 1
30 Days 619 0.8% 5 173 ke H
60 Days 168 1.6% 3 257 20+ 3
G0 Days 45 4.1% 2 L 78+ 12
150 Days 106 3.7% 25 217 1744 34
Total 13,791 0.3% 51 12,350 0vss 1
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19 Trade and other receivables cont.nucd
Credit Loss Provision
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20 Reinsurance assets

2022 201
: 2022 2021 f'000  £'000
W £000 £'000 Rensurers share of claims incurred 55 57
: Stage - - Remsurers share of unearned premiums 40
Stage 2 51 84 Total reinsurance assets 95 o8
Stage 3 -
Total 51 494 21 Cash and cash equivalents
' 2022 2021 2022 21
Setout below s the movementin the allowance fur expecied credit .csses of Lrade E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
receivables and contracted assets Cash at bank and In hand 11,786 1494 237 119
! 2022 2021 Short-term deposits 5,212 1346 -
’ £'000 £000 Total cash and cash equivalents 16,958 20,29: 237 118
At TJanuary 84 oA
Provision for expected credit losses 51 g2 22 Share capital
'+ Prowvision release (84) 2022 201
ﬁ Ll 1
i At 31December 51 H £'000 £'000
' Authonsed 200,000 000 ordinary shares of 5p each 10,000 1oen
Insurance receivables ard other receivatles are also held at amortised cost and the Allotted, callec up and fully paid 31,248,822 (2021 31,278,207)
© Carrying amourt is 4 reasonable appreximation of fair value which in the case of the ordinary shares of 5p each 1,562 1567
Insurarce recevables contdins a lapse provision of £90,000 (2021 £160,000). Share Premium 1,134 1,134

In the past, the Group Ras not incurred significant bad debt write offs and consequently
whilst the above may be overdue, the nisk of credit defaults censidered to be low
The Group has no charges or other security over any of these assets

Each ordinary share is entitled to cne vote in any circumstance.

The totat number of own shares held by the Employee Benefit Irust at 31 December 2022
was 88,822 (2021, 87,288) Of this amount, there are 70,807 (2021 76,135) SIP shares that
have been unconditionally allecated to employees.

As at 31 Decernber 20272, the Group mantained two share based payment schemes for
employee compensation.
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22 Share capital continued

a) Company Share Ownership Plan (CSOP) and unapproved options

Forthe options granted to vest, there are no performance criteria obligations to be
fulfiled other than contiruous employment duning the three year pericd. Fxceplions

dre made for early termination of employment by attairing normat retirement age,
I health or redundancy.

Allshare based employee compenseat onwiil be settled in equity. 1he Group has
no legai or constructive obligation to “epurchase of settle the options

Sharas gption and weighted average exercise price are as follows for the reporting
peripds presented:

2022 2021

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

price price

Number Pence Number Pence

Cutstanding at 1January 226,743 3841 200 . L

QOptions granted in year - - BEREGR 3430
Options exercised inyaar - -

Optigns cancelled or lapsed (17,492} 343.0 (A5, o 1689

Outstanding at 31 December 209,251 3876 200,043 N

The weighted average oxercise price ¢f 121,007 (2027 95,284) share options exercisabie

Al UeCe™ e 2027 weas Donce por sn VAL 4207 12 As

There were no opuons granted under te C50P scheme in 2022

The weighted average remeaning contracled Ufe of outstanding options at 31 December
2022 was Dve yeary and four ronlng (2027 sk years and tnree moniths) The underny g
expected volatility was determined by reference Lo historical gata No speciat features

imminent 1o the opuons grarted werc incorporated INto the measurement of fam value.

Into.a., £20,000 0f employee compersation by way of shdré based payment expense
has been included in the consolidated meome statement for 2022 (2027 L11.000}

The corresponding credit s taker to eguity Mo liabilities werg recognised due Lo share based
Lrarsactions.
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b) Long Term incentive Plan {LTIP)

The Remuneration Committee approved a new LTIP scheme on 6 April 2021 Jnder the
scheme share options of Persgnal Group Holdings P.c are granted to senior executives
wilth an Exercise Price of 5p (nominaw vawue of the shares), The share oplions have various
market and non market performance conditions which are required to be achieved

for the options Lo vest. The oplions dlso contain service Conditions that require option
holders teremean cemoloyrent of the Group,

Total sharehotder return (market condition)

50% of the awards vest under this condition. Subject to Compound Annual Growth Rate
[CAGR ol the iotal Snareho.ger Returp (TSR aver the Qerformance Period

EBITDA targets (non-market condition)

39% of the awards vest under this condition Subject to cumulative ERITDA over the
Parformance Yerod

Environmental, social and governance targets {ESG} (non-market condition)

Up to 5% of the awards vest under this condition. The awards shall vest upon the
Hemure L or Commiiin coterm glhat all L&

GETS Nave Deen N

The fairvalue of the share options 1s estimated at the grant date using a Monte Carlo
binomial option pricing model for the market conditions, and a Black Scholes prnicing
model for non market conditions. However, the above performance condition is only
considered in determining the number of instruments that will ulimately vest

Thereare no cash settlements alternatives [he Group does not have a past practice
of cash settlement for these share options. The Group accounts farthe LTiP as an
equity settled plan,

lwo tranches of awards have been made to date ir April 2027 and April 2022

intotal, £291,000 ot employee share based compensation has beenincluded in the
consobdated income statement to 31 December 2022 (2021: £158,000). The corresponding
creditis taken to equity, No tabilities were recagnised from share based transactions.
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23 Deferred tax

2022 2021
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£000 £:000 £'000 £000
Non-current assets and
liabilities
Property, plant and
equipment 19 664 o 1249
Intangitle Assets - 102 - fiG
Share Options 66 - -
85 766 N =W
Offset {85) (85) a4 17
Total deferred tax - 681 - 478
2022 201
£000 £'000
At 1January (478) 1394}
Business Acquisition (81) -
Current year movement (122) L2
Movement in provisions due to tax rate changes - e
At 371 December (681) 1B

At 31 December 2022 the Group had ta < losses of £940,000 (2021: £84 5,000} n one of

1ts subsidianies available to carry torwsrd to offset against future profits of the seme
trades Adeferred tax assethas not been recognised in respect of the carned forward
tax .0sses as there s uncertainty a5 to whether they will be utiised given the trade s

r e guer

ncenl con ponertol te Lraop

mw_w_w“m__n Governance mhum_ﬂwh__..nm_“r \_0m
24 Trade and other payables
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 201
Current £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial habilities measured at amortised
cost!
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - 131 u.i
Qther creditors . 8,106 8009 80 7G
Right of use Qma_moﬁ 148 77 211 -
Accruals 1,964 - 214
Deferred incorme 1,128 -
Total trade and other payables 11,346 722 097
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Non-Current £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Right of use creditor 130 £07 - -
Total 130 n07 -

These labilities are not secured against ary assets of the Group

Other creditors include insurance and non insurance trade creditors, and creditors

relating to e voeuchers from the platform.

25 Insurance contract liabilities

2022 201
£'000 £000
Provision for claims 2,193 2,061
Claims settlement expenses 127 12/
Unearned premiums - 1,153 499
Total insurahce contract liabilities 3,474 1067
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25 Insurance contract liabilities continued The valuation of the provision for claims outstanding in the Group s subsidiary, Persona;
The provision For clams represents tha gross estimated aebility ansing from claim Assurance Group Guernsey Limited of £836,000 {2021 £633,000) is also estmated based
episodes In the current and preceding financial years which have not given rise to claims on the Company s past claims experience to predict future claims and c.aims costs.

paid. It1s esumated based on current infarmation, and the ultimate liatility may vary as
aresdlt of subsequent information ard events. Adiustments 1o the amount of claims
provision for prior years are included in the Income Statement in the financialyear in
which the change 15 made

It 1s esumated that the majority of all claims will be paid wathin 12 months and therefore
cleims development information is not disclosed

nsetting the provision for claims outstanding, a best estimate I1s determined on an
undiscounted basis and then 2 margin of prudence 1s added such that there 1s confidence
that future claims will be met from the provisions, The level of prudence set I1s one that
provides an appropriate degree of confidence.

The valuation of the provision for clair s cutstanding in the Group's subsidiary, Personal
Assurance PLc, of £1298,000 (2021 £1,721,000) 15 estimated by using a Chain Ladder
method, and the mam assumption undzrlying this techmgue is that the Company's past
ciaims development expenence can be used to project future cleims development and

) [N e Lot
a) Claims
2022 2011

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
, Provisian for claims at 1 January 2,061 (57) 2,004 2,340 N 211
W Claims paid during the financial year 6,353) 66 (6,287) 5 BE4) 61 (5820
ﬁ .

Increase/(decrease) In habilities.

Arising from current year ctaims 6,627 {16) 6,611 L.A08 {43

i Arising from prior year claims {141} {48) (189) 1860 ]

ﬁ Total movement 133 2 135 WAEY i3
Provision for claims at 31 December 2,194 (55} 2,139 2061 (57, 2,0C1

b} Unearned premiums

2022 2021
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000
At 1 January 899 (51) 248 00y b0y 635
i Increasein the financial year N 25,660 {138) 25,522 . 25050 63 24 887
m Release in the financial year :ﬁ‘w_gm_ 149 (25,257) . 147
_ Movement in the financiat year 254 11 - 265 204 9 27

At 31 December 1,153 (a0} 1,113 549 ney $a4
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26 Company investment in subsidiary undertakings

Shares in subsidiary

undertakings

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Cost
At 1danuary 38,101 EVRIE]
Acquired in the year -
Share-hased expenses 271 158
Al 31 December 38,372 1I0T
Amounts written off
Al A.Lm::m1< 12,898 L2.898
Impairment provision in year - -
At 31 December 12,898 AL
Net book amount at 31 December 25,474 05,203

AT 31Decerber 2022 the Company held 100% of the allotted share capital of the following
trad ng corepanies, all of which were ircorporated in England and Wates, with the exceptior

of Personal Assurance [Guerrseyl Lirmited whichis incorporated in Guernsey, and have been
consolidated in the Group financial statements. The registered address of all Group entities
15 Jehn Ormond House, 899 Silbury Boulevard, Central Miiton Keynes, MKO 3XL, with the
excepuon of Personal Assurance (Guernsey) Lirnited whose reqistered address s Level 5,

M

Court, La Charroterie, St Peter Porz, Guernsey, GY11RJ.

Strategic

Report

Subsidiary undertaking

Personal Group Limited

Personal Assurance Plc

Personal Assurance Services Limited™
Personal Group Benefits Limited ™
Personal Group Trustees Limited
Persaonal Management Solutions Limited
Berkeley Morgan Group Limited™
Berkeley Morgan Limited

Personal Assurance (Guernsey) Limited

Let’s Connect IT Soluttens Limited

Innecto Pecple Caonsulting _.._3.;3.
Quintige Consulting Group Limited™
Multiplelisting Limited

Mutual Benefit Limited

Partake Services Limited

Personal Assurance Financial Services Ple
Berkeley Morgan Healthcare Limited”
8 M Agency Services Limited-
Berkeley Morgan Prgperty Limited’
Summit Financial Solutions Limited
Summut Fiancial Holdings Plc
Berkeley Morgan Trustees Limited:
Perscnal Group Mobile Limited”

Unwversal Pravident Limited:

Governance

Financial
Statements
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Nature of business

Intermediate holding Company

General mnsurance

Administration services

Employee benefits sales and :,_m:xm.m_:a N
Trustee for employee share cptions
Employee benefits sales and marketing
Berkeley Morgan Group Holding Company
Independent financial advisers

Death insurance underwriting services

Employee benefits salary sacnfice
technology products

HR consuitancy and technology providers

HR consultancy

Dormant
Dom_.:m:ﬁ
Dormant
Dormant
Um:ﬂm:ﬁ
Dormant
Dormant
Darmant
Dormant
U‘o‘j‘E‘m:F

Dormant

Dormant
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26 Company investment in sutisidiary undertakings conunucd

The fo.towing subsidiaries of the Group are exempt from the requirerents of the
Comparies ACt 2006 {"the Act") relating o the audit of individual accounts by virtug of
54794 The parent undertaking, Persenal Group Holdings Plc, gives a guarantee Lo these
subsicharies under section A79C inrespec: of the year ending 31 December 2022,

> Personal Assdrance Services Limited 3194988
2~ Personal Group Benefits Limited 3185037
> Berkeley Morgan Group Limited 3456258,

> Quintige Consuiting Group Limited  3/73926,

27 Capitai commitments

The Group has ne capital commytments at 31 December 2022 and 371 December 2021

28 Contingent liabilities

Therz were no contngent uabilities at 3° December 2027 and 31 December 20213,

29 Pensions

Group and seif-invested personal pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Group personal pension scheme far the
benefit of certain Directars and employees. The scheme s admirustered by Aegon UK

ple and the funds are held independert of the Group. In eddition, the Group makes
contributions to certam Directors' seli - investad persanal pension schemes,

These schemes are admimstered by independent third party administrators and the
funds are held independent of the Greap

Strategic

Financial
Statements
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Repotrt Governance

30 Leasing commitments and rental income receivable
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

Folowing the adoption of :FRS 16 the balance sheet at 31 December 2022 includes

g n

4 i taas coeta vd helow

2022 - Right of use assets & lease ligbilities

Net Book
Value Lease
of Assets Liability
£000 £000
Mataor vehicles 114 111
Buildings 152 167
Total 166 2/
2021 - Right of use assets & lease liabilities
Net Book
Value Lease
of Assets Liability
LO00 £000
Motor vehicles 177 287
Buildings 242 VY]
Total 419 11

The inialvaluation of the asset 1s equal to the discounted lease labiity on the mceplion
of the lease and this s depreciated over the shorter of either the lfe of the asset or the
seTerm,

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Depreciation Interest

Charge Expense

£000 £000

Motor vehicles 396 17
Buildings 79 3
Total 475 1

Total operating lease payments due until the end of the lease, or the first break clause,
total £295,000 (2027 £388,000).
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30 Leasing commitments and rental income receivable continued

An analysis of these payments due s és follows

Strategic Financial
Report Governance Statements \_O @

31 Related party transactions

Personal Group Holdings Plc holds a bank account whichit uses for payments to
Company specific creditors, During 2022 and 2021 the Company paid its own dividends

2022 201 and cxpenses,
£'000 £'000
Totzl lease payments falting due Alist of intercompany balances that are cutstanding at the balance sheet date with
. subsidiary undertakings is as follows:
WiLhin one year 167 S Y g
Within one to two years 66 e 2092 201
WILhin two Lo five years 62 it Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
Total 295 188 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Personal Assurance Plo - - 10 -
fota.cperating rent recenvable payments duo unul Lhe end of the tease ar the first break Personal Assurance Services Limited 11 _ . Y
ciause, Lotér L2027 £13,000) An ana.ysis of these receivable payments du 1s .
‘. Personal Group Benefits Limited - 1 - -
TGLowWe X
Personat Assurance Financial Services Plc - 137 - 147
2022 2021 Multiptetisting Limited - 100 - 100
; .
£'000 £'oo0 Personal Management Solutigns Limited T - -
Fulure minimum lease payments: Mutual Benefit Limited - 12 - 17
Within one year - B Partake Services Limited 3 - 3 -
...32:: one to two years = Personal Group Limited - 178 -
Wwithin two to five years - - Berkeley Morgan Group Limited 4 - 1
Total - - Innecto People Group Consulting Limited 16 - A
Total a1 428 Z1 254
Below s a reconciiabicr of changesin labilities ansing trom financing actjvites:
Al 1 re and.
1 Sanwecy Cash Mewt 34 Decamber | balarces are repayable on am&%n None of the balances are secured All balances
20232 Flows teases Other 2022 relate to intercompany funding balances.
£'009 £'000 £'6o0 i £'000 . . .
000 Transactions with Directors
Current lease Labilimies 222 {429) 371 26 190 i
o , . During the year, no transactions were undertaken with Directors, or companies ir which
Non-current lease liabilities 252 - - (122 130 Directors were key decision makers.
Total liabilities from
tinancing activities a73 {429) N 96) 320

The "Other” columnincludes the eftect of reclassification of non- cdrrent ieases e
current due to the passage of time, the effect of the disposal of lease asscots with ther
relatzd creditors and the effect of the uchwinding of the discounted ROU creditors
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32 Acquisition of Quintige Consulting Group Limited
Summary of acquisition

On1Jduly 2022, the Group acquired 103% of the 1ssued share capital of Quintige Consulting
Growp Limited (QCG), a provider of HR Consultancy and HR Survey Platforms The acquisition
has enhanced the Group's offeringin the employee henefits market.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwiil are as follows,

2022
£'000
Purchase Consideration,
Cash Paid 966
Total 966
Ihe assets and Labiities recognised as a result of the acquisiiion are as follows
FairValue
£'000
Intangible assets - Customer relationships 281
Intangible assets - Trade Name 56
S:m&_m‘:xmg assels ‘ 5
Cash ) - 154
Trade cgebtors 143
Oth=r gebtars 33
Trace Qmm:oa ‘ (14
Cthzr creditors 1714
Deferred tax liability recagnised on accuisition 81)
Net identihiable assets acquired 403
Goodwill 563
Net assets acquired 966

The goodwillis attributable to the workforce, the high profitability of the acquired

NOSs Ant I ne

ST Ce e C LT WL LR wisy
deductible Tor tax purposes

Strategic

Financial
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Intangible Asset Recognition

In assessing the value of separably identifiabte intangibles acquired on acguisition,
Personal Group performed the valuation using forecast infoermation available at the time
of the acquisition. Assets were recagnised only when separately identifiable and where
Jredsorable valuator and sropos Lon of Le prensase onoe cobld pe dhiiocetes g them

The vaiues of the intangible assets were calculated using several valuation methods
mncluding the multi penod excess earnings method and the relief frem royalty method.
Both required use of the acguisition forecasts and appropnate discount rates,

The recognised intangibles will be amortised through the income statement over
five yodss and the combrnet tha ge tor the Grnontns 1o 31 December 2022 was L33 000
Acquired Receivables

The fair vaiue of acquired trade recevables 15 £1441,000. The gross contractuat amount
Tor barc recrne 3nles was L7744 GO0 alwhizk the TLIamount s recovenible

Revenue and Profit Contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of £409,000 and net profit of £124 000 to the
Group for the period from 1July to 31 December 2022 1f the acquisition had occurred on
SJanuary 2022 1he GroLp's Corsalidatad pro ferma rovenLe anc 1ass Tor Lhe year ended
37 De-combrer 2022 would have been £8/7,064,000 anc £6,512,000 rosprctively

Purchase Consideration - Cash Qutflow

2022

£'000
Cash consideration paid 966
Less: Cash balances acquired o (154}
Tatal 912

Acquisition-related costs

In the perod, acquisition related costs of £47,000 that were not directly sttributable to
the issue of shares are included within expenses in profit of Loss N operating cash flows
In the statement of cash flows.

33 Post balance sheet events

There have Been no post balance sheet events
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